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CALENDAR OF EVENTS

November 2020
18 November 2020 Council Meeting — Tambo
28 November 2020 Blackall Race Meet
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Held at Tambo Council Chambers
On Wednesday 18 November 2020
Commencing at 8.30am

Order of Business

Blue items are hyperlinked
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Condolences:
Myrtle Richardson
Milton Rex Johnson
Don Athorn
Declarations of Conflicts of Interest
BUSINE
1. CONFIRMATION OF THE MEETING MINUTES

1.1 Confirmation of General Meeting Minutes 14 October 2020
That the General Meeting Minutes of 14 October be adopted with the following
corrections:

Item 4.1.9 — That the Christmas shutdown for 2020 will be:

1. Council offices will close from Wednesday 23 December 2020 and reopen
Monday 4 January 2021; and

2. Council depots will close from Friday 18 December 2020 and reopen Monday
11 January 2021.

Iltem 4.1.20 — That Council adopt the draft 2019/2020 Annual report.
2. BUSINESS ARISING FROM THE MINUTES

2.1 Business Arising from the Minutes from 14 October 2020

3. AEC Feasibility Study — Presentation by Jonathan Pavetto

4. DEPUTATION — Hon David Littleproud — Minister for Agriculture, Disaster and
Emergency Management

5. PETITIONS — Nil

6. REPORTS & CORRESPONDENCE

6.1 Director of Corporate and Community Services
6.1.1 Financial Statements for the Month of October
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6.1.6
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6.1.8
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Arts and Cultural Report

Internal Audit and Risk Management Committee Meeting held
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Annual Financial Statement and Queensland Audit Office Report for

the Year Ending 30 June 2020
North Australia Climate Program
St Patrick’s Catholic Church
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125
129
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135
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Return to Agenda
Next Item

MINUTES OF THE GENERAL MEETING OF
BLACKALL-TAMBO REGIONAL COUNCIL
HELD AT THE BLACKALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS
ON WEDNESDAY 14 OCTOBER 2020
AT 8.30AM

PRESENT:

Councillors: Cr AL Martin (Mayor), Cr LP Russell (Deputy Mayor), Cr BP
Johnstone, Cr PJ Pullos, Cr JH Scobie, Cr DA Hardie, Cr GK Schluter.

OFFICERS:
Mr Des Howard, Chief Executive Officer, Mr Alastair Rutherford, Director of

Finance Corporate and Community Services, Mrs Andrea Saunders,
Executive Assistant.

CONDOLENCES:

A minute’s silence was observed to mark the passing of:

e Ashley James Johnson
e Beverley Jean Bucknell

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST:

Cr Russell for item 4.1.7 -1, Councillor Russell, inform the meeting that | have
prescribed conflict of interest in item 4.1.7 as my wife, Gill Russell is the president of
the Better in Blackall Festival Committee. As a result of my conflict of interest, | will
leave the meeting room while the matter is considered and voted on.

1.1 Confirmation of General Meeting Minutes

MOTION: Moved: Cr BP Johnstone Seconded: Cr JH Scobie
“That the minutes of the General Meeting held on 16 September 2020 be
taken as read and confirmed, and that the Mayor be authorised to sign
same.”

Minute No. 01/10A/20 Carried 7/0




4.1.1 Financial Report for the Month of September

The Finance Report for September 2020 was presented to Council

MOTION: Moved: Cr GK Schluter Seconded: Cr PJ Pullos

“That Council receive the financial report for September 2020.”

Minute No. 02/10A/20 Carried 7/0

4.1.2 DFCCS Operations Report — September 2020

The Director of Finance Corporate and Community Services operations report
for September 2020 is presented to Council. The report includes housing and
administration, 60s and Better, youth program, community development
program, Blackall aerodrome, libraries, visitor information centres, facility

bookings, Tambo Multipurpose and Tambo Child Care Centre.

MOTION: Moved: Cr PJ Pullos Seconded: Cr LP Russell
“That Council receive the DFCCS Operations Report for September
2020.”

Minute No. 03/10A/20 Carried 7/0

4.1.3 Arts and Cultural Report — September 2020

The Arts and Cultural Report is provided to Council.

MOTION: Moved: Cr GK Schluter Seconded: Cr JH Scobie
“That Council receive the Arts and Cultural Report for September 2020
and note that the RADF Committee has been reformed with two new

members.”

Minute No. 04/10A/20 Carried 7/0

4.1.4 Environmental Health Officer’s Report

The Environmental Health Officer’s report is provided to Council.

MOTION: Moved: Cr DA Hardie Seconded: Cr JH Scobie



“That Council receive the Environmental Health Officer’s report and note
that several environmental issues were addressed during the period.”

Minute No. 05/10A/20 Carried 7/0

4.1.5

Queensland Audit Office 2019-2020 Interim Audit Report to the Mayor

Under Section 213 of the Local Government Regulation 2012 the Auditor-
General’s report is required to be received by Council.

MOTION: Moved: Cr BP Johnstone Seconded: Cr PJ Pullos

“That Council receive the interim audit report of the Auditor-General
addressed to the Mayor for the financial year 2019/2020.”

Minute No. 06/10A/20 Carried 7/0

Cr Russell thanked staff for their efforts.

4.1.6

Internal Audit and Risk Management Committee — Minutes of Meeting
held 18 September 2020

The Internal Audit and Risk Management Committee held a meeting on the 18
September 2020.

MOTION: Moved: Cr LP Russell Seconded: Cr JH Scobie

“That Council receive the minutes of the Internal Audit and Risk
Management Committee meeting held 18 September 2020.

Minute No. 07/10A/20 Carried 7/0

4.1.7

At this point, 9.15am Cr Russell left the meeting.

Better in Blackall = Request to Waive Fees for Hire of Cold Room and
BBO Trailer on 9 October

The Better in Blackall Festival have requested that Council consider waiving the
hire fees for the cold room and BBQ trailer on 9 October.

MOTION: Moved: Cr PJ Pullos Seconded: Cr GK Schluter

“That Council endorse the actions of the Director of Finance Corporate
and Community Services in approving the Better in Blackall’s request to
waive the fees on the cold room and BBQ trailer for 9 October 2020.”



Minute No. 08/10A/20 Carried 6/0

At this point, 9.18am, Cr Russell returned to the meeting.

4.1.8 Review of Operational Plan 30 September 2020

Section 174(3) of the Local Government Regulation 2012 requires Councils to
review their Operational Plan every three months.

MOTION: Moved: Cr PJ Pullos Seconded: Cr GK Schluter
“That Council reviews the Operational Plan as at 30 September 2020.”

Minute No. 09/10A/20 Carried 7/0

419 Christmas Shutdown — Office and Depot

The Council offices and depots close over the Christmas period.
MOTION: Moved: Cr PJ Pullos Seconded: Cr JH Scobie

“That the Christmas shutdown for 2020 will be:

1. Council offices will close from Wednesday 23 December 2020 and
reopen Monday 4 January 2021; and

2. Council depots will close from Friday 18 December 2020 and reopen
Monday 11 January 2021.”

Minute No. 10/10A/20 Carried 7/0

4.1.10 Annual Report 2019/2020

The Local Government Regulation 2012 requires that the Annual Report must
be adopted by Council.

MOTION: Moved: Cr LP Russell Seconded: Cr DA Hardie
“That Council adopt the draft 2019/2020 Annual Report.”

Minute No. 11/10A/20 Carried 7/0

4.2.1 Director of Works and Services Operations Report — September 2020

The Director of Works and Services report for September 2020 is provided to
Council.

MOTION: Moved: Cr LP Russell Seconded: Cr PJ Pullos



“That Council receive the Director of Works and Services’ Operation
Report for September 2020.”

Minute No. 12/10A/20 Carried 7/0

4.2.2 Work Health and Safety Report

The Work Health and Safety Report has been provided to Council. There was
one incident reported for the month.

MOTION: Moved: Cr JH Scobie Seconded: Cr LP Russell

“That Council receive the Work Health and Safety Report for September
2020 and note that hazard inspections are ongoing.”

Minute No. 13/10A/20 Carried 7/0

4.2.3 Purchase of Motor Grader

Quotations were requested from 3 machinery dealers for the purchase of a
motor grader to replace plant 1305 John Deere 770GP grader.

MOTION: Moved: Cr PJ Pullos Seconded: Cr LP Russell

“That Council accept the quotation from Hastings Deering to supply a
new Caterpillar 140-14A motor grader for $414,000.00 (ex GST). This
machine is preferred as it will provide uniformity of plant, uniformity of
parts and proven backup service and warranty. Local Buy (NPN 2.15)
contract will apply.”

Minute No. 14/10A/20 Carried 7/0

4.2.4 Purchase of 6x4 Prime Movers

Quotations were requested from 14 truck manufacturers for the purchase of 2
6x4 prime movers to replace plant 5507, 5018 and 5019 trucks.

MOTION: Moved: Cr LP Russell Seconded: Cr PJ Pullos

“That Council accept the quotation from VCV Rockhampton to supply 2
x new Mack Granite prime movers for $504,522 (ex GST). These trucks
are preferred as they will provide uniformity of plant, value for
money/resale, flexibility of use and proven backup service. Local Buy
(NPN 04-13) contract will apply.”

Minute No. 15/10A/20 Carried 7/0




4.25 Purchase of 3 x Tractors and 1 Slasher

Quotations were requested from 5 machinery dealers for the purchase of 3x
tractors and 1 slasher to replace plant 4101, 4102, 4104 Kubota tractors.

MOTION: Moved: Cr PJ Pullos Seconded: Cr DA Hardie

“That Council accept the quotation from Black Truck Sales & Ag to
supply 3x tractors and 1 slasher for $233,800.00 (ex GST). This machine
is preferred as it will provide uniformity of plant, uniformity of parts and
proven backup service and warranty. Local Buy (NPN 2.15) contract will
apply.”

Minute No. 16/10A/20 Carried 7/0

4.2.6 Purchase of Vac Tank Trailer

Quotations were requested from 14 manufacturers for the purchase of a trailer
mounted Vac tank as a new addition to our fleet.

MOTION: Moved: Cr LP Russell Seconded: Cr BP Johnstone

“That Council accept the quotation from RDO Australia to supply a new
Vermeer Vac tank trailer for $84,300.00 (ex GST). This unit would be
preferred as it will provide uniformity of plant, value for money/resale,
flexibility of use and proven backup service. Local Buy (NPN 2.15)
contract will apply.”

Minute No. 17/10A/20 Carried 7/0

4.2.7 Supply, Cart, Heat and Spray Bituminous Products

Tenders were requested for the supply, cart, heat and spray bituminous
products from 9 tenderers.

MOTION: Moved: Cr BP Johnstone Seconded: Cr JH Scobie

“That Council accept the tender from Road Surfaces Group for
$341,921.89 as they are the lowest tender and are a proven supplier.”

Minute No. 18/10A/20 Carried 7/0

51 Blackall Saleyards Monthly Report

The Blackall Saleyards monthly report for September is presented to Council.
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MOTION: Moved: Cr LP Russell Seconded: Cr JH Scobie

“That Council receive the Blackall Saleyards monthly report for
September 2020.”

Minute No. 19/10A/20 Carried 7/0

5.2 Planning and Development Report

The Planning and Development Report is presented to Council.

MOTION: Moved: Cr PJ Pullos Seconded: Cr LP Russell
“That Council receive the planning and development report for September
2020 and note that there was one approved development application for

the period and four planning enquiries.”

Minute No. 20/10A/20 Carried 7/0

53 Discount of Rate Payment Received After Due Date Being 16 September
2020 — Rate Assessments 11145-10000-000 & 11143-00000-000

Council has received a request from a ratepayer asking that the discount on the
rates notices be allowed when the payment was made outside the discount
period. The discount was missed due to a death in the family.

MOTION: Moved: Cr DA Hardie Seconded: Cr PJ Pullos
“That Council refund the amount of $1288.48 on Rate Assessment
11145-10000-000 and $400.11 on Rate Assessment 11143-00000-000 on

compassionate grounds.”

Minute No. 21/10A/20 Carried 7/0

54 Discount of Rate Payment Received After Due Date Being 16 September
2020 — Rate Assessments 20247-10000-000 & 20360-00000-000

Council has received a request from a ratepayer asking that the discount on the
rates notices be allowed when the payment was made outside the discount
period.

MOTION: Moved: Cr LP Russell Seconded: Cr PJ Pullos
“That Council decline the request to have the amount of $1424.12 on

Rate Assessment 20247-10000-000 and $1288.48 on Rate Assessment
20360-00000-000 refunded.”

11



Minute No. 22/10A/20 Carried 7/0

CLOSURE:

There being no further business to consider, the Mayor declared the Meeting closed
at 9.57am.

CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES:

Confirmed by Council as a true and correct record at the General Meeting held on
Wednesday 18 November 2020.
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Return to Agenda
Next Item

Minute
No.

Report
Number

Subject

Resolution

Action By

Result

07/06B/20

4.1.6

Tambo Child Care Centre

That this matter be held over to the 15 July
2020 meeting.

DFCCS

11/10A/20

4.1.10

Annual Report

That Council adopt the draft 2019/2020
Annual Report.

DFCCS

Final draft included in
current agenda.

14/10A/20

4.2.3

Purchase of Motor Grader

That Council accept the quotation from
Hastings Deering to supply a new Caterpillar
140-14A motor grader for $414,000.00 (ex
GST). This machine is preferred as it will
provide uniformity of plant, uniformity of parts
and proven backup service and warranty.
Local Buy (NPN 2.15) contract will apply.

DWS

The order has been
placed.

15/10A/20

4.2.4

Purchase of 6x4 Prime Movers

That Council accept the quotation from VCV
Rockhampton to supply 2 x new Mack

Granite prime movers for $504,522 (ex GST).

These trucks are preferred as they will
provide uniformity of plan, value for
money/resale, flexibility of use and proven
backup service. Local Buy (NPN 04-13)
contract will apply.

DWS

The order has been
placed.

16/10A/20

425

Purchase of 3 x Tractors and 1
Slasher

That Council accept the quotation from
Blackall Truck Sales and Ag to supply 3 x
tractors and 1 slasher for $233,800.00 (ex
GST). This machine is preferred as it will
provide uniformity of plant, uniformity of parts
and proven backup service and warranty.
Local Buy (NPN 2.15) contract will apply.

DWS

The order has been
placed.

17/10A/20

4.2.6

Purchase of Vac Tank Trailer

That Council accept the quotation from RDO
Australia to supply Vermeer Vac tank trailer
for $84,300 (ex GST). This unit would be
preferred as it will provide uniformity of plant,

DWS

The order has been
placed.
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value for money/resale, flexibility of use and
proven backup service. Local Buy (NPN
2.15) contract will apply.

18/10A/10 | 4.2.7 Supply, Cart, Heat and Spray That Council accept the tender from Road DWS The order has been

Bituminous Products Surfaces Group for $341,921.89 as they are placed.
the lowest tender and are a proven supplier.

21/10A/20 | 5.3 Discount of Rate Payment Received | That Council refund the amount of $1288.48 | DFCCS The ratepayer has been
After Due Date Being 16 September | on Rate Assessment 11145-10000-000 and notified of Council’s
2020 — Rate Assessments 11145- $400.11 on Rate Assessment 11143-00000- decision and refunded
10000-000 & 11143-00000-000 000 on compassionate grounds. the amount.

22/10A/20 | 5.4 Discount of Rate Payment Received | That Council decline the request to have the | DFCCS The ratepayer has been

After Due Date Being 16 September
2020 — Rate Assessments 20247-
10000-000 & 20360-00000-000

amount of $1424.12 on Rate Assessment
20247-10000-000 and $1288.48 on Rate
Assessment 20360-00000-000 refunded.

notified of Council’s
decision.
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BLACKALL-TAMBO REGIONAL COUNCIL Return to Agenda

Next Item
OFFICER REPORTS
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: 18 November 2020
Item No: 3
SUBJECT HEADING: AEC Presentation
Author and Officer's Title: Des Howard, Chief Executive Officer

CLASSIFICATION: (if confidential)

Summary: Jonathan Pavetto will present the report to Council for the feasibility study of the
Wool Handling and Receival Facility.

Officer's Recommendation: That Council receive the feasibility report for the Wool
Handling and Receival Facility as presented by AEC.

Background

Jonathan Pavetto will present the AEC feasibility study for the Wool Handling and Receival
Facility to Council.

Link to Corporate Plan

Sustainable and Prosperous Economy

Economic Development

Encourage economic development within the region

Consultation (internal/external)
CEO

Mayor

Arts and Cultural Officer

Policy Implications
Nil

BlIJdget and Resource Implications
Ni
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BLACKALL-TAMBO REGIONAL COUNCIL Return to Agenda

Next Item
OFFICER REPORTS
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: 18 November 2020
Item No: 6.1.1
SUBJECT HEADING: Financial Report for the Month of October
Author and Officer's Title: Alastair Rutherford, Director of Finance Corporate and

Community Services
CLASSIFICATION: (if confidential)

Summary: The Finance Report for October 2020 is presented to Council.

Officer's Recommendation: That Council receive the Financial Report for October 2020.

Background

The finance report for October 2020 is presented to Council.

Link to Corporate Plan
Governance
Asset and Financial Management

Consultation (internal/external)
CEO
Manager of Finance

Policy Implications
Nil

BLIJdget and Resource Implications
Ni
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FINANCE REPORT TO A MEETING OF THE
BLACKALL-TAMBO REGIONAL COUNCIL HELD
ON 18 November 2020

Contents

1. Cash Position

2. Monthly Cash Flow Estimate

3. Comparative Data

4. Capital Funding - budget V's actual
5. Road Works - budget V's actual

6. Rates Arrears Summary

7. Capital Projects Detail

8. Revenue and Expenditure Summary




FINANCE REPORT TO A MEETING OF BLACKALL-TAMBO REGIONAL COUNCIL

HELD ON 18 NOVEMBER 2020

1.

Cash Position as at 31 October 2020

Cash at Bank
Operating Accounts

Short Term Investments
Bank of Queensland - Term Deposits
Queensland Treasury Corporation - Cash Fund

The following items should be backed by cash and investments, plus any increases
in the surplus of Debtors over Creditors and unspent grants.

Cash backed Current Liabilities (Employee Leave Entitlements)
Unspent Grants ( QRA , W4Q, DCP & Other Capital Works)

Debtors Creditors

Balance of recoverable debtors - estimated creditors: 246,664 33,477

Plus cash surplus 16,352,617 3,416,270

Working Capital
2. Monthly Cashflow Estimate: = November 2020

Receipts Expenditure

Rates & Fees & Charges S 60,000 Payroll

Debtors S 100,000 Creditor Payments

Grants/Subsidies/Loans QTC S 520,824 Loan Payments

Total S 680,824 Total

Therefore cash is expected to decrease by -$ 839,176 in the period.
3. Comparative Data:
October 2020 October 2019

Cash position 16,352,617 18,308,410

Working capital 13,149,534 16,907,588

Rate arreas 200,788 185,117

Outstanding debtors 246,664 880,836

Current creditors 33,477 185,905

Total Loans 1,702,466 1,368,757

w n

1,352,617

7,000,000
8,000,000

16,352,617

W

2,606,918
809,352

wn|Wn

3,416,270

$
$

213,187

12,936,347

wn

13,149,534

720,000
800,000

wv |n n n

1,520,000




FINANCE REPORT TO A MEETING OF BLACKALL-TAMBO REGIONAL COUNCIL
HELD ON 18 NOVEMBER 2020

4. Capital Works Summary: 1 July 2020 to 30 June 2021
Budget YTD Actual % of Budget
Buildings & Other Structures 3,508,525 1,489,669 42%
Plant & Equipment 1,110,000 84,300 8%
Road Infrastructure 2,820,865 41,295 1%
Water Infrastructure 250,000 102,016 41%
Sewerage Infrastructure 250,000 10,908 4%
QTC Loan Redemption 95,800 23,829 25%
Total 8,035,190 1,752,017 22%
5. Road Works Expenditure : 1 July 2020 to 30 June 2021
Expended YTD % of Budget
Budget Actual Expended
Total Roads Expenditure 3,817,991 585,071 15%
1. Rural Roads Maintenance 1,000,000 81,537 8%
2. Town Streets Maintenance 300,000 123,946 41%
3. RMPC Works 2,517,991 379,588 15%
6. Rate Arrears Summary
Total Rates Outstanding Balance S 291,400
No. of
Rates Outstanding Breakdown Total
Assessements
Current S 90,612 85
1 Year S 92,979 38
2 Years S 48,593 19
3 Years and over S 59,216 9




BTRC 2020-21 CAPITAL EXPENDITURE PROJECTS 1/07/20 to 30/06/21 SOURCES OF FUNDING

BUILDINGS & OTHER STRUCTURES 3,508,525 1,489,669 42%| 2,896,125 - - 612,400
Blackall Indoor Cricket Facility (W4Q) 200,000 201,787 101% 200,000

Tambo Swimming Pool Replaster and Paint (W4Q) 172,825 170,995 99% 172,825

Tambo Dam Sprinkler System 15,000 - 0% 15,000
Blackall Depot Portable Generator 10,000 - 0% 10,000
Tambo TV Transmitters Replacments 32,000 - 0% 32,000
BTRC LGGSP Emergency Rural Signs 240,000 142,576 59% 144,000 96,000
Blackall Airport Fencing 2020/2021 Federal Funding 218,800 - 0% 109,400 109,400
Tambo "Truck Museum BOR - 2020/2021 504,900 - 0% 454,900 50,000
Fast Internet Project BOR - 2020/2021 400,000 - 0% 200,000 200,000
Blackall Saleyards Ramp 100,000 - 0% 100,000
Saleyards Pens Stage 1 & 2 COVID19 400,000 395,814 99% 400,000

Blackall Magpies Clubhouse Covid19 150,000 100,708 67% 150,000

Tambo Pool Shade & Disability Chair COVID19 70,000 - 0% 70,000

Blackall Pool Shade Structure & Maint. COVID19 50,000 - 0% 50,000

Waste Oil Collection Stations COVID19 40,000 40,273 101% 40,000

Blackall Office Depot Toilets COVID19 30,000 - 0% 30,000

Pathway to Health Extension COVID19 80,000 - 0% 80,000

Elephant Palace COVID19 100,000 - 0% 100,000

Tambo Weighbridge Upgrade COVID19 50,000 45,627 91% 50,000

Backup Fuel Supply (DCP) 180,000 180,338 100% 180,000

Banks Park Beautification (DCP) 80,000 5,820 7% 80,000

Blackall Sign Western end (DCP) 60,000 - 0% 60,000

Saleyards Canteen Upgrade (DCP) 120,000 120,135 100% 120,000

Tambo Dam Lights (DCP & TTTT) 105,000 - 0% 105,000

Western Sports Complex Upgrade (DCP) 100,000 85,596 86% 100,000




BTRC 2020-21 CAPITAL EXPENDITURE PROJECTS 1/07/20 to 30/06/21 SOURCES OF FUNDING
. Expenditure % Capital Contribu- Council

Particulars Budget 2020-21 YTD Expended Grants tions Loans Contribution
PLANT & EQUIPMENT 1,110,000 84,300 8% - - - 1,110,000
Fleet Replacement (Net of Trade in/disposals) 1,100,000 84,300 8% 1,100,000
Blackall Workshop - Rotary Broom for Bobcat 10,000 - 0% 10,000
ROAD INFRASTRUCTURE 2,820,865 41,295 1%| 2,020,865 - - 800,000
Roads to Recovery -yet to be allocated 772,519 - 0% 772,519
New Hospital Road 120,000 41,295 34% 120,000
Emmet Road Reseals 320,000 - 0% 320,000
Reseals 800,000 - 0% 800,000
Heavy Bypass Stage 1 808,346 - 0% 808,346
Langlo Road Pave and seal 400,000 54,850 14% 200,000 200,000
WATER INFRASTRUCTURE 250,000 102,016 41% 250,000 - - -
Water Mains Replacements DCP & COVID19 250,000 102,016 41% 250,000
SEWERAGE INFRASTRUCTURE 250,000 10,908 4% 250,000 - - -
Sewerage Renewals DCP & COVID19 250,000 10,908 4% 250,000
LOAN REDEMPTION Qld Treasury Corporation 95,800 23,829 25% - - - 95,800
Saleyards Upgrade - Current Balance $ 1,311,881 Maturity June
2037 [ Drawdown 16/05/2017 $ 1,500,000 ] 58,400 14,414 25% 58,400
Tambo Bore - Current Balance $ 390,585 Maturity June 2030
[ Drawdown 15/06/2020 $400,000 ] 37,400 9,415 25% 37,400
TOTAL CAPITAL PROGRAM 20-21 8,035,190 1,752,017 22%| 5,416,990 - - 2,618,200




General Ledger2020.8.27.1 Revenue and Expenditure Summary Page - 1
(Accounts: 0100-0001-0000 to 5250-2000-0000. All report groups. 36% of year elapsed. To Level 2. Excludes committed costs)

Blackall-Tambo Regional Council (Budget for full year) Financial Year Ending 2021 Printed (SDAYAL) : 09-11-2020 4:48:07 PM
————————————————— REVENUE ----=--====—=——=——-— -———-—-—-—-—-—-—-—-—-—-—-- EXPENDITURE ------=-=—--——-—-—
AMENDED ORIGINAL AMENDED ORIGINAL
ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET

1000-0001 ADMINISTRATION

1000-0002 Administration 43,127.06 22% 197,600 197,600 1,299,230.78 40% 3,266,600 3,266,600
1100-0002 Finance 1,920,783.46 28% 6,807,500 6,807,500 24,674.82 37% 67,300 67,300
1200-0002 Oncosts 0.00 0% 0 0 148,713.57 -11% (1,385,400) (1,385,400)
1300-0002 Stores/Purchasing 0.00 0% 0 0 23,302.27 34% 68,300 68,300
2000-0002 Corporate Governance 0.00 % 0 0 184,552.08 25% 738,700 738,700
2100-0002 Business Activities 22,616.74 61% 37,000 37,000 12,352.53 11% 116,700 116,700
2150-0002 Saleyard Operations 723,750.96 63% 1,150,000 1,150,000 340,621.71 54% 632,000 632,000
2200-0002 Tambo Sawmill 8,400.00 105% 8,000 8,000 133,350.35 188% 71,000 71,000
2350-0002 Airports/Aerodromes 9,154.06 % 149,000 149,000 69,201.14 22% 321,300 321,300
2450-0002 Tourism 45,651.65 142% 32,100 32,100 139,004.95 42% 331,500 331,500
2500-0002 Planning & Development 12,173.36 41% 30,000 30,000 29,173.58 47% 62,000 62,000
2580-0002 Economic & Community Develop 1,625,396.98 45% 3,645,300 3,645,300 61,022.31 52% 117,400 117,400
2600-0002 Environmental 40,104.94 103% 39,100 39,100 2,331.96 3% 69,500 69,500
3000-0002 Work Scheme and Community 5,840.24 38% 15,300 15,300 35,446.59 28% 128,100 128,100
3100-0002 Council Housing 44,170.00 37% 120,000 120,000 38,755.87 10% 377,200 377,200
3300-0002 Child Care Services 63,693.28 37% 170,000 170,000 116,521.12 36% 326,500 326,500
3350-0002 Sport and Recreation 3,050.48 2% 140,000 140,000 45,019.10 38% 119,600 119,600
3400-0002 Youth Services 0.00 0% 18,000 18,000 44,643.53 39% 115,000 115,000
3410-0002 Sixties and Better 30,933.55 54% 57,700 57,700 24,310.28 41% 59,000 59,000
3415-0002 Tambo Multi-Purpose Centre 101,315.97 20% 498,500 498,500 208,563.35 35% 588,300 588,300
3445-0002 Disability 35,148.58 55% 64,000 64,000 17,667.33 55% 32,000 32,000
3460-0002 Neighbourhood Centre 214,241.63 150% 143,000 143,000 65,517.97 40% 162,500 162,500
3470-0002 Miscellaneous Care Services 0.00 % 0 0 0.00 % 2,000 2,000
3500-0002 Libraries, Education and Arts 2,020.32 18% 11,100 11,100 68,546.42 31% 219,400 219,400
3570-0002 Regional Arts Development Fund 71,743.00 96% 75,000 75,000 40,928.51 17% 240,000 240,000
3600-0002 Halls and Cultural Centres 899.98 30% 3,000 3,000 19,445.28 % 248,000 248,000
3700-0002 Showgrounds & Sports Facilities 660.91 22% 3,000 3,000 108,545.64 21% 529,000 529,000
3740-0002 Funerals 30,717.39 47% 66,000 66,000 30,403.65 55% 55,000 55,000
3800-0002 Corporate Buildings 0.00 0% 0 0 40,533.19 31% 130,000 130,000
1000-0001 ADMINISTRATION 5,055,594.54 38% 13,480,200 13,480,200 3,372,379.88 43% 7,808,500 7,808,500

4000-0001 WORKS AND SERVICES

4001-0002 Works Office and Depot 0.00 0% 0 0 214,313.16 7% 3,149,400 3,149,400
4100-0002 Town Street Maintenance 0.00 0% 0 0 124,604.40 42% 300,000 300,000
4200-0002 Rural Roads Maintenance 139,449.75 11% 1,219,900 1,219,900 108,319.88 11% 1,000,000 1,000,000
4500-0002 Recoverable Works 4,897,115.64 30% 16,374,000 16,374,000 4,976,812.70 32% 15,374,000 15,374,000
4550-0002 Plant Operations 1,279,364.05 37% 3,480,500 3,480,500 1,125,214.73 39% 2,912,200 2,912,200
4600-0002 SES - Disaster Mgmt 5,547.60 33% 17,000 17,000 125,101.00 84% 148,300 148,300
4700-0002 Cemeteries 836.35 84% 1,000 1,000 10,031.36 9% 106,000 106,000
4800-0002 Parks, Gardens and Reserves 0.00 0% 0 0 306,245.15 29% 1,051,500 1,051,500
4860-0002 Agquatic Centres 0.00 0% 0 0 111,334.53 25% 437,500 437,500
4900-0002 Animal Control 16,890.50 105% 16,100 16,100 21,705.71 20% 109,600 109,600
4950-0002 Stock Routes & Pest Mgmt 31,141.45 25% 126,000 126,000 84,058.67 14% 580,200 580,200



General Ledger2020.8.27.1 Revenue and Expenditure Summary Page - 2
(Accounts: 0100-0001-0000 to 5250-2000-0000. All report groups. 36% of year elapsed. To Level 2. Excludes committed costs)

Blackall-Tambo Regional Council (Budget for full year) Financial Year Ending 2021 Printed (SDAYAL) : 09-11-2020 4:48:07 PM
————————————————— REVENUE ----=--====—=——=——-— -———-—-—-—-—-—-—-—-—-—-—-- EXPENDITURE ------=-=—--——-—-—
AMENDED ORIGINAL AMENDED ORIGINAL
ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET
5000-0002 Cleansing 159,365.23 50% 319,500 319,500 81,308.33 32% 257,000 257,000
5100-0002 Water Supply 422,504.47 50% 845,200 845,200 78,534.37 15% 514,400 514,400
5200-0002 Sewerage Services 362,112.17 50% 725,800 725,800 43,982.97 12% 373,700 373,700
4000-0001 WORKS AND SERVICES 7,314,327.21 32% 23,125,000 23,125,000 7,411,566.96 28% 26,313,800 26,313,800

TOTAL REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE 12,369,921.75 34% 36,605,200 36,605,200 10,783,946.84 32% 34,122,300 34,122,300



BLACKALL-TAMBO REGIONAL COUNCIL Return to Agenda

Next Item
OFFICER REPORTS
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: 18 November 2020
Item No: 6.1.2
SUBJECT HEADING: DFCCS Operations Report — October 2020
Author and Officer's Title: Alastair Rutherford, Director of Finance Corporate and

Community Services
CLASSIFICATION: (if confidential)

Summary: The Director of Finance Corporate and Community Services operations report for
October 2020 is presented to Council. The report includes housing and administration, 60s
and Better, youth program, community development program, Blackall aerodrome, libraries,
visitor information centres, facility bookings, Tambo Multipurpose and Tambo Child Care
Centre.

Officer's Recommendation: That Council receive the DFCCS Operations Report for
October 2020.

Background

Tambo Housing and Administration

Building Maintenance

e Tambo Racecourse has been inspected for termites after damage was reported. No

termites were found.

¢ Power issue with the kitchen at the Tambo Racecourse. Repairs enabled the power to
be turned back on and a commercial switchboard is to be installed.

e Safety lighting at the Racecourse needs to upgraded as well. Quotes are being obtained.
e Contractor is carrying out maintenance and painting at the Coolibah Village.

Aged Housing
e Coolibah Village has one vacancy.

Blackall Housing and Administration

e Cultural Centre Maintenance
o Monthly fire alarm system inspection complete

e Housing Maintenance
o Faulty aircon replaced in council house
o Small repairs completed to pensioner hut before new tenancy commenced
o Aircons in 3-bedroom Council house replaced after Ergon power fault at Ergons
cost.

e Housing Applicant
o New tenant in vacant pensioner hut
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Community Development Report

o Referrals made, and received and service support provided,
-A total of 4 client contacts were made during the period of October

e Community Development Activities/Events October 2020:

o Continued Woolscour Icon Funding Project — Filming of TV/Media material
commences mid-November

o Supported Funny Mummies Event. Provided a fundraising opportunity for
Blackall Bush Beatz Dance who were able to raise over $500 for the evening.

o Successful Queensland Mental Health Week Grant — facilitated and delivered
a Rural Men’s Mental Health Working Dog Clinic, Community BBQ and
Presentation from Are You Bogged Mate? 16-17" October. 19x local men
attended the workshop, 30 x community members attended the Are you
Bogged Mate Presentation and BBQ, inc local QPS.

o Committed support for the inaugural ‘Combined Churches Christmas Tree
Festival’ to contribute towards community BBQ costs and electrical tagging.

o RADF Grant submitted for support towards facilitating youth school holiday
workshops from Crack Up Sisters at Community Christmas Event (circus
acrobatics, dance, whip cracking, comedy)

o Forward Planning for Family Friendly ‘Christmas is #BetterinBlackall Event —
Mutton Buster for little kids, ice-Cream, Crack-Up Sisters, Christmas lights
comp announcement

o Assisted ‘Tie Up the Black Dog’ & ICPA with organising a ‘Julie Cross
Motivational Speaker Luncheon’ held on Sunday 15t November.

e Meetings Attended:
o Connect4Children Local Stakeholder meeting — 27-10-2020
o Attended Zoom Meeting with Brisbane Festival Collaboration Meeting with
BetterinBlackall future project

Blackall Library Report

- - Members | Members
Month ZIE)(?L?)?ZSO 2L002%7251 \2/(I)Sllsta?2rts) \2/(I)Szlé?2ri Rzeoqlli;;(t)s Rzeoqz%%f Added | Added
2019/20 | 2020/21
July 233 233 478 389 14 3
August 243 263 415 371 26 14
September 233 266 436 401 29 11
October 335 216 459 389 21 4
November 277 434
December 273 213
January 589 389 34
February 256 376 25 4
March 246 213 72 3
April 100 63 100
May 211 126 51 1
June 177 318 13
Yg‘;rtéo 2173 978 3920 1550 295 90 12 32
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Tambo Library and Tourist Report

Members | Members
Loans Loans Visitors Visitors Requests | Requests Added Added
2019/20 | 2020/21 |2019/20 2020/21 2019/20 2020/21 2019/20 2019/20
July 571 710 203 138 107 65 7 3
August 444 419 132 125 76 52 2 6
September 405 465 156 144 39 52 2 3
October 419 414 121 137 88 114 5 3
November 412 119 61 4
December 411 172 37 3
January 444 127 82 0
February 449 108 56 8
March 402 91 75 1
April 150 40 47 1
May 294 81 96 6
June 515 124 56 5
Totals 4916 2008 1474 544 820 283 44 15
Visits 2019/20 Visits 2020/21
July 750 464
August 536 506
September 323 612
October 178 323
November 79
December 75
January 81
February 69
March 82
April 33
May 0
June 133
Totals 2339 1905

Blackall Visitor Information Centre

Information on Blackall and the region is placed outside the library/VIC at close of day to

ensure visitors have access to town and region information.

No information packs were requested by phone or email. Numerous phone calls are still

being received requesting information on what venues are currently open in Blackall.

The number of people self-registering at the Barcoo River Camp is higher than those who

apply for a permit at the VIC.
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The number of visitors and campers are up significantly compared to October last year.

These are the highest numbers recorded numbers in October since 2007.

Monthly Statistics:
Visitor Numbers to Blackall Tourist Information Centre

2019/2020 Visitor Numbers | 2020/2021 Visitor Numbers
July 2,483 | July 1,638
August 2,104 | August 1,985
September 933 | September 1,522
October 416 | October 941
November 101 [ November

December 34 | December

January 93 | January

February 18 | February

March 107 | March

April 0 | April

May 5| May

June 388 | June

Year to Date 6,682 | Year to Date 6,086

Issue of Camping Permits

. . . Total for Month
Month Information Centre Self - Registration 2020/21
July 198 139 337
August 230 131 361
September 140 291 431
October 81 166 247
November
December
January
February
March
April
May
June
Year to Date 653 717 1370
2019/2020 1075 1954 1954
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Camping Ground Fees
Month $ Amount 2020/2021 YTD $

July $3,370.00 $3,370.00
August $3,618.00 $6,988.00
September $4,318.00 $11,306.00

October $2,472.00 $13,483.00
November

December

January

February
March
April
May

June
Year ending 2019/2020 $24,232.00

Youth Program

e Operational — The Youth Officer has been providing activities online and deliveries for
activities to youth’s places.

e Youth Centre — Youth centre has opened doing inside and outside activities with COVID-

19 restrictions in place.

Smart Moves — 7™, 9", 14" 16", 215, 23 and 30™

Blackall Youth Group — 9™, 15™ 22" and 30™

Tambo Youth Group — 7", 14", 215t and 29

Breakfast Club — 8™, 15", 22" gnd 29"

Blackall Cooking — 15"

Tambo Cooking — 14"

Blackall Dance — Red Ridge Program — 12" and 19"

Tambo Dance — Red Ridge Program — 6™, 13" and 20"

Halloween Hunt — 30"

Annual Leave — 26", 27" and 28™

NAIDOC Colouring in Competition — 13"

Upcoming Events: November
¢ Nothing has been organised yet.

Qantas Report

Month Pax OFF Pax ON Total YTD
July 0 0 0 0
August 12 15 27 27
September 74 58 132 159
October 85 106 191 350
November
December
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January

February

March

April

May

June

6AMontth 28.5 20.83 58.33 58.33
verage

YTD 171 179 350 350

Total for

2018/2019 1121 823 1944 1944

60’s & Better

Operational Information:

No activities are being organized and no members attending due to lock down for the
month.

Allowing customers in one at a time to get books.

Keeping in touch with members via Facebook and phone.

KPI's set by Department of Communities is not currently being met with the 60 & Better
being closed.

Assisting with providing names of seniors in Blackall for the Christmas lunch.

Have liaised with owner of the old post office regarding the shift and have started packing.
Have been informed that the premises could be ready in a few weeks.

Tambo Multipurpose Centre

The centre has started Aqua fitness this month starting Tuesday and Thursday mornings
and Thursday afternoon.

The centre is organising Halloween this year, we have come up with a spooky bus to
drive around and deliver goodies to the children. We have encouraged the children to
still dress up and be waiting on the footpath with parents.

The centre has the Optometrist visiting this month for one day, then a revisit in the new
year.

The total amount of clients seen for the month of October:

Podiatry - 10 clients

Remedial Massage - 45 clients

Physiotherapy — 48 clients

The centre has signed up a new client, starting next month.
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Council Facility Bookings

30

Blackall Memorial Hall | Cultural Centre Showgrounds Racecourse Bus
19/20 | 20/21 19/20 20/21 19/20 20/21 | 19/20 | 20/21 | 19/20 | 20/21
July 10 11 1 4 9 4 1 0 1 0
August 9 11 4 11 3 4 1 0 1 12
September 2 11 5 12 1 9 1 0 2 8
October 1 2 1 11 1 11 1 2 2 3
November 2 9 2 2 5
December 3 4 3 0 0
January 0 2 2 0 1
February 11 8 0 0 4
March 7 4 1 0 3
April 0 0 0 0 0
May 0 0 0 0 0
June 8 2 0 0 0
TOTAL 37 35 48 38 32 28 10 2 25 23
Council Facility Bookings
Tambo Shire Hall Racecourse Western Sports Bus
19/20 | 20/21 19/20 20/21 19/20 20/21 | 19/20 | 20/21
July 1 8 1 0 1 0 3 0
August 6 13 2 0 0 0 5 1
September 1 6 3 1 1 1 5 1
October 10 7 0 1 0 1 6 2
November 8 1 1 2
December 5 0 0 0
January 1 1 0 0
February 5 2 0 3
March 4 1 0 0
April 4 3 1 3
May 5 2 1 5
June 2 2 1 3
TOTAL 47 34 18 2 6 2 40 4
Tambo Child Care Centre
Attendance Month YTD Month YTD
2019-2020 2019-2020 2020-2021 2020-2021
July 194 194 207 207
August 205 399 214 421
September 139 538 110 531
October 172 710 | 303 834
November 171 881
December 35 916
January 41 957
February 145 1102
March 157 1259
April 100 1359




May 73 1432
June 130 1562
Finance Month YTD Month YTD
Receipts Receipts Expenditure Expenditure
2020-2021 2020-2021 2020-2021 2020-2021
July $5,423.12 $5,423.12 $24,806.00 $24,806.00
August $15,175.09 $20,598.21 $27,094.00 $51,900.00
September $24,903.35 $45,501.56 $28,001.90 $83,508.90
October $14,462.60 $59,964.16 $25,197.85 $108,706.75
November
December
January
February
March
April
May
June

Link to Corporate Plan
Sustainable and Prosperous Economy
Tourism

Social

Arts and Culture
Childcare
Community Services
Community Spirit
Education

Helath

Sport and Recreation
Youth

Governance

Consultation (internal/external)
Neighbourhood Centre Coordinator
Tambo Library and Tourism Officer
Community Development Officer
Customer Service Officers
Multi-Purpose Coordinator

Child Care Coordinator

Library Officer

Tourism Officer

Policy Implications
Nil
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BLIJdget and Resource Implications
Ni
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BLACKALL-TAMBO REGIONAL COUNCIL Return to Agenda

Next Item
OFFICER REPORTS
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: 18 November 2020
Item No: 6.1.3
SUBJECT HEADING: Arts & Cultural Report — October 2020
Author and Officer's Title: Alastair Rutherford — Director of Finance Corporate and

Community Services
CLASSIFICATION: (if confidential)

Summary: The Arts and Cultural report is provided to Council

Officer's Recommendation: That Council receive the Arts and Cultural Report for
October 2020.

Background
o Arts Queensland — Playing Queensland Fund consultation participant

e Artour — presenter on virtual roadcase

Grassland Art Gallery:
Statistics: 651 visitors for Oct 2020 (295 in Oct 2019).
Facebook: 1929 followers
Current exhibition — Recovering the Past is an international photographic exhibition by lan
Alderman. This exhibition has been very well received by visitors to the gallery.
Two Sisters Talking by the Crombie sisters from Birdsville opens on Friday November 271,

Tambo Sawmill:

Currently the mill is not operating.

Transportation of the sawdust waste material, funded under the Regional Recycling Transport
Assistance Package Program, has commenced and to date 4000 cm has been shifted. There
is funding to shift a further 12000 cm.

Tourism:

Tiny Towns Tourism:

A page on the BT Tourism website is being created to enable online booking of three tours
initially, with capacity for more tours to be added.

Through the QTIC mentoring with Parker Travel it is being recommended that a booking
platform, Rezdy, is installed on the website. This is being investigated.

Matilda Way:
Matilda Way Facebook page has 7,036 followers.
Oct statistics:

Reach: 9,542
Post engagements: 2,689
Barcoo Way:

Currently there are 7066 followers.
Oct statistics:

Reach: 4514
Post engagements: 1,113
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EOI is being prepared to secure a consultant to develop a business case and strategic
implementation plan to repurpose the disused rail line into a dedicated cycling/walking track
to attract the adventure seeking tourist market to this unique part of Outback Queensland.

Blackall Tambo Visitor Information Facebook page has 2,565 followers.
Sept Statistics:
Reach: 15,218
Engagements: 1,524
Targeted Facebook marketing of the region to increase reach and grow following will
commence prior to next year’s tourist season.

Tambo Dam Lights Project:
Fabrication of the sculpture has commenced to ensure expenditure of the DCP prior to the
end of December.

RADF:
Round two will open the week commencing November 16™ and close early February.

Tambo Trucking Museum:

Preliminary earthworks commenced

Waiting on designs from Engineers to put out for tender
Agreement for truck loan/donation received

Collecting information and imagery for story boards
Sighage completed — ready for delivery

Corporate Plan:
Draft Corporate Plan, goals, strategies etc., has been completed.
Information pages to be finalised ready for compilation once approved by Council.

Saleyards:

Updating the Blackall Saleyards business plan.

Data is being collated and will be reported in a revised format that takes into account variable
factors, such as season, market and AUD, that impact on the numbers through the yards and
the overall profitability of the services (products) provided.

Funding:
Remote Airstrip Upgrade Program
Submission for $148,000 for PAPI lighting at the Blackall Aerodrome has been submitted.

Funding opportunities:

Building Better Regions (Federal): It will be a $200million round with $100million dedicated to
tourism-related infrastructure.

There are two streams of funding available under the program:

- Infrastructure Projects Stream

- Community Investments Stream

The Infrastructure Projects Stream supports projects which involve the construction of new
infrastructure, or the upgrade or extension of existing infrastructure that provide economic
and social benefits to regional and remote areas.

The Community Investments Stream funds the following community activities, new or
expanded local events, strategic regional plans, and leadership and capability strengthening
activities. These projects will deliver economic and social benefits to regional and remote
communities. Infrastructure activities are not eligible for the Community Investments Stream.
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SES Support Grant:
Grants of up to $75,000 for accommodation and $30,000 for motor vehicles are available.
A co-contribution is required (25%)

Link to Corporate Plan
Social

Arts and Cultural
Tourism

Economic Development

Consultation (internal/external)
Arts and Cultural Officer

Policy Implications
Nil

Budget and Resource Implications
Nil
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BLACKALL-TAMBO REGIONAL COUNCIL Return to Agenda

Next ltem
OFFICER REPORTS
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: 18 November 2020
Item No: 6.14
SUBJECT HEADING: Environmental Health Officer’s Report
Author and Officer's Title: Alastair Rutherford, Director of Finance Corporate and

Community Services
CLASSIFICATION: (if confidential)

Summary: The Environmental Health Officer’s report is provided to Council.

Officer's Recommendation: That Council receive the Environmental Health Officer’s
Report and note that six food licence renewals have been issued and one new food
licence has been granted.

Background
Food premises

Annual food business license renewals have been assessed and respective licenses issued
to six applicants.

A food business licence application has been received for a home-based business. Suitability
assessment of the premises has been carried out. The licence has been issued to the
applicant.

EHO consulted with an itinerant vendor (seafood) to reinforce the requirement to obtain a
permit for the commercial use of council-controlled areas, application for the permit has been
received in the interim.

Education strategies / continues improvement

EHO attended training “Body worn cameras”
EHO attended Standard Training Mental Health First Aid

Link to Corporate Plan
Environmental Management
Health

Consultation (internal/external)
Environmental Health Officer

Policy Implications
Nil

BLIJdget and Resource Implications
Ni
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BLACKALL-TAMBO REGIONAL COUNCIL Return to Agenda

Next Item
OFFICER REPORTS
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: 18 November 2020
Item No: 6.1.5
SUBJECT HEADING: Internal Audit and Risk Management Committee
Meeting held 12 October 2020
Author and Officer's Title: Alastair Rutherford, Director of Finance Corporate and

Community Services
CLASSIFICATION: (if confidential)

Summary: The Internal Audit and Risk Management Committee met on 12 October 2020.

Officer's Recommendation: That Council receive the minutes of the Internal Audit and
Risk Management Committee meeting held 12 October 2020.

Background
The Internal Audit and Risk Management Committee met on 12 October 2020.

The significant issues discussed were:
0] Review of the audited Annual Financial Statements for the financial year ended
30 June 2020.
(i) The Closing Report.
(iii) The Briefing Note.

Link to Corporate Plan

Governance

Asset and Financial Management

Effective Long-Term Financial Management

Consultation (internal/external)
Queensland Audit Office

Policy Implications
Nil

BlIJdget and Resource Implications
Ni
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Minutes of Internal Audit and Risk Management Committee Meeting — 12 October 2020

A/. Attendance

Cr Lindsay Russell

Cr Boyd Johnstone

Mr Alastair Rutherford
Mr Shalveen Dayal

Ms Megan Prow

Mr Tony Walsh

Mr Andrew Cornes
Mr. Kelly Graham

QAO Representative — Lisa Fraser

Open meeting at 10.00am

B/. Apologies

Nil

C/. Previous minutes of meeting 18 September 2020

Approved

Moved: Megan Prow Seconded: Cr. Johnstone
D/. Business arising out of minutes of previous meeting

Nil

E/. Agenda items

(i) The review of the audited Annual Financial Statements for year ended 30 June 2020.
(ii) The Closing Report
(iii) Briefing Note

Recommendation: that the audited annual financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2020,
the Closing Report, and the Briefing Note be received by the Internal Audit and Risk Management
Committee.

Moved: Cr. Russell Seconder: Cr. Johnstone

Recommendation: That the annual financial statements be signed by both the Mayor and the Chief
Executive Officer and the Management Representation letter be signed by the Chief Executive
Officer and the Director of Finance, Corporate and Community Services.

Moved: Cr. Russell Seconder: Cr. Johnstone
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Other Business

The next Internal Audit and Risk Management Committee meeting is to be held mid-February 2021.
The agenda to include the following items:

Fraud policies plans and assessments

Internal audit plan

IT Report

The meeting closed at 10.57am
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BLACKALL-TAMBO REGIONAL COUNCIL Return to Agenda

Next ltem
OFFICER REPORTS
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: 18 November 2020
Item No: 6.1.6
SUBJECT HEADING: Investment and Advertising Spending Policies
Author and Officer's Title: Alastair Rutherford, Director of Finance Corporate and

Community Services
CLASSIFICATION: (if confidential)

Summary: The Investment Policy and Advertising Spending Policy required reviewing.

Officer's Recommendation: That Council adopt:
1. The Investment Policy; and
2. The Advertising Spending Policy.

Background

The external auditors noted in their closing report to Council that the Investment and
Advertising policies had not been reviewed in the previous four years.

Accordingly, the two policies have now been reviewed and are submitted for Council’s
consideration.

Link to Corporate Plan

Governance

Asset and Financial Management

Effective Long-Term Financial Management

Consultation (internal/external)
CEO
Manager of Finance

Policy Implications
Nil

Budget and Resource Implications
Nil
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Blackall-Tambo
Regional Council

Investment Policy

Version Mumber: Eight Effective Date: 18 November 2020
Policy Compiled by: DFCCS Review Date: 17 November 2024
Policy Approved by: Chief Executive Officer

1. INTRODUCTION

Council generally has large sums of surplus funds available for investment at any one time. Interest on
these investments may represent a significant contribution to the income of Council.

The security of Council's investments must always be a priority.

2. LEGISLATIVE REQUIREMENT

The investment powers of Council are defined in the Statutory Bodies Financial Amangement Act 1382,

Section 47 reguires that a statutory body must use it best efforts to invest its funds-

{a) At the most advantageous interest rate available to it at the time of the investment for an investment
period of the proposed type; and

{b) In a way it considers is most appropriate in all the circumstances.

Section 191 of the Local Government Regulation 2012 requires a local government to prepare and adopt
an investment policy.

The investment policy musts ocutline Council's investment objectives and overall risk philosophy. The
policy must also state procedures for achieving the goals related to investment stated in the policy.

3. PHILOSOPHY

a) Strategy — to invest surplus Council funds in short term cash investments at the highest interest rate
available at the time of inwvestment while being cognizant of institutions providing a service to the
local community.

b) Risk — Council will limit is risk exposure by:
i) Using Queensland Treasury Corporation (QTC) as its default investment institution
iil) Investing the remaining funds with Australian financial institutions with a long-term credit
rating of BBB+ or greater
iili} Limiting the amount of funds invested with any one institution (other than QTC) to no more
than 50% of Council's total investments

iv) Ensuring two officers authorise the deposit and withdrawal of investment funds and
V) Reporting a summary of investments to each monthly Council meeting.
Document & Stat 17 Date Effective: Version: Exght Page 1 0of 3
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Investment Policy

™ Blackall-Tambo
Y

Regional Council
c) Objectives —
i To maximize revenue to Council
i} To ensure the security of Council's investments

iili} To minimize the risk exposure for Council's investments
iv) To support financial institutions that service the local community.

4. PROCEDURES

a) All Council funds not required for financial commitments are to be invested.
b} Council may only invest money in the following forms of investment:

i. Deposits with an Australian financial institution; or

i Deposits with Queensland Treasury Corporation.
c) Investments must be:

i At call; or

i For a fixed period of not more than twelve months.

d) Mo institution {other than QTC) shall hold more than 50% of Council's total investments
at the time the investment is made.

g) Mot less than $3,000,000 (whichever is the lesser) of Council's total investment is to be
held in on call investments.

f) At least two guotations shall be obtained from authorised institutions whenever an
investment, other than a deposit into an approved QTC fund, is proposed. Quotations
will be azsessed considering the objectives outlined in 3(c).

g) Two officers are to authorise the deposit and withdrawal of investment funds.

5. DELEGATION
The Chief Executive Officer may delegate authority to invest surplus funds in accordance with this
policy.

6. FINANCE REPORTING
The monthly financial report shall include details of Council’s investments at the end of each month.

7. POLICY REVIEW
This policy will be reviewed when any of the following occur:

1. As required by legislation
2. Other circumstances as determined by the Chief Executive Officer.

Motwithstanding the abowe, this policy is to be reviewed at intervals of no more than four (4) years.

Document &: Stat 17 Date Effective: Version: Exght Page 2 of 3
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Blackall-Tambo
Regional Council

Investment Policy

VERSION CONTROL

Version 1 23 June 2010
Version 2 8 June 2011

Version 3 31 July 2012

Version 4 23 July 2013

Version 5 8 July 2014

Version 6 30 June 2015
Version 7 20 July 2016

Document &: Stat 17 Date Effective: Version: Esght Page 3 of 3
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™ Blackall-Tambo
"~ Regional Council

Advertising Spending Policy

Version Mumber: Six Effective Date: 18 November 2020
Policy Compiled by: DFCCS Review Date: 17 November 2024
Procedure Approved by: Chief Executive Officer

1. Objective

The purpose of this advertising policy is to ensure that any spending on advertising by Council for the
period 18 November 2020 to 18 November 2024 complies with legislative reguirements and
appropriate only for Council operations.

2. Legal Requirement
Section 197 of the Local Government Regulation 2012 states that a Local Government must prepare an
Advertising Spending Policy.

The Council may spend money on advertising only

(&) IF:
a. Advertising is to provide information or education to the public;
b. The information or education is provided in the public interest; and
(B) Money is spent in a way that is consistent with Council's advertising spending policy.

3. Definition
Section 197(3) of the Local Government Regulation 2012 defines advertising as:

Promoting an idea, goods or services to the public for which a fee is paid.

Media for advertising includes newspapers, magazines, radio, television, electronic media (for example:
Council's website, social media, newsletters, brochures, posters, signage, banners, billboards and direct
miailouts).

4. Statement
4.1. Application

The Council may insure expenditure for advertising where the following apply:
» Advertising is required for the acquisition or disposal of property, plant and
equipment used (or to be used) for conduction Council business or operations;
= Advertising is required for Tenders or Expressions of Interest under the Local
Government Act 2009 and Council's Procurement Policy;
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» Advertising for recruitment purposes;

# To advise the public of new or continuing service or facility provided by Council.

# To advise the public about changes to an existing service or facility provided by
Council.

# To promote a change in behavior of people in the Council region for the

reasonable benefit of all, or some of the community (for example health lifestyles,

or responsible consumption of alcohol).

To advise the public of the time, place and content of scheduled meetings of the

Council.

To advise the public of decisions made by the Council at its meetings.

To invite comment on proposed policies, objectives or activities of Council.

To advertise matters required by legislation to be advertised.

To advertise matters as approved from time to time the Chief Executive Officer in

consultation with the Mayor.

P
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4.2, Advertising Expenditure not to be used for:

# The sole purpose of promoting the achievements or plans of individuals or a
group of individuals. Expenditure must be for the promotion of Council's interest
in any achievements or plans advertised.

+ The cost of advertisements of a self-promotional nature featuring one or more
Councilllors or containing quotations attributed to individual Councillors (this does
not preclude Councillors from appearing in unpaid publicity or publicity for which
the cost is not borne by Council).

# Dwring the three-month period immediately preceding an election of the Local
Government, Council is not to advertise:

o Information relating to future plans which have not been formally adopted
by Council;

o Promoting the activities of Council in a manner or form that is not
normally used by Council to advertise its activities.

5. Approval Process

Mo Council advertising is to be undertaken unless the necessary expenditure has been approved by the
Chief Executive Officer, or an officer to whom authority has been delegated to by the Chief Executive
Officer.

The officer approving any advertising expenditure must ensure that:
» The expenditure is in accordance with this policy;
» The costs of the advertising is appropriate for the number of people it is intended to inform and
there is a commensurate benefit to Council and the public;
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Blackall-Tambo
Regional Council

Advertising Spending Policy

» There is an approval in the annual budget for the advertising expenditure either as part of an
aggregated amount for Council advertising or as an amount which is part of an individual project;

» The expenditure is in accordance with normal procurement procedures as required under
Council's Procurement and Disposals Policy.

6. POLICY REVIEW
Thiz policy will be reviewed when any of the following occur:

1. As required by legislation
2. Other circumstances as determined by the Chief Executive Officer.

Motwithstanding the abowe, this policy is to be reviewed at intervals of no more than four (4) years.

VERSION CONTROL

‘Version 1 12 August 2009

Version 2 29 February 2012

Version 3 23 July 2013

Version 4 30 June 2015

Version 5 20 July 2016
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BLACKALL-TAMBO REGIONAL COUNCIL Return to Agenda

Next Item
OFFICER REPORTS
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: 18 November 2020
Item No: 6.1.7
SUBJECT HEADING: Annual Financial Statements and Queensland Audit
Office Report for the Year Ending 30 June 2020
Author and Officer's Title: Alastair Rutherford, Director of Finance Corporate and

Community Services
CLASSIFICATION: (if confidential)

Summary: The audit of the Annual Financial Statement for 30 June 2020 is now complete
and has been signed off by the Auditor-General.

Officer's Recommendation: That Council receive:
1. The audited annual financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2020; and
2. The Queensland Audit Office report for the year ended 30 June 2020; and
3. Council adopt the final draft of the 2019-2020 Annual Report.

Background

The audit of the Annual Financial Statement for 30 June 2020 is now complete and was
signed off by the Auditor-General on 13 October 2020.

The Auditor-General made the following comments in his Audit Report:
0] | received all the information and explanations | required.
(ii) In my opinion, the prescribed requirements in relation to the establishment and
keeping of accounts was complied with in all material aspects.

The Queensland Audit Office Final Management Report for the year ended 30 June 2020 is
also attached to this report.

The Final Management Report outlines issues that have been resolved and those that are
still outstanding with agreed dates for resolution.

Link to Corporate Plan

Governance

Asset and Financial Management

Effective Long-Term Financial Management

Consultation (internal/external)

CEO

Director of Finance Corporate and Community Services
Manager of Finance

Queensland Audit Office

Policy Implications

Nil

BLljdget and Resource Implications
Ni
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Message from the Mayor

2020 Mayoral Report.

The phrase “may you live in interesting times” is often quoted as an ancient Oriental curse, | have no idea of
the validity of the origin, but a year like the one just past for our nation in general could well have been that
origin.

The Outback however, by comparison, is having its time in the sun. Covid free, agricultural products across
the board setting all-time records, saleyards setting its own set of records, a fair proportion of our Shire
enjoying a better season than any number of the previous eight or nine and latterly one of the most intense,
though late, tourist seasons that is showing strong signs of lasting through the Christmas period and on
through next year.

The tourism participants are not the usual grey nomads however, although there are good numbers of them.
The new kids on the tourism block are the travellers who cannot travel overseas and are spending time and
money bringing their children and sometimes parents to the bush, in many cases re-tracing forbears time out
here and re-connecting with the strong origins of much of our Aussie culture. Magnificent news to your
Mayor, who has spent most his adult life lamenting the population drift away and consequent generational
dis-connect from the bush.

Western Councils recognised the potential for a Covid inspired disaster and took the opportunity to band
together under the banner of Western Queensland Alliance of Councils, comprising 21 Councils in the
North, Central and South West, representing 60% of the geography of our state, initially to strongly
advocate the western protocols around the Covid travel restrictions and now, broadly advocate all things
common to us in the Outback at all levels of Government.

As usual | wish to pay tribute to our Council staff, workforce and their families for their contribution to our
region’s progress and productivity.

Congratulations to our new Councillors and we all look forward to helping in making our region the best it
can be.

feth

Andrew Martin
Mayor




Chief Executive Officer’s Report

During the 2020 financial year the Blackall-Tambo Regional Council has been focussing on developing our
two communities through, roads, water, sewerage, beautification and tourism.

Roads have continued to be a major priority and is the biggest area of investment.
Kerb and channelling and street widening have occurred in both towns.
The Queensland Reconstruction Authority approved $15M of flood damage work and this is underway.

These works are being delivered by Council work crews and local contractors providing a full work
schedule.

Completed works include stage three of the Jericho Road sealing project with a further $5M being allocated
by the Department of Transport and Main Road for continuance of this work in 2020/2021.

One kilometre of the Tumbar Road has been sealed with multiple RMPC and R2R projects completed.

This year the Tambo bore was completed and the old bore capped. Council resolved to draw down $400,000
in borrowings from Queensland Treasury Corporation to partly fund the cost of $789,200.

Several major items of plant were purchased consistent with the plant replacement program.

Capital projects over the 2019/2020 financial year include the purchase of a grandstand at the Tambo cricket
field, extension to the Pathway to Health, lighting upgrade of Banks Park and Shamrock Street, Blackall
Town Entrance Welcome Sign, Tambo Sports Ground Dressing Sheds, installation of emergency generators,
fencing for the Tambo Pound Paddock and upgrades to the Blackall Saleyards which continues to excel as a
sale and spelling facility.

January 2020 saw the adoption of the Blackall-Tambo Region Planning Scheme. This is a significant
milestone as it is a single planning scheme and was prepared in accordance with the State Government
legislative framework and mandatory guidelines.

The local elections were held on March 2020 with the new Council making their declaration of office on
14™ April 2020.

Unfortunately, COVID-19 put a halt to the community events at the beginning of 2020, but in-kind support
has been provided to community groups and associations. COVID-19 also saw a late start to the usual
tourist season, but the workforce worked hard to ensure the community was informed and public areas
sanitised.

We look forward to continuing our service to the community in 2020-21.

D A Howard
Chief Executive Officer



Community Financial Report (section 184 Local Government Regulation 2012)

Significant events affecting community assets and an analysis of the revenue compared to expenditure:

The total income received for the year is $23.6M while the total expenditure incurred is $28.4M giving a net
result of $4.8M deficit.

Rates, levies and charges received for the year is $4.9M compared to $4.8M for the previous year.

Grants, subsidies, contributions and donations for the year is $9.0M compared to $6.3M for the previous year.
A further $3.2M in grants was received in the year and its recognition has been deferred at year end until the
work is done.

Fees and charges received for the year is $1.9M compared to $1.1M for the previous year mainly due to the
increase in the Blackall Sale Yard fees.

Sales revenue from recoverable road works contracts with the Department of Transport and Main Roads for
the year is $4.5M down from $9.5M last year.

During 2019/2020 the State Government announced a second round of the Work for Queensland program
providing $1.09M for projects to be completed by 30 June 2021. These projects are: Parks Solar Lighting,
Shaded Seating for Tambo Cricket Ground, New Fencing for the Tambo Pound, Pathway to Health Extension,
Tambo Swimming Pool Plaster and Repaint, Blackall Indoor Cricket, Shamrock Street Widening and Kerbing,
Dressing Rooms and Showers for the Tambo Western Sports Complex.

In 2019/2020 the Federal Government announced funding from the Drought Communities Program of $1.0M
for the following projects; Back-up Fuel Supply, Blackall-Tambo Park Beautification, Saleyards canteen
upgrade, Entrance to Blackall welcoming sign, Tambo Dam Lights, Water and Sewer Main upgrades, Tambo
Western Sports Complex upgrade. These projects require to be completed by 31 December 2020.

In 2019/2020 the State Government announced a COVID Work for Queensland program providing $1.07M
for projects to be completed by 30 June 2021. These projects are: Extension to Pathway to Health, Blackall
Tourism Display, Blackall and Tambo Pools Shade Structure, Tambo Pool Disability Chair, Magpies Club
House, Sale Yards Selling Pens, Tambo Weighbridge Upgrade, Blackall Water and Sewerage Upgrade.
These projects are required to be complete by 30 June 2021.

The State government also announced a further round of the Building our Regions program and have provided
funding of $454,900 for the Tambo Trucking Museum and $200,000 to continue with the rural internet
expansion.

With the recurrent revenue base under a degree of pressure, Council continues to seek external funds as well
as tendering for external roadwork jobs to supplement local funds. Works projected to be undertaken by
Council under contract to Department of Transport and Main Roads include a continuance of the sealing of
the Blackall-Jericho Road, replacement of the Tambo Barcoo River Bridge, rehabilitation of the Isisford Road,
and work on the Springsure Road. The funds derived from these activities will contribute significantly to
economic development and social improvements for businesses and residents alike.

The Council road network continues to be well maintained through funding from the Financial Assistance
Grant, TIDS, TMR and the Roads to Recovery program. Water, sewerage and waste management
infrastructure assets are also maintained and renewed to meet service delivery demands.

The increases in fees and charges reflects the movement in the consumer price index where applicable.
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Recurrent Revenue 2019/2020
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Extension to Pathway to Health

Recurrent expenses total $26.2M; employee costs are slightly down at
35%, materials and services are slightly up at 41%, depreciation is down
to 24%, and finance costs are at 0.3%. Employee costs include staff and
related employee expenses while materials and services include such
items as general operating costs to maintain and operate services to the
region.

During 2017-2018 Council negotiated a new Enterprise Bargaining
Agreement with Council staff which became effective on the 1 July 2018
and expires on the 30 June 2021.

The five-year revaluation of all non-current assets was undertaken
during the year by APV Asset Valuers. While depreciation is a hon-
cash item, it is used as a guide to help Council retain enough funds to
meet the costs of future renewal of assets.

Borrowing of funds is used for long term assets to reduce inter-generational inequity and is applicable for new
assets and the major upgrade of existing assets. Council increased its borrowings by $400,000 in the 2019/2020
financial year to fund the replacement of the Tambo Bore. The total cost of replacing the Tambo Bore was
$789,200 with Council paying the balance of $389,200.

A summary of Council’s debt levels is expressed in the figures below indicating that Council debt remains at
a manageable level.
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Resolutions (section 185 Local Government Regulation 2012)
Council did not make any changes to the policies referred to in sections 250(1) and 206(2) of the Regulation
during the 2019-2020 financial year. The referred policies are the expense reimbursement policy subsequently

updated on the 17 July 2019 and the asset recognition thresholds policy subsequently updated on the 18
September 2019.

Councillors (section 186 Local Government Regulation 2012)

(1 Remuneration schedule

The Local Government Remuneration and Discipline Tribunal sets the maximum levels of remuneration that
can be paid to Councillors annually.

Annual Meeting Total
Position Remuneration* | Allowance** Allowance
Mayor Allowance $83,293.20 Nil $83,293.20
Deputy Mayor Allowance $42,154.56 Nil $42,154.56
Councillor Allowance $22,992.84 $11,496.36 $34,489.20

* The allowance is paid in twelve equal instalments at the end of each calendar month.
** One twelfth of the meeting allowance is paid for each monthly meeting attended.
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(ii) Councillor remuneration and meeting attendance — 1 July 2019 to 30 June 2020

General Special Superannuation

Councillor Meeting Meeting Remuneration Expenses Total

Attendance | Attendance Incurred Remuneration
Cr A Martin 14 2 $83,293.20 - $83,293.20
Cr L Russell 13 2 $42,154.56 - $42,154.56
Cr P Heumiller 9 0 $25,866.90 - $25,866.90
Cr G Schluter 5 2 $8,622.30 - $8,622.30
Cr G Jarvis 9 0 $25,866.90 - $25,866.90
Cr B Johnstone 14 2 $34,489.20 - $34,489.20
Cr P Pullos 14 2 $34,489.20 — $34,489.20
Cr J Scobie 14 2 $34,489.20 - $34,489.20
Cr D Hardie 5 2 $8,622.30 $8,622.30

At the Local Government Council elections held 28 March 2020 Councillor Hardie and Councillor Schluter
were elected to Council.

Councillor Heumiller was not returned and Councillor Jarvis resigned in 18 March 2020 prior to the
elections.




(iii) Conduct and performance of Councillors (section 186 (d), (e), (f) Local Government Regulation

2012)

Section Details Number
186(1)(F)(i) Complaints referred to the assessor under section 150 P(2)(a) of the

Act — government entity must refer complaint to the assessor Nil
186(1)(f)(i1) Matters, mentioned in section 150 P (3) of the Act, notified to the

Crime and Corruption Commission Nil
186(1)(f)(iii) Notices given under section 150 R (2) of the Act — local government

official must give the assessor a notice about councilor’s conduct Nil
186(1)(F)(iv) Notices given under section 150 S (2)(a) of the Act — inappropriate

conduct on 3 occasions during a period of 1 year Nil
186(1)(f)(v) Decisions made under section 150 W(a)(b)(c) of the Act — assessor’s

action after investigating conduct of a councillor 1
186(1)(F)(vi) Referral notices accompanied by a recommendation mentioned in

section 150 AC(3)(a) of the Act — referral by assessor to council Nil
186(1)(f)(vii) | Occasions information was given under section 150 AF(4)(a) of the

Act Nil

— information provided to the assessor while investigating
186(1)(f)(viii) | Occasions the Council asked another entity to investigate the

suspected inappropriate conduct of a councillor Nil
186(1)(F)(ix) Applications heard by the conduct tribunal about the alleged

misconduct of a councillor Nil

Administrative complaints (section 187 Local Government Regulation 2012)

Council has adopted a policy “General Complaints (Administrative Actions) Policy” and a “General
Complaints (Administrative Actions) Procedure”.

The procedure is broken down into three stages:

Q) Complaints are initially managed and resolved by the CEO. The CEO can refer a complaint to a
head of department (HOD).

(i) Unresolved complaints are referred to council for review and response.

(iti)  People who are not happy with the way council has handles their complaint can contact the
Queensland Ombudsman for help.

It is the Council’s intent to provide a level of customer service that does not attract complaints, but
acknowledges the rights of persons to provide feedback, both positive and negative, on its services and / or
to lodge a complaint about a decision or other action Council takes.

The complaints process has been instituted to ensure that, to the greatest practical extent, any complaint is
dealt with fairly, promptly, professionally, in confidence subject to any legal requirement, and in a manner
respectful to the complainant.



Administrative complaints made
during the 2019/2020 financial year

Number of complaints resolved
under the complaint’s management
process

Number of complaints not resolved Nil
under the complaint’s management
process

Human Rights (Section 97 Human Rights Act 2019)

During the financial year 2019/2020 Council did not receive any correspondence from the Human Rights
Commission where a response was required.

Overseas travel (section 188 Local Government Regulation 2012)

No overseas travel was undertaken during the financial year.

Grant Expenditure to Community Groups (section 189 Local Government Regulation 2012)

In accordance with section 189 of the Local Government Regulation 2012, the following information is

provided concerning expenditure on grants to community organisations. The Council does not operate
discretionary funds.

Description Amount

Expenditure on grants and sponsorships to community organisations $248,451
In-kind support to community organisations $21,369
Total $269,820

Other Contents (section 190 Local Government Regulation 2012)

Joint Activities

Council has a signed agreement with the Longreach and Barcaldine Regional Councils whereby the
Environmental Health Officer employed by Longreach Regional Council is required to work for both the
Barcaldine and Blackall-Tambo Regional Councils with costs being shared equally.

Corporate and operational plans

Council is required to adopt a Corporate Plan to guide Council’s decision making. This document establishes
the framework and identifies goals, objectives and strategies to be pursued by Council to meet the aspirations

and needs of the community. The plan is developed in consultation with the community and can be revised
at any time during the life of the plan to ensure council is following its strategic direction.
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The Operational Plan is prepared annually and outlines Council’s work program for the next financial year
including costs and completion timelines. This document is subject to quarterly reviews and must be consistent
with the Council’s Corporate Plan.

In accordance with legislative requirements, Council reviewed the operational plan on four occasions relevant
to the financial period and in each instance, Council considered an assessment of its progress in the
implementation of the operational plan as being satisfactory. Council receives a written assessment of the
implementation of the operational plan at the end of each quarter.

The Corporate Plan for 2020 to 2024 is in the process of completion.

Registers and public documents

Item Description Access
Register of personal To record certain financial and other | Councillor’s interests are
interests of Councillors personal interests of Councillors. available on Council’s website.
Register of personal interest | To record certain financial and other Available only to Councillors,
of Chief Executive Officer | personal interests of the Chief the Chief Executive Officer or a
and other specified Executive Officer and certain other person permitted by law.
employees employees.
Register of Delegations of | To record all powers delegated by the | Available on Council’s website.
Authority by Council. Local Government or the Chief
Executive Officer’s delegated powers.
Register of Local Laws To record all local laws set by Council. | Available on Council’s website.
Register of Policies To record the current policies as set by | Available on Council’s website.
Council.
Register of Legal To hold a record of all legal documents. | Available to any person.
Documents
Register of Fees and To record all fees and charges levied by | Available on Council’s website.
Charges Council.
Cemetery Register To record all burial sites. Available to any person.
Operational Plan To document the goals and strategies set | Available on Council’s website.
by Council for the period specified in
each plan.
Annual Report To document the financial position and | Available on Council’s website.

report on attainment of goals specified in
the Corporate Plan and Operational Plan.

Concessions for rates and charges granted by Council

Q) A 15 % discount on general rates if paid by the due date.
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(i) Eligible pensioners in receipt of a full pension and having a State Government Concession Card
receive a Council pensioner rate remission up to a maximum of $340.00 per annum.

(iii)  Council also provides administrative support to the State Government Pensioner Rate Subsidy
Scheme.

(iv)  Council considers requests from Community organizations for the waiver of fees for the use of
community facilities.

Internal Audit

At the general meeting 19 June 2019 Council adopted a resolution to form an Audit and Risk Committee to
improve transparency as well as the oversight process.

During 2019/2020 the Audit and Risk Management Committee met three times:
(i) approve the audit charter and plan

(ii) review internal audit reports on purchasing, payments, creditors

(iii) review risk management policies

(iv) review internal audit reports on governance and legislative compliance

(v) review accounting position papers

(vi) review draft annual financial statements

Competitive Neutrality

Council has not been required to issue any investigation notices in the financial year under section 49 of the
competitive neutrality complaints procedures.

Council has not been required to respond to any Queensland Competition Authority recommendations as per
section 52 (3).

Beneficial Enterprises and business activities
There were no significant business activities during the financial year ended 30 June 2020.

There was no commercialisation, or full cost pricing of a significant business activity in the financial year
ended 30 June 2020.

Senior staff remuneration (Local Government Act 2009 section 201)
Total of all remuneration packages payable to senior management $823,780

One (2) senior contract employee with a total remuneration package in the range of $200,000 - $300,000
Two (2) senior contract employees with a total remuneration package in the range of $100,000 - $200,000

Public Service Ethics 1994 (section 23)

Council has implemented the code of conduct and undertaken regular education, training and review of
procedures.

The Employee Code of Conduct was amended and adopted by Council on the 20 February 2019.

12
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Blackall-Tambo Regional Council

Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 30 June 2020

Income
Recurrent revenue
Rates, levies and charges
Fees and charges
Sales revenue
Grants, subsidies, contributions and donations

Capital revenue
Grants, subsidies, contributions and donations
Total capital revenue

Rental income

Interest received

Other income
Total income

Expenses
Recurrent expenses
Employee benefits
Materials and services
Finance costs
Depreciation of property plant and equipment
Amortisation of intangible assets

Capital expenses
Total expenses

Net result

Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be classified to net result

Increase / (decrease) in asset revaluation surplus

Total other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year

2020 2019
Note $ $
3(a) 4,882,981 4,796,969
3(b) 1,913,598 1,073,285
3(c) 4,477,818 9,470,606
3(d) 8,995,293 6,295,296
20,269,690 21,636,156
3(d) 2,695,670 4,121,114
2,695,670 " 4,121,114
3(e) 183,792 205,732
4 299,847 301,029
167,564 480,711
23,616,563 26,744,742
6 (9,415,721) (8,968,889)
7 (10,539,153) (9,859,992)
8 (75,688) (86,613)
11 (6,148,139) (6,059,340)
12 (11,396) (11,396)
(26,190,097) (24,986,230)
5 (2,185,254) (1,382,477)
(28,375,351) (26,368,707)
(4,758,788) 376,035
17 57,382,001 -
57,382,001 -
52,623,213 376,035

The comparatives have not been restated on adoption of AASB 15/ 1058 and AASB 16 and therefore the comparative information is

presented using the previous standards relating to revenue and leases.

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes and Significant Accounting Policies.



Blackall-Tambo Regional Council
Statement of Financial Position

Total community equity

As at 30 June 2020
2020 2019
Note $ $

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 9 17,167,909 14,266,719
Trade and other receivables 10 2,569,244 2,463,367
Inventories 142,307 145,637
Total current assets 19,879,460 16,875,723
‘Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 11 278,121,691 224,655,611
Intangible assets 12 191,557 202,953
Total non-current assets 278,313,248 224 858,564
Total assets 298,192,708 241,734,287
Current liabilities
Contract liabilities 13 3,193,798 -
Trade and other payables 14 2,342,333 1,658,501
Borrowings 15 96,285 56,362
Provisions 16 1,130,304 984,589
Total current liabilities 6,762,720 2,699,452
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 15 1,629,965 1,326,134
Provisions 16 551,279 538,170
Total non-current liabilities 2,181,244 1,864,304
Total liabilities 8,943,964 4,563,756
Net community assets 289,248,744 237,170,531
Community equity
Asset revaluation surplus 17 176,896,116 -
Retained surplus 112,352,628 117,656,416

289,248,744 117,656,416

The comparatives have not been restated on adoption of AASB 15 / 1058 and AASB 16 and therefore the comparative information is
presented using the previous standards relating to revenue and leases.

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes and Significant Accounting Policies.



Blackall-Tambo Regional Council

Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 30 June 2020

Balance as at 1 July 2019
Adjustment on initial application of AASB 15 and AASB 1058
Restated balance at 1 July 2019

Net resuit
Other comprehensive income for the year

Increase / (decrease) in asset revaluation surplus
Total comprehensive income for the year

Balance as at 30 June 2020

Balance as at 1 July 2018

Net result
Other comprehensive income for the year

Increase / (decrease) in asset revaluation surplus
Total comprehensive income for the year

Balance as at 30 June 2019

Asset Retained Total
revaluation surplus
surplus
Note 17
$ $ $
119,514,115 117,656,416 237,170,531
- (545,000) (545,000)
119,514,115 117,111,416 236,625,531
- (4,758,788) (4,758,788)
57,382,001 - 57,382,001
57,382,001 (4,758,788) 52,623,213
176,896,116 112,352,628 289,248,744
119,614,115 117,280,381 236,794,496
- 376,035 376,035
- 376,035 376,035
119,514,115 117,656,416 237,170,531

The comparatives have not been restated on adoption of AASB 15/ 1058 and AASB 16 and therefore the comparative
information is presented using the previous standards relating to revenue and leases.

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes and Significant Accounting Policies.



Blackall-Tambo Regional Council
Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 30 June 2020

Note 2020 2019
$ $

Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts from customers 12,744,040 16,220,839
Payments to suppliers and employees (20,544,984) (19,775,574)

(7,800,944) (3,554,735)
Interest received 299,847 301,029
Rental income 184,128 205,732
Non capital grants and contributions 11,878,681 6,295,296
Borrowing costs (49,804) (72,583)
Net cash inflow (outflow) from operating activities 23 4,511,808 3,174,739
Cash flows from investing activities
Payments for property, plant and equipment (4,895,430) (7,494,958)
Short term investments - 6,000,000
Proceeds from sale of property plant and equipment 479,878 1,245,506
Grants, subsidies, contributions and donations 2,461,180 4,121,114
Net cash inflow (outflow) from investing activities (1,954,372) 3,871,662
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings 400,000 -
Repayment of borrowings (56,246) (557,038)
Net cash inflow (outflow) from financing activities 343,754 (657,038)
Net increase (decrease) in cash held 2,901,190 6,489,363
Cash at beginning of the financial year 14,266,719 7,777,356
Cash at end of the financial year 9 17,167,909 14,266,719

The comparatives have not been restated on adoption of AASB 15 / 1058 and AASB 16 and therefore the comparative information
is presented using the previous standards relating to revenue and leases.

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes and Significant Accounting Policies.



Blackall-Tambo Regional Council
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2020

1

1A

1B

1.C

Significant accounting policies

Basis of preparation

Blackall-Tambo Regional Council is constituted under the Queensland Local Government Act 2009 and is domiciled in Australia.

These general purpose financial statements for the period 1 July 2019 to 30 June 2020 have been prepared in accordance with all
Australian Accounting Standards, Australian Accounting Interpretations and other pronouncements issued by the Australian
Accounting Standards Board. They also comply with the requirements of the Local Government Act 2009 and the Local Government

Regulation 2012.

These financial statements comply with Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued by the Australian Accounting
Standards Board (AASB). Council is a not-for profit entity for financial reporting purposes and complies with Australian Accounting
Standards as applicable to not-for profit entities.

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for the revaluation of certain classes of
property, plant and equipment and investment property.

Currency

Council uses the Australian dollar as its functional currency and its presentation currency.

Adoption of new and revised Accounting Standards

In the current year Council adopted all of the new and revised Standards and Interpretations issued by the Australian Accounting
Standards Board (AASB) that are relevant to its operations and effective for the current reporting period.

AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers; AASB 1058 Income of Not-for-Profit Entities and AASB 2016-8
Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Australian Implementation Guidance for Not-for-Profit Entities

AASB 1058 clarifies and simplifies the income recognit'ion requirements that apply to not-to-profit (NFP) entities, in conjunction with
AASB 15, and AASB 2016-8. These Standards supersede the majority of income recognition requirements relating to public sector
NFP entities, previously in AASB 1004 Contributions.

This year Council applied AASB15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers and AASB 1058 Income of Not for Profit Entities for the
first time. These standards had an impact on the reported position and performance. Refer to the change in accounting policy note 21

for transition disclosures.

AASB 16 Leases

This year Council has applied AASB16 Leases for the first time. AASB 16 introduces a single, on-balance sheet lease accounting
model for lessees. A lessee recognises a right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset and a lease liability
representing its obligation to make lease payments. There are recognition exemptions for short-term leases and leases of low-value
items. Lessor accounting remains similar to the current standard - i.e. lessors continue to classify leases as finance or operating

leases.

Leases in which the Council is a lessee

The Gouncil currently leases IT equipment only and has elected not to recognise IT equipment leases under the AASB 16 as they have
been assessed as being low-value assets under the standard

The Council does not currently have any finance leases.

Based on Council's assessment, first-time adoption of AASB 16 for the year ending 30 June 2020 has had no impact on assets,
liabilities, equity and net result. Council has used the exception to lease accounting for short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets, and the lease expense relating to these leases is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income on a straight-line

basis.



Blackall-Tambo Regional Council
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2020

1.D

1.E

1.F

1.G

1.H

Note 1.C Adoption of new and revised Accounting Standards (continued)

Standards issued by the AASB not yet effective

Some Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations have been issued but are not yet effective. Those standards have not been
applied in these financial statements Council will implement them when they are effective. The standards that could be applicable to
Council are:

Standard Effective for annual
report periods
beainning on or after:

AASB 17 Insurance Contracts 1 January 2021
AASB 1059 Service Concession Arrangements: Grantors 1 January 2020
AASB 2018-6 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Definition of a Business 1 January 2020
AASB 2018-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Definition of Material 1 January 2020
AASB 2019-3 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Interest Rate Benchmark Reform 1 January 2020

Council has not applied any Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations that have been issued but are not yet effective.
Generally Council applies Standards and Interpretations in accordance with their respective commencement dates.

Estimates and judgements

Where necessary, judgements, estimates and assumptions have been used in preparing these financial statements. These are
based on the best information available to Council at the time, however due to the passage of time, these assumptions

may change and therefore the recorded balances may not reflect the final outcomes. Those that have a significant effect or risk of
causing an adjustment to council's assets or liabilities relate to:

Valuation of property, plant and equipment - Note 11
Provisions - Note 16

Contingent liabilities - Note 19

Financial instruments and financial risk management - Note 26

National cqmpetition policy

Council has reviewed its activities to identify its business activities. Council has resolved not to apply the code of competitive conduct
to any of its prescribed activities.

Rounding and comparatives

The financial statements are in Australian dollars and have been rounded to the nearest $1.
Comparative information is generally restated for reclassifications, errors and changes in accounting policies unless permitted

otherwise by transition rules in a new Accounting Standard.
Volunteer services

Council's dependence on volunteer services is not material and is not recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Taxation

Council is exempt from income tax, however Council is subject to Fringe Benefits Tax and Goods and Services Tax (‘'GST’). The net
amotunt of GST recoverable from the ATO or payable to the ATO is shown as an asset or liability respectively.



Blackall-Tambo Regional Council
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2020

2

2(a)

Analysis of results by function
Components of Council functions

The activities relating to the Council's components reported on in Note 2(b) are as follows :

Corporate Services

The corporate services function includes corporate governance and financial administration of Council.

The objective of corporate governance is for Council to be accountable and transparent in delivering value for
money community outcomes. This function includes strategic and operational planning, risk management, legal
and administrative support. This comprises the support functions for the Mayor and Councillors, Council and
committee meetings and statutory requirements.

Finance and information provides professional finance and information services across Council. This function
includes internal audit, budget support, financial accounting and information technology services. The objective of
this function is to provide reliable information in a timely manner to support decision making and mest statutory
obligations.

Community services

The goal of community services function is to provide effective social, recreational and health services. The
function includes libraries, community buildings, recreation venues, social support, care and disability services.

Planning and development

This function manages building and development approvals in the shire. The goal of this function is to ensure
compliance with building standards and sustainable development practices. Council's planning scheme aims to
service development through trunk infrastructure planning.

Transport infrastructure

This function includes construction and maintenance of Council and State government controlled roads, town
streets, stormwater drainage, footpaths and aerodromes. The goal of the transport function is to provide a transport
network that is accessible and safe for public use.

Waste management

Waste management function provides refuse collection and disposal services. The goal of the waste management
program is to manage waste in a way that protects the community and the environment.

Water infrastructure

The water services function attends to the maintenance of water supply infrastructure with the goal of delivering
sustainable water services that meets health standards and minimises waste.

Sewerage infrastructure

The sewerage services function attends to the maintenance of sewerage infrastructure with the goal of delivering a
reliable sewerage network that is environmentally friendly.
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Blackall-Tambo Regionai Council
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2020

(a

)

AASB 15 AASB 1058
Note $ $
3 Revenue
Revenue recognised at a point in time
Rates, levies and charges (excluding those related to services) 3(a) - 4,882,981
Grants, subsidies, donations and contributions 3(d) 310,312 5,390,366
Fees and charges 3(b) 1,913,598 -
Sale of goods and services 3(c) 4,477,818 -
6,701,728 10,273,347
Revenue recognised over time
Grants and subsidies 3(d) 3,294,615 -
Revenue relating to grants for assets controlied by Council 3(d) - 3,240,670
3,294,615 3,240,670
2020 2019
$ $
Rates, levies and charges
General rates 3,604,254 3,541,798
Water 823,649 808,861
Sewerage 706,433 693,983
Garbage charges 309,135 303,572
Total rates and utility charge revenue 5,443,471 5,348,214
Less: Discounts (506,736) (498,584)
Less: Pensioner remissions (53,754) (52,661)
4,882,981 4,796,969

(b

~

2020 accounting policy: Rates and annual charges are recognised as revenue when the council obtains contro! over the assets
comprising these receipts which is the beginning of the rating period to which they relate. Prepaid rates are recognised as a
financial liability until the beginning of the rating period.

2019 accounting policy: Rates are recognised as revenue at the start of the rating period. If a ratepayer pays their rates before
the start of the rating period, they are recognised as revenue when they are received.

Fees and charges

Saleyard fees 1,363,534 560,443
Building and development fees 35,135 9,907
Agistment/Town Common fees 87,109 119,059
Childcare fees 32,201 39,687
Cemetery/Funeral fees 72,070 51,037
Licences and registrations 4,239 5,160
Commissions 58,716 65,268
Hire of Community facilities 4,324 6,825
Airport landing fees 119,654 137,936
Other fees and charges 136,616 77,963

1,913,598 1,073,285

2020 accounting policy: Revenue arising from fees and charges is recognised when or as the performance obligation is
completed and the customer receives the benefit of the goods / services being provided.

The performance obligation relates to the specific services which are provided to the customers and generally the payment
terms are within 30 days of the provision of the service or in some cases, the customer is required to pay on arrival, for
example caravan parks. There is no material obligation for Council in relation to refunds or returns.

Licences granted by Councit are all either short-term or low value and all revenue from licences is recognised at the time that
the licence is granted rather than the term of the licence.

2019 accounting policy: Fees and charges are recognised when council is unconditionally entitled to those funds. Generally
this is upon lodgement of the relevant applications or documents or when the service is provided.



Blackall-Tambo Regional Council
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2020

Note 3 Revenue (continued)

2020 2019
$ $
(c) Sales revenue
Sale of services
Contract and recoverable works 4,281,235 9,282,007
Private Works 174,089 150,582
4,455,324 9,432,589
Sale of goods
Visitor Information Centre 22,494 38,017
22,494 38,017
Total sales revenue 4477.818 9,470,606

{d)

Sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership are transferred to the buyer, generally when
the customer has taken undisputed delivery of the goods. Revenue from services is recognised when the service is rendered.

Council generates revenue from a number of services including child care, motor vehicle repairs and contracts for road and

earthworks. Revenue from contracts and recoverable works generally comprises a recoupment of material costs together with
an hourly charge for use of equipment and employees. Contract revenue and associated costs are recognised by reference to
the stage of completion of the contract activity based on costs incurred at the reporting date. Where consideration is received
for the service in advance it is included as a liability and is recognised as revenue in the period when the service is performed.

Grants, subsidies, contributions and donations

2020 accounting policy:

Grant income under AASB 15

Where grant income arises from an agreement which is enforceable and contains sufficiently specific performance obligations
then the revenue is recognised when contro! of each performance obligations is satisfied.

The performance obligations are varied based on the agreement. Payment terms vary depending on the terms of the grant,
cash is received upfront for some grants and on the achievement of certain payment milestones for others.

Each performance obligation is considered to ensure that the revenue recognition reflects the transfer of control and within
grant agreements there may be some performance obligations where control transfers at a point in time and others which have
continuous transfer of control over the life of the contract.

Where control is transferred over time, generally the input methods being either costs or time incurred are deemed to be the
most appropriate methods to reflect the transfer of benefit.

Grant income under AASB 1058

Assets arising from grants in the scope of AASB 1058 is recognised at the assets fair value when the asset is received.
Councils considers whether there are any related liability or equity items associated with the asset which are recognised in
accordance with the relevant accounting standard.

Once the assets and liabilities have been recognised then income is recognised for any remaining asset value at the time that
the asset is received.

Capital grants

Capital grants received to enable Council to acquire or construct an item of property, plant and equipment to identified
specifications which will be under Council’s control and which is enforceable are recognised as revenue as and when the
obligation to construct or purchase is completed.

For construction projects, this is generally as the construction progresses in accordance with costs incurred since this is
deemed to be the most appropriate measure of the completeness of the construction project as there is no profit margin.
Where assets are donated or purchased for significantly below fair value, the revenue is recognised when the asset is acquired
and controlled by the Council.

2019 accounting policy:

Grants, subsidies, donations and contributions that are non-reciprocal in nature are recognised as revenue when Council
obtains control over them, which is usually upon receipt of funds. Where grants are received that are reciprocal in nature,
revenue is recognised as the various performance obligations under the funding agreement are fuffilled. In 2019 , Council did
not have any reciprocal grants.

10



Blackalil-Tambo Regional Council
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2020

M

(in

(e)

Note 3(d} Grants, subsidies, contributions and donations (continued)

2020 2019

$ $
Recurrent
General purpose grants - 4,300,453 4,227,900
State government subsidies and grants 506,932 671,175
Flood restoration funding 3,294,615 805,006
Commonwealth government subsidies and grants 893,212 574,683
Donations 81 16,532

8,995 293 6,295,296
Capital
State government subsidies and grants 1,128,293 2,070,063
Commonwealth government subsidies and grants 1,567,377 - 2,061,051

2,695,670 4,121,114

Capital revenue includes grants and subsidies received which are tied to specific projects for the replacement or upgrade of
existing non-current assets and/or investment in new assets.

Rental income

Commercial property rental 61,897 95,695
Accommodation rental income 121,895 110,037
183,792 205,732

Rental revenue from investment and other property is recognised as income on a periodic straight line basis over the lease
term.

Interest income

Interest received

Interest received from term deposits . 273,085 269,256
Interest from overdue rates and utility charges 26,762 31,773
299.847 301,029

Interest received from term deposits is accrued over the term of the investment.

Capital expenses

Gain / loss on disposal of non-current assets

Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment 469,081 1,203,415
Less: Book value of property, plant and equipment disposed of (541,552) (1,301,447)
(72,471) (98,032)
Proceeds from sale of land and improvements 10,797 42,091
Less: Book value of fand sold (25,230) (93,472)
(14,433) (51,381)
Loss on disposal of infrastructure assets for no consideration* (1,187,946) -
Write off of infrastructure and building assets (910,404) (1,233,064)
(2,098,350) (1,233,064)
Total capital income/(loss) (2,185,254) (1,382,477)

* Council transferred ownership of the Blackall-Tambo Internet Connecitivity Project assets to contractor Field Solutions Group
Pty Ltd upon project completion as per signed agreement.

11



Blackali-Tambo Regional Council
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2020

2020 2019
$ $
6 Employee benefits
Total staff wages and salaries 6,812,267 6,667,319
Councillors' remuneration 297,894 292,146
Annual, sick and long service leave entitlements 1,583,966 1,447,367
Superannuation 851,467 805,531
' 9,545,594 9,212,363
Other employee related expenses 242 424 275,248
: 9,788,018 . 9,487,611
Less: Capitalised employee expenses (372,297) (518,722)
9,415,721 8,968,889

Councillor remuneration represents salary, and other allowances paid in respect of carrying out their duties.

2020 2019
Total Council employees at the reporting date: Number Number
Elected members _ 7 7
Administration staff 34 38
Depot and outdoors staff 66 70
Total full time equivalent employees 107 115
2020 2019
$ : $
7 Materials and services
Administration 977,857 848,617
Audit of annual financial statements by the Auditor-General of Queensland* 82,977 64,719
Community health programs 456,267 322,950
Parks, gardens & reserves 632,664 633,983
Pandemic management 42,938 -
Pest management 238,616 238,857
QRA Flood damage repairs 2,948,470 1,389,228
Rentals - operating leases 13,295 9,191
Recoverable road contracts 2,899,967 3,767,021
Road maintenance 545,978 1,170,993
Saleyards 505,197 353,754
Waste services 164,780 152,655
Water and sewerage 329,002 298,364
Other materials and services 701,145 609,660
10,539,153 9,859,992

*Total audit fees quoted by the Queensland Audit Office refating to the 2019-20 financial statements are $87,450
(2019: $84,500)

8 Finance costs

Finance costs charged by the Queensland Treasury Corporation 49,804 72,583
Bank charges 11,991 13,641
Impairment of receivables 6,439 389
Unwinding of discount on landfill restoration provision 7,454 -
75,688 86,613

12



Blackall-Tambo Regional Council
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2020

9 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash at bank and on hand
Deposits at call
Balance per Statement of Cash Flows

2020 2019
$ $
1,167,909 4,168,004
16,000,000 10,108,715
17,167,909 14,266,719

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of cash flows include cash on hand, all cash and cheques receipted but not
banked at the year end, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank

overdrafts.

Council's cash and cash equivalents are subject to a number of internal and external restrictions that limit the amount that is

available for discretionary or future use.

Restricted cash and cash equivalents as at 30 June
Unspent government grants and subsidies

Unspent developer contributions

Total unspent restricted cash

10 Trade and other receivables

Current

Rateable revenue and utility charges
Other debtors

Less impairment

GST recoverable

Prepayments

3,193,798 545,000
3,193,798 545,000
304,198 135,488
2,121,188 2,192,649
(10,787) (4,347)
42,583 50,403
112,062 89,174
2,569,244 2,463,367

Trade receivables are recognised at the amounts due at the time of sale or service delivery, i.e. the agreed purchase price /
contract price. Settlement of receivables is required within 30 days from invoice date. The collectability of receivables is
assessed periodically and if there is objective evidence that Council will not be able to collect all amounts due, the carrying
amount is reduced for impairment. The loss is recognised in finance costs. The amount of the impairment is the difference
between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of the estimated cash flows discounted at the effective interest

rate.

Because Council has the power to sell an owner's property to recover outstanding rate debts, Council does not impair any rate

receivables.

Movement in accumulated impairment losses (other debtors) is as follows:

Opening balance at 1 July
Additional impairments recognised
Closing Balance at 30 June

4,347 3,958
6,439 389
10,786 4,347

Further details of Council's expected credit loss assessment are contained in note 26.

Interest is charged on outstanding rates at 11% per annum. No interest is charged on other debtors.

13
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Blackall-Tambo Regional Council
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2020

"

Property, plant and equipment

(i) Recognition

Land and improvements, buildings and all infrastructure assets are measured on the revaluation basis, at fair value, in accordance with AASB
116 Property, Plant & Equipment and AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement. Plant and equipment and work in progress are measured at cost.

items of plant and equipment with a total value of less than $10,000, and infrastructure assets and buildings with a total value of less than
$20,000 are treated as an expense in the year of acquisition. All other items of property, plant and equipment are capitalised.

Routine operating maintenance, repair costs and minor renewals to maintain the operational capacity and useful life of the non-current asset is
expensed as incurred, while expenditure that relates to replacement of a major component of an asset to maintain its service potential is

capitalised.

Expenditure incurred in accordance with Natural Disaster Relief and Recovery Arrangements on road assets is analysed to determine whether
the expenditure is capital in nature. The analysis of the expenditure requires Council engineers to review the nature and extent of expenditure on
a given asset. For example, expenditure that patches a road is generally maintenance in nature, whereas a kerb to kerb rebuild is treated as
capital. Material expenditure that extends the useful life or renews the service potential of the asset is capitalised.

(ii) Measurement

Property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost. Cost is determined as the fair value of the assets given as consideration plus costs
incidental to the acquisition, including freight in, architect's fees, engineering design fees and all other establishment costs. Subsequently each
class of property, plant and equipment is stated at cost or fair value less, where applicable, any accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment loss.

Property, plant and equipment received in the form of contributions, are recognised as assets and revenues at fair value by Council valuation
where that value exceeds the recognition thresholds for the respective asset class. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

Direct labour and materials and an appropriate proportion of overheads incurred in the acquisition or construction of assets are included in the
cost base.

(iii) Depreciation

Assets are depreciated from the date of acquisition or, in respect of internally constructed assets, from the time an asset is completed and
commissioned ready for use. At this time they are reclassified from work in progress to the appropriate property, plant and equipment class.

Land is not depreciated as it has an unlimited useful life. Depreciation on other property, plant and equipment assets is calculated on a straight-
line basis so as to write-off the net cost or revalued amount of each depreciable asset, less its estimated residual value, progressively over its
estimated useful life to Council. Management believe that the straight-line basis appropriately reflects the pattern of consumption of all Council

assets.

Where assets have separately identifiable components that are subject to regular replacement, these componenté are assigned useful lives
distinct from the asset to which they relate. Any expenditure that increases the originally assessed capacity or service potential of an asset is
capitalised and the new depreciable amount is depreciated over the remaining useful life of the asset to Council.

Major spares purchased specifically for particular assets that are above the asset recognition threshold are capitalised and depreciated on the
same basis as the asset to which they relate.
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Blackall-Tambo Regional Council
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2020

"

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual values of property, plant and equipment assets are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and adjusted where necessary to reflect any changes in the pattern of consumption, physical wear and tear, technical or
commercial obsolescence, or management intentions. The condition assessments performed as part of the annual valuation process for assets
measured at written down current replacement cost are used to estimate the useful lives of these assets at each reporting date.

Key judgements and estimates:

Straight line depreciation is used as that is consistent with the even consumption of service potential of these assets over their useful life to the
Council.

Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of depreciable assets at each reporting date, based on the expected utility of the assets.
Uncertainties in these estimates relate to technical obsolescence that may change the utility of certain software and IT equipment.

(iv) Impairment

Each non-current physical and intangible asset and group of assets is assessed for indicators of impairment annually. If an indicator of possible
impairment exists, Council determines the asset's recoverable amount. Any amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds the
recoverable amount is recorded as an impairment loss. The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its

value in use.

An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit and loss, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount. When the asset is measured
at a revalued amount, the impairment loss is offset against the asset revaluation surplus of the relevant class to the extent available.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income unless the asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation surplus increase.

(v) Valuation
Key judgements and estimates:
Some of the Council's assets and liabilities are measured at fair value for financial reporting purposes.

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Council uses market-observable data to the extent it is available. Where Level 1 inputs
are not avaitable, the Council engages third party qualified valuers to perform the valuation. The Council works closely with the qualified external
valuers to establish the appropriate valuation technigues and inputs to the model. Information about the valuation techniques and inputs used in
determining the fair value of various assets and liabilities are disclosed within this note.

Non current assets measured at fair value are revalued, where required, so that the carrying amount of each class of asset does not materially
differ from its fair value at the reporting date. This is achieved by engaging independent, professionally qualified valuers to determine the fair
value of each class of property, plant and equipment at least once every 5 years. This process involves the valuer physically sighting a
representative sample of Council assets across all asset classes and making their own assessments of the condition of the assets at the date of

inspection.

In the intervening years, Council uses internal engineers and asset managers to assess the condition and cost assumptions associated with all
infrastructure assets, the results of which are considered in combination with an appropriate cost index for the region. Together these are used to
form the basis of a management valuation for infrastructure asset classes in each of the intervening years. With respect to the valuation of the
land and improvements, buildings and major plant asset classes in the intervening years, management engage independent, professionally
qualified valuers to perform a "desktop” valuation. A desktop valuation involves management providing updated information to the valuer
regarding additions, deletions and changes in assumptions such as useful life, residual value and condition rating. The valuer then determines
suitable indices which are applied to each of these asset classes.
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Blackall-Tambo Regional Council
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2020

11 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

An analysis performed by management has indicated that, on average, the variance between an indexed asset value and the valuation by an
independent valuer when performed is not significant and the indices used by Council are sound. Further details in relation to valuers, the
methods of valuation and the key assumptions used in valuing each different asset class are disclosed below.

Any revaluation increment arising on the revaluation of an asset is credited to the appropriate class of the asset revaluation surplus, except to the
extent it reverses a revaluation decrement for the class previously recognised as an expense. A decrease in the carrying amount on revaluation
is charged as an expense to the extent it exceeds the balance, if any, in the revaluation surplus of that asset class.

On revaluation, accumulated depreciation is restated proportionately with the change in the carrying amount of the asset and any change in the
estimate of remaining useful life. Separately identified components of assets are measured on the same basis as the assets to which they relate.

In accordance with AASB 13 fair value measurements are categorised on the following basis:
- Fair value based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1)
- Fair value based on inputs that are directly or indirectly observable for the asset or liability (level 2)
- Fair value based on unobservable inputs for the asset and liability (level 3)

There were no transfers between levels 1 and 2, nor between levels 2 and 3. Council's policy is to recognise transfers in and out of the fair value
hierarchy levels as at the end of the reporting period.

The fair values of the assets are determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable data, where it is available, and
minimise the use of entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an asset are observable, the asset is included in level 2.
If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the asset is included in levet 3. This is the case for Council
infrastructure assets, which are of a specialist nature for which there is no active market for similar or identical assets. These assets are valued
using a combination of observable and unobservable inputs.

The summary below categorises fair value measurements as either level 2 or level 3 in accordance with AASB 13. Council does not have any
assets or liabilities measured at fair value which meet the criteria for categorisation as level 1.

2020 Note Level 2 Level 3 Total
$ $ $
Recurring fair value
Land and improvements 2,760,864 - 2,760,864
Buildings
- Commercial Buildings 395,380 630,114 1,025,494
- Residential Buildings 3,194,168 - 3,194,168
- Other Buildings 4,754,637 35,933,896 40,688,533
Road, drainage and bridge network - 194,638,792 194,638,792
Water - 10,554,203 10,554,203
Sewerage - 14,335,587 14,335,587
11,105,049 256,092,592 267,197,641
2019 Note Level 2 Level 3 Total
$ $ $
Recurring fair value
Land and impfovements 4,219,717 - 4,219,717
Buildings
- Commercial Buildings 147,447 335,553 483,000
- Residential Buildings 3,030,092 - 3,030,092
- Other Buildings 1,584,811 27,994,759 29,579,570
Road, drainage and bridge network - 158,020,758 158,020,758
Water - 7,189,326 7,189,326
Sewerage - 10,027,491 10,027,491
8,982,067 203,567,887 212,549,954
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Blackall-Tambo Regional Council
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2020

"

Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Al Council asset classes except for plant and equipment were comprehensively valued as at 30 June 2020 by APV asset vaiuers.

There were no other changes that have a material impact on the value of the assets, such as impairment.

The table below summarises the level of detail applied in determining the value of Council's assets as at 30 June 2020 and the effective date of
last comprehensive valuation.

Valuation Effective Date of Last
Asset Category Effective 30 Performed By Comprehensive
June 2020 Valuation
Land Comprehensive | APV Valuers & Asset Management 30/06/2020
Buildings Comprehensive | APV Valuers & Asset Management 30/06/2020
Road and Drainage Network Comprehensive | APV Valuers & Asset Management 30/06/2020
Water Infrastructure Network Comprehensive | APV Valuers & Asset Management 30/06/2020
Sewerage Infrastructure Network Comprehensive | APV Valuers & Asset Management 30/06/2020

(vi) Valuation techniques used to derive fair values for level 2 and level 3 valuations

Council utilises AASB13 Fair Value Measurement and has reviewed each valuation to ensure compliance with the requirements of the standard.
There have been no changes in valuation techniques as a result of this review.

Specific valuation techniques used to value Council assets comprise:

Land (level 2)

Level 2 valuation inputs are used to value tand in freehold title as well as land used for speciat purposes, which is restricted in use under current
zoning rules. Sales prices of comparable land sites in close proximity are adjusted for differences in key attributes such as property size. The
most significant inputs into this valuation approach are price per square metre. All land values are based on the assumption that contaminants
such as asbestos, chemicals, toxic wastes or other hazardous materials do not exist on these land parcels.

Waste Landfill Cells

Current replacement cost

Waste fandfill cells fair values were determined by Council's contracted environmental health officer effective 29 March 2019. CRC was
calculated by reference to landfill cell area and volume specifications, estimated labour and material inputs, services costs, and overhead
allocations. Material and services costs were determined by reference to existing supplier contracts and labour costs by reference to Council's
Enterprise bargaining agreement.

Site improvements are depreciated over their useful life to the council. The useful life of cells and some other improvements extends until the site
becomes available for another use, as they continue to provide benefits over this period (including the monitoring period) by facilitating the safe
disposal of waste.

Accumulated depreciation

Accumulated depreciation was determined through assessment of the remaining space for each landfill cell, which was also used to determine
percentage cell capacity used in the year.

19



Blackall-Tambo Regional Council
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1

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Buildings (level 2)

Council's rental properties include residential and commercial properties within the town boundaries, in areas with regular sales of comparable
properties. They are valued using the sales comparison approach. Sales prices of comparable residential properties in close proximity are
adjusted for differences in key attributes such as property size (level 2).

In undertaking the 2020 comprehensive valuation, APY asset valuers derived fair value of residential and commercial properties from sales
prices of comparable properties after adjusting for differences in key attributes such as property size.

Buildings (level 3)

With the exception of residential and commercial buildings described above, it is considered that Council buildings are of a specialist nature and
there is no active market for these assets. As such, fair value is determined on the basis of replacement with a new asset having similar service
potential including allowances for pretiminaries and professional fees. The gross current values are derived from reference to market data for
recent projects and indices for building & construction in Queensland issued by the Australian Bureau of Statistics.

The net current value of a building asset is the gross current value less accumulated depreciation to reflect the consurned or expired service

potential of the asset. In determining the level of accumulated depreciation, building assets are disaggregated into significant components which
exhibit different useful lives. Allowance is made for the typical asset life cycle and renewal treatments of each component and the condition of the
asset. Condition is assessed taking into account both physical characteristics as well as holistic factors such as functionality, capability, utilisation

and obsolescence.

While the unit rates based on square metres can be supported by market evidence (level 2), the estimates of usefut life and asset condition that
are used to calculate accumulated depreciation comprise unobservable inputs (level 3). Where these other inputs are significant to the valuation,
the overall valuation has been classified as level 3.

The tast comprehensive revaluation of Council's land and building assets was undertaken as at 30 June 2020 by APV asset valuers.

In undertaking the 2020 comprehensive valuation, APV asset valuers derived fair value of specialised properties using current replacement cost
approach. Under this approach, cost to replace an asset was calculated and adjusted for any obsolescene.

The next comprehensive valuation of land and building assets is planned to occur in 2025.

Infrastructure assets (level 3)

All Council infrastructure assets are fair valued using a written down current replacement cost methodology. This valuation comprises the asset's
current replacement cost (CRC) less accumulated depreciation calculated on the basis of such cost to reflect the already consumed or expired
future economic benefits of the asset. The gross cost of replacing the full service potential of an asset is first determined and then adjusted
downwards by an accumulated depreciation charge to take account of the expired service potential of the asset.

CRC is measured by reference to the lowest cost at which the gross future economic benefits of the asset could currently be obtained in the
normal course of business. Where existing assets are over designed, have excess capacity, or are redundant, an adjustment is made so that the
resulting valuation reflects the cost of replacing the existing economic benefits based on an efficient set of modern equivalent assets to achieve

the required level of service output within the Council's planning horizon.

The unit rates (labour and materials) and quantities applied to determine the CRC of an asset or asset component are based on a "Greenfield"
assumption meaning that the CRC is determined as the full cost of replacement with a new asset including components that may not need to be
replaced, such as earthworks. The CRC is determined using methods relevant to the asset class as described under individual asset categories

below.
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11

Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Road, drainage and bridge network

Current replacement cost

Council categorises its road infrastructure into urban and rural roads and then further sub-categorises these into sealed and unsealed roads. All
roads are managed in segments according to surface type and age. All road segments are then componentised into formation, pavement and
seal (where applicable). Council assumes that environmental factors such as soil type, climate and topography are consistent across each
segment. Council also assumes a segment is designed and constructed to the same standard and uses a consistent amount of fabour and

materials.

CRC is calculated by reference to asset linear and area specifications, estimated labour and material inputs, services costs, and overhead
allocations. Council assumes that pavements are constructed to depths of 4-6 cms for high traffic areas and 4 cms for lower traffic locations.
Council also assumes that all raw materials can be sourced from various local quarries with haulage rates of between $2 and $2.50 per cubic
meter depending on the location of the segment being valued. For internal construction estimates, material and services prices are based on
existing supplier contract rates or supplier price lists and labour wage rates are based on Council's Enterprise Bargaining Agreement (EBA). All
direct costs are allocated to assets at standard usage quantities according to recently completed similar projects. Where construction is
outsourced, CRC is based on the average of completed similar projects over the last few years.

Similar to roads, drainage assets are managed in various segments; pits, pipes and channels being the major components. Consistent with
roads, Council assumes that environmental factors such as soil type, climate and topography are consistent across each segment and that each
segment is designed and constructed to the same standard and uses a consistent amount of labour and materials. Where drainage assets are
located underground and physical inspection is not possible, the age, size and type of construction material, together with current and planned
maintenance records are used to determine the fair value at reporting date. Construction estimates are determined on a similar basis to roads.

The last comprehensive revaluation of Council's road, drainage and bridge infrastructure was undertaken as at 30 June 2020 by APV asset
valuers.

The next comprehensive valuation of Council's road, drainage and bridge infrastructure is planned to occur in 2025.

In determining the written down value of an asset, accumulated depreciation, representing the service potential consumed, is subtracted from the
asset's current replacement cost. An asset's service potential has a linear relationship to its useful life.

Useful lives are determined via the following process:

1. Inspection of the oldest assets within each category to estimate the remaining life (based on the delivery of future economic
benefits) and estimated useful life.

2. Making comparisons with other regional Council's useful lives.

3. Making comparisons with the national databases of useful lives to ensure useful lives adopted are in consistent ranges with
national standards (e.g. International Infrastructure Management Manual).

4. Consideration of other aspects, including:

- Council's internal knowledge of the performance of assets based on historical experience.

- Australian standards, pavement design manuals and product guidelines.

- Current engineering practice.

5. Technical and commercial obsolescence is also considered.

Where an asset is young in age and shows no significant signs of wear and tear its remaining useful life is calculated by subtracting its age from
its useful life as determined above.

Where Council does not have accurate records of year of construction, and for older assets where an aged based approach for determining
remaining life is not considered appropriate, remaining lives of assets are estimated.
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Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Water and Sewerage

Current replacement cost

Water and sewerage mains are segmented and componentised into standard and rising mains to ensure a reliable measure of cost and service
capacity and deterioration of estimated remaining life. Each segment is valued on the same basis as described for roads above. Due to these
assets being located underground, the age based approach for determining remaining useful life is adopted, with condition assessment

undertaken by exception.

The most significant inputs into the valuation approach are construction cost unit rates (per linear or square metre), estimated residual values,
estimated useful lives, pattern of consumption and asset condition.

The last comprehensive revaluation of Council's water and sewerage infrastructure was undertaken as at 30 June 2020 by APV asset valuers.

The next comprehensive valuation of Council's water and sewerage infrastructure is planned to occur in 2025.

Shepherd's cost models were derived from the following sources:

Schedule rates for construction of asset or similar assets
Building Price Index tables

Recent contract and tender data

Suppliers' quotations

Factors taken into account in determining replacement costs included:

Development factors - the area in which development takes place (e.g. rural areas would have little or no restoration requirements,
whereas a high density area would have large amounts of high quality footpaths, road pavements and associated infrastructure that would
require reinstatement, and would also require traffic control).

Soil factors - The types of soil or other surface material (e.g. areas where soil is sandy are difficult to excavate and would require shoring
while areas where the soil is generally free of rock would not present any great difficulty for excavation).

Accumulated depreciation

In determining accumulated depreciation, assets were either subject to a site inspection or an assessment to determine remaining useful life.
Where site inspections were conducted (i.e. for active assets), the assets were allocated a condition assessment rating of between 1 and 5,
which was used to estimate remaining useful life - 1 being excellent with a remaining useful life of 95% and 5 being unserviceable with a
remaining useful life of 5%. The higher the condition rating, the lower the fair value.

Where site inspections were not conducted (i.e. for passive assets and active assets for which no site inspections were undertaken), the
remaining useful life was calculated on an age basis after taking into consideration current and planned maintenance records.

For wastewater gravity mains the assumption that the pipes will be relined was adopted. The fair value for sewer gravity mains was determined
as follows:

For all pipes, replacement cost was determined based on reptacement by trench excavation, useful life was determined as the pipe useful life
plus the reline useful life, and the pipe fair value was based on age.

+ Where pipes have been relined, the total pipe useful life was determined as the pipe age when the reline occurred plus the reline life.
* The relining of pipes was valued at reline rates and depreciated over the reline life (70 years). The reline fair value was based on age.
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Property, plant and equipment (continued)

(vii) Changes in Fair Value Measurements using significant unobservable inputs (level 3)

Buildings disclosed in the notes comprise both level 2 and leve! 3 assets, the movement in level 3 buildings are detailed below.

Changes in buildings (Level 3)

Opening gross value as at 1 July
Additions

Disposals

Revaluation adjustment

Closing gross value as at 30 June

Accumulated depreciation and impairment
Obening balance as at 1 July

Depreciation provided in period

Depreciation on disposals

Revaluation adjustment

Accumulated depreciation as at 30 June

Book value as at 30 June

23

2020 2019
$ $

47,553,198 45,222,054
542,155 3,724,701

- (1,393,557)
2,766,587 -
50,861,940 47,553,198
19,222,886 18,756,378
1,283,791 1,234,565

- (768,057)
(6,208,747) -
14,297,930 19,222,886
36,564,010 28,330,312




Blackall-Tambo Regional Council

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 30 June 2020

12

13

14

Intangible Assets
. 2020 2019

Asset values $ 3
Opening gross value as at 1 July 225,000 225,000
Additions at cost - -
Closing gross carrying value as at 30 June 225,000 225,000
Accumulated amortisation

Opening balance as at 1 July 22,047 10,651
Amortisation provided in period 11,396 11,396
Closing accumulated amortisation as at 30 June 33,443 22,047
Book value as at 30 June 191,657 202,953

Intangible assets with a cost or other value exceeding $10,000 are recognised as intangible assets in the financial statements, items with a lesser
value being expensed.

It has been determined that there is not an active market for any of the Council's intangible assets. Therefore, the assets are recognised and
carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Where an intangible asset has a finite life, the cost of the
asset is amortised over that period on a straight line basis.

Council acquired a Sales Permit (No. 201304400) for $225,000 in 2016-17 under which the State of Queensland agrees to sell and Council agree
to purchase cypress sawlogs according to the terms of the permit. The permit allows for the harvesting of 142,500 tonnes of cypress sawlogs over

20 years from 2017 to 2037.

Contract Liabilities

Grants received upfront to construct Council controlled assets* 310,510 545,000
Grants received upfront to repair flood damaged roads** 2,883,288 S -
3,193,798 545,000

The contract liabilities have arisen on adoption of AASB 15 and AASB 1058. Previously grant revenue was recognised upon receipt. Under the
new standards, certain revenues are held as contract liabilities until performance obligations are met. Revenue is deferred and treated as a liability

at year end.

* Capital grants received to construct Council controlled assets has been deferred where revenue is recognised in line with costs incurred and the
construciton of the asset.

** Grant received to repair road assets where funding is sufficiently specific as to the nature and cost of repairs. Revenue is recognised as
performance obligations are met.

An opening balance adjustment has been made for $545,000 to the retained profits account as shown in the statement of equity to reflect the
effect of changes in prior year comparatives.

Trade and other payables

Current

Creditors and accruals 741,337 566,666
Prepaid rates 165,004 -
Fees & charges received in advance 21,870 -
Annual leave 1,281,800 1,043,267
Other entitlements 132,322 48,568

2,342,333 1,658,501

Trade creditors are recognised upon receipt of the goods or services ordered and are measured at the agreed purchase/contract price net of
applicable discounts other than contingent discounts. Amounts owing are unsecured and are generally settled on 30 day terms.

Liabilities are recognised for employee benefits such as wages and salaries, annual leave and long service leave in respect of services provided by
the employees up to the reporting date. Liabilities for employee benefits are assessed at each reporting date. Where it is expected that the leave
will be paid in the next twelve months the liability is treated as a current liability. Otherwise the liability is treated as non-current. As Council does
not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the annual leave beyond twelve months after reporting date, all annual leave liabilities are
classified as current.
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15 Borrowings

Current .
Loans - Queensland Treasury Corporation

Non-current
Loans - Queensland Treasury Corporation

Loans - Queensland Treasury Corporation
Opening balance at beginning of financial year

Loans raised
Principal repayments
Book value at end of financial year

2020 2019
$ 3

96,285 56,362
96,285 56,362
1,629,965 1,326,134
1,629,965 1,326,134
1,382,496 1,939,534

400,000 .
(56,246) (557,038)
1,726,250 1,382,496

The QTC loan market value at the reporting date was $1,941,260. This represents the value of the debt if Council repaid it at that date. As it is the

intention of Council to hold the debt for its term, no provision is required to be made in these accounts.

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition these liabilities are
measured at amortised cost. All borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred. No borrowing costs are capitalised on

qualifying assets.

No assets have been pledged as security by the Council for any liabilities, however all loans are guaranteed by the Queensland Government.

Al borrowings are in $A denominated amounts and carried at amortised cost, interest being expensed as it accrues. No interest has been
capitalised during the current or comparative reporting period. Expected final repayment date is 16 March 2037. There have been no defaults or

breaches of the loan agreement during the period.

Principal and interest repayments are made quarterly in arrears.

Council adopts an annual debt policy that sets out council's planned borrowings for the next nine years. Council's current policy is to only borrow
for capital projects and for a term no longer than the expected life of the asset. Council also aims to comply with the Queensland Treasury
Corporation's borrowing guidelines and ensure that sustainability indicators remain within acceptable levels at all times.

16 Provisions

Current
Provision for long service leave

Non-current
Provision for long service leave
Provision for waste landfiil rehabilitation

Long Service Leave

1,130,304 984,589
1,130,304 984,589
143,084 144,803
408,195 393,367
551,279 538,170

A liability for long service leave is measured as the present value of the estimated future cash outflows to be made in respect of services provided
by employees up to the reporting date. The value of the liability is calculated using current pay rates and projected future increases in those rates
and includes related employee on-costs. The estimates are adjusted for the probability of the employee remaining in Council's employment or
other associated employment which would result in Council being required to meet the liability. Adjustments are then made to allow for the
proportion of the benefit earned to date, and the result is discounted to present value. The interest rates attached to Commonwealth Government
guaranteed securities at the reporting date are used to discount the estimated future cash outflows to their present value.

Where employees have met the prerequisite length of service and council does not have an unconditional right to defer this liability beyond 12

months long service leave is classified as a current liability. Otherwise it is classified as non-current.
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Note 16 Provisions (continued)

Refuse dump restoration

A provision is made for the cost of restoring refuse dumps where it is probable the Council will be liable, or required, to do this when the use of the
facilities is complete. As refuse dumps are situated on Council controlled/owned land the cost of the provision constitutes an asset.

The provision for refuse restoration is calculated as the present value of anticipated future costs associated with the closure of the dump sites,
decontamination and monitoring of historical residues and leaching on these sites. The calculation of this provision requires assumptions such as
application of environmental legislation, site closure dates, available technologies and engineering cost estimates. These uncertainties may result
in future actual expenditure differing from amounts currently provided. Because of the long-term nature of the liability, the most significant
uncertainty in estimating the provision is the costs that will be incurred. The provision recognised for dump sites is reviewed at least annually and
updated based on the facts and circumstances available at the time. Management estimates that the site will close in 2069 (49 years time) and will
have aftercare costs for the susequent 20 years.

2020 2019
$ $

Details of movements in long service leave provision
Balance at the beginning of financial year 1,129,392 925,766
Long Service Leave entitlement arising ’ 331,271 339,096
Long Service Leave entitlement paid (187,275) (135,470)
Balance at end of financial year 1,273,388 1,129,392
Details for movements in landfill restoration provision
Balance at beginning of financial year 393,367 -
New restoration provision recognised - 393,367
Increase in provision due to unwinding of discount 7,454 -
Increase in provision due to change in discount rates 7,374 -
Balance at end of financial year 408,195 393,367

A provision is made for the cost of restoring refuse sites where it is probable that Council will be liable or required to incur such costs on cessation
of use of facilities.

The provision represents the present value of the anticipated future costs associated with the closure of the landfill sites, decontamination and
monitoring of historical residues and leaching on these sites.

Asset revaluation surplus

Movements in the asset revaluation surplus were as follows:

Balance at beginning of financial year 119,514,115 119,514,115
Net adjustment to non-current assets at end of period to reflect a change in current fair value:
Land and improvements (1,424,691) -
Buildings 12,944,902 -
Road, drainage and bridge network 38,001,736 -
Water 3,216,324 -
Sewerage 4,651,104 -

. 57,389,375 -
Net adjustment to landfill restoration provision to reflect change in discount rate - land and improvements (7,374) -
Balance at end of financial year 176,896,116 119,514,115
Net increase/(decrease) in Asset Revaluation Surplus 57,382,001 -

Asset revaluation surplus analysis

The closing balance of the asset revaluation surplus comprises the following
asset categories:

Land and improvements 1,852,418 3,284,484
Buildings 19,788,714 6,843,811
Road, drainage and bridge network 136,786,736 98,785,000
Water 8,433,155 5,216,831
Sewerage 10,035,093 5,383,989

176,896,116 119,514,115
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Note 17 Asset revaluation surplus (continuéd)

The asset revaluation surplus comprises adjustments refating to changes in value of property, plant and equipment that do not result from the use
of those assets. Net incremental changes in the carrying value of classes of non-current assets since their initial recognition are accumulated in
the asset revaluation surplus. Increases and decreases on revaluation are offset within a class of assets.

a8
Where a class of assets is decreased on revaluation, that decrease is offset first against the amount remaining in the asset revaluation surplus in
respect of that class. Any excess is treated as an expense. When an asset is disposed of, the amount in the reserve in respect of that asset is
retained in the asset revaluation surplus and not transferred to retained surplus. :

Commitments for expenditure

2020 2019
$ $

Contractual commitments
Contractual commitments at end of financial year but not recognised in the financial statements are as follows:
Blackall aquatic centre spa and shed construction contract . - 8,888
Blackall sewer relining contract 73,554 73,554
Blackall indoor cricket complex 42,900 -
Blackall saleyards canteen extension 75,218 -
Blackall wool feasibility study 85,728 -
Tambo western sports complex fencing and landscaping 70,271 -

347,671 82,442

Contingent liabilities

Details and estimates of maximum amounts of contingent liabilities are as follows:

Local Government Mutual
The Council is a member of the local government mutual liability self-insurance pool, LGM Queensland. in the event of the poo! being wound up or

it is unable to meet its debts as they fall due, the trust deed and rules provide that any accumulated deficit will be met by the individual pool
members in the same proportion as their contribution is to the total pool contributions in respect to any year that a deficit arises.

As at 30 June 2020 the financial statements of LGM Queensland reported an accumulated surplus and it is not anticipated any liability will arise.

Local Government Workcare
The Council is a member of the Queensland local government worker's compensation self-insurance scheme, Local Government Workcare.

Under this scheme the Council has provided an indemnity towards a bank guarantee to cover bad debts which may remain should the self
insurance licence be cancelled and there was insufficient funds available to cover outstanding liabilities. Only the Queensland Government's
workers compensation authority may call on any part of the guarantee should the above circumstances arise. The Council's maximum exposure to

the bank guarantee is $316,967.

Superannuation

The Council contributes to the Local Government Superannuation Scheme (QId) (the scheme). The scheme is a Multi-employer Plan as defined in
the Australian Accounting Standard AASB119 Employee Benefits.

The Queensiand Local Government Superannuation Board, the trustee of the scheme, advised that the local government superannuation scheme
was a complying superannuation scheme for the purpose of the Commonwealth Superannuation Industry (Supervision) legislation.

The scheme has three elements referred to as:
The City Defined Benefits Fund (CDBF) which covers former members of the City Super Defined Benefits Fund
The Regional Defined Benefits Fund (Regional DBF) which covers defined benefit fund members working for regional local governments; and

The Accumulation Benefits Fund (ABF)

The ABF is a defined contribution scheme as defined in AASB 119. Council has no liability to or interest in the ABF other than the payment of the
statutory contributions as required by the Local Government Act 2009.

Council does not have any employees who are members of the CDBF and, therefore, is not exposed to the obligations, assets or costs associated
with this fund.
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Note 20 Superannuation {continued)

The Regional DBF is a defined benefit plan as defined in AASB119. The Council is not able to account for the Regional DBF as a defined benefit
plan in accordance with AASB119 because the scheme is unable to account to the Council for its proportionate share of the defined benefit
obligation, plan assets and costs. The funding policy adopted in respect of the Regional DBF is directed at ensuring that the benefits accruing to
members and beneficiaries are fully funded as they fall due.

* Council contributes to the LGIAsuper Regional Defined Benefits Fund (the scheme), at the rate of 12% for each permanent employee who is a

defined benefit member. This rate is set in accordance with the LGIAsuper trust deed and may be varied on the advice of an actuary. The
Regional Defined Benefits Fund is a complying superannuation scheme for the purpose of the Commonwealth Superannuation Industry
(Supervision) legislation and is also governed by the Local Government Act 2009.

Any amount by which the scheme is over or under funded may affect future benefits and result in a change to the contribution rate, but has not
been recognised as an asset or liability of the Council.

Technically Council can be liable to the scheme for a portion of another local governments’ obligations should that local government be unable to
meet them. However the risk of this occurring is extremely low and in accordance with the LGIAsuper trust deed changes to Council's obligations
will only be made on the advice of an actuary.

The last completed actuarial assessment of the scheme was undertaken as at 1 July 2018. The actuary indicated that “At the valuation date of 1
July 2018, the net assets of the scheme exceeded the vested benefits and the scheme was in a satisfactory financial position as at the valuation
date." The Council is not aware of anything that has happened since that time that indicates the assets of the scheme are not sufficient to meet the

vested benefits, as at the reporting date.

No changes have been made to prescribed employer contributions which remain at 12% of employee assets and there are no known requirements
to change the rate of contributions.

The next triennial actuarial review is not due until 1 July 2021.

The most significant risks that may result in LGIAsuper increasing the contribution rate, on the advise of the actuary, are:

lnvesfment risk - The risk that the scheme's investment returns will be lower than assumed and additional contributions are needed to fund the
shortfall.
Salary growth risk - The risk that wages or salaries will rise more rapidly than assumed, increasing vested benefits to be funded.

There are currently 62 Councils contributing to the scheme and any changes in contribution rates would apply equally to all 62 Councils. Blackall-
Tambo Regional Council made less than 4% of the total contributions to the plan in the 2019-20 financial year.

Changes in accounting policy

During the year ended 30 June 2020, the Council adopted AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers , AASB 1058 Income of NFP Entities
and AASB 16 Leases using the modified retrospective (cumulative catch-up) method and therefore the comparative information for the year ended
30 June 2019 has not been restated.

The following options have been applied on transition to AASB 15 and AASB 1058:

Council has not adopted the completed contract expedient and therefore has not excluded revenue which was fully recognised in previous years in
accordance with the former accounting standards and pronouncements.

Council has not retrospectively restated contracts for modifications that occurred before 1 July 2019 unless such contract modification were minor.

Revenue standards - AASB 15 and AASB 1058

Based on Council's assessement, adoption of the new standards in the current financial year has impacted on grant revenue recognition at year

end.
If the standard had been applied to 30 June 2019 year comparatives, this application would have resulted in a revenue decrease of $545,000 in the

Statement of Comprehensive Income. There would have been an equal reduction in reported equity and an increase in recognition of contract
liabilities. An opening balance adjustment has been made to the retained surplus account and capital grant revenue.
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The following table shows the amount by which the financial statement line item is affected by the application of AASB 15 and AASB 1058 as
compared to the previous revenue standards.

Statement of Financial Position at 30 June 2020 Carrying amount Adjustments Carrying
per Statement of $ amount if
Financial Position previous
$ standards
had been
applied
3
Current liabilities
Contract liabilities 3,193,798 (3,193,798} -
Retained surplus 112,352,628 3,193,798 115,546,426
Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year ended 30 June 2020 Balance per Adjustments Carrying
Statement of $ amount if
Comprehensive previous
Income standards
$ had been
applied
$
Revenue
Recurrent Grants 8,995,293 2,883,288 11,878,581
Capital Grants 2,695,670 310,510 3,006,180
11,690,963 3,193,798 14,884,761

The adjustments above relate to the recognition of contract liabilities for revenue streams where the revenue is recognised over time rather than on
receipt of funding under AASB 1004. '

The adoption of AASB 15 and AASB 1058 has not caused a material change to the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 30 June 2020.

Lease standard - AASB 16
Under the previous lease accounting standard, Council assessed whether leases were operating or finance leases, based on its assessment of
whether the significant risks and rewards of ownership had been transferred to Council or remained with the lessor. Under AASB 16, there is no

differentiation between finance and operating leases for the lessee and therefore all leases which meet the definition of a lease are recognised on
the statement of financial position (except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets).

Leases in which the Council is a lessee

The Council currently leases IT equipment only and has elected not to recognise IT equipment leases under the AASB 16 as they have been
assessed as being low-value assets under the standard.

Based on Councils assessment, first-time adoption of AASB 16 for the year ending 30 June 2020 has had no impact on assets, liabilities, equity
and net result. Council has used the exception to lease accounting for short-term leases and leases of low value assets, and the lease expense
relating to these leases is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income on a straight-line basis.

The Council did not previously have any finance leases.
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2020 2019
$ $

Trust funds
Trust funds held for outside parties
Monies collected or held on behalf of other entities yet to be paid out to or on 51,225 59,583
behalf of those entities
Security deposits 20,400 36,287

71,625 95,870

Funds held in the trust account on behalf of outside parties include those funds from the sale of land for arrears in rates, deposits for the
contracted sale of land, security deposits lodged to guarantee performance, refundable bond monies for venue and equipment hire and funds held
in trust for inactive non profit community clubs. Council performs only a custodian role in respect of these monies and because the monies cannot
be used for Council purposes, they are not considered revenue nor brought to account in the financial statements since Council has no control over

the assets.

Reconciliation of net result for the year to net cash inflow (outflow) from
operating activities

Net result (4,758,788) 376,035
Non-cash operating items:
Depreciation and amortisation 6,159,535 6,070,736
6,159,535 6,070,736
Investing and development activities (non cash):
Net (profit)/oss on disposal/write-off of non-current assets 2,185,254 1,382,477
Capital grants and contributions (2,695,670) (4,121,114)
(510,416) (2,738,637)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
(Increase)/decrease in receivables (105,877) (1,144,160)
(Increase)/decrease in inventory 3,330 36,477
Increase/(decrease) in payables 689,285 370,662
Increase/(decrease) in other liabilities 2,883,289 -
Increase/(decrease) in other provisions 151,450 203,626
3,621,477 (533,395)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 4,511,808 3,174,739
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from finance activities
Loans
Opening balance as at 1 July 1,382,496 1,939,534
Cash Fiows ) 343,754 (557,038)
1,726,250 1,382,496

Closing balance as at 30 June

Events after the balance date

There were no material adjusting events after the balance date.
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Financial instruments and financial risk management

Blackall-Tambo Regional Council's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks including interest rate risk, credit risk, and
liquidity risk.

Exposure to financial risks is managed in accordance with Council approved policies on financial risk management. These
policies focus on managing the volatility of financial markets and seek to minimise potential adverse effects on the financial
performance of Council. Council minimises its exposure to financial risk in the foliowing ways:

The Council's audit committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Council's risk management policies
and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk managements framework in relation to the risks faced by the Council.
The Council audit committee is assisted in its oversight role by internal audit. Internal audit undertakes both regular and ad
hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the audit committee.

Investments in financial assets are only made where those assets are with a bank or other financial institution in Australia.
Council does not invest in derivatives or other high risk investments.

When Council borrows, it borrows from the Queensland Treasury Corporation unless another financial institution can offer a
more beneficial rate, taking into account any risk. Borrowing by Council is constrained by the provisions of the Statufory

Bodies Financial Arrangements Act 1982.

Council measures risk exposure using a variety of methods as follows:

Risk exposure Measurement method
Interest rate risk Sensitivity analysis
Liquidity risk Maturity analysis
Credit risk Ageing analysis

Credit risk exposure

Credit risk exposure refers to the situation where Council may incur financial loss as a result of another party to a financial
instrument failing to discharge their obligations.

In the case of rate receivables, the Council has the power to sell the property to recover any defaulted amounts and therefore
generally for rates debtors the credit risk is low.

In other cases, Council assesses the credit risk before providing goods or services and applies normal business credit
protection procedures to minimise the risk.

Council is also exposed to credit risk through its deposits held at call with financial institutions.

By the nature of Council's operations, there is a geographical concentration of risk in Council's area. Because the area is
largely agricultural, there is also a concentration in the agricultural sector.

The Council does not require collateral in respect of trade and other receivables. The Council does not have trade receivables
for which no loss allowance is recognised because of collateral.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at balance date in relation to each class of recognised financial asset is the gross
carrying amount of those assets inclusive of any provisions for impairment.

No collateral is held as security relating to the financial assets held by Council.

The carrying amounts of financial assets at the end of the reporting period represent the maximum exposure to credit risk for
the Council.

Council's maximum exposure to credit risk is as follows:

Note 2020 2019
Financial assets $ $
Cash and cash equivalents 9 17,167,909 14,266,719
Receivables - rates 10 304,198 135,488
Receivables - other 10 2,121,188 2,192,649

19,693,295 16,594,856
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No financial assets have had their terms renegotiated so as to prevent them from being past due or impaired, and are stated
at the carrying amounts as indicated.

A summary of the Council's exposure to credit risk for trade receivables is as follows:

2020 2020 2019 2019
Not credit- Credit- Not credit- Credit-
impaired impaired impaired impaired
$ $ $ $
Less than 30 days 2,006,095 - 2,137,092 -
Past due 31-60 days 10,442 - 25,132 -
Past due 61-90 days 9,805 - 21,065 -
More than 90 days 94,846 - 9,360 -
Total gross carrying amount 2,121,188 - 2,192,649 -

Expected credit loss assessment as at 1 July 2019 and 30 June 2020

The Council uses an allowance matrix to measure the expected credit losses of trade receivables from individual customers,
which comprise a very large number of small balances.

Loss rates are calculated using a roll rate’ method based on the probability of a receivable progressing through successive
stages of delinquency to write-off.

The following table provides information about the exposure to credit risk and expected losses for trade receivables from
individual customers as at 30 June 2020:

Weighted- Gross Loss
average loss  carrying allowance
rate amount
$ $ $
Not past due 0.11% 2,006,095 2,207
Past due 31-60 days 1.10% 10,442 115
Past due 61-90 days 4.40% 9,805 431
More than 90 days 8.47% 94,846 8,033
Total 2,121,188 10,786

Loss rates are based on actual credit loss experience over the past five years. These rates are multiplied by scalar factors to
reflect differences between economic conditions during the period over which the historical data has been collected, current
conditions and the Council's view of economic conditions over the expected lives of the receivables.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk refers to the situation where Council may encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. Council is exposed to liquidity risk through its trading in
the normal course of business and borrowings from the Queensland Treasury Corporation for capital works.

The Council's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its
labilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking

damage to the Council's reputation.

Council manages its exposure to liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient undrawn facilities, both short and long term, to cater for
unexpected volatility in cash flows.
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The following table sets out the liquidity risk of financial liabilities held by Council in a format as it might be provided to
management. The amounts disclosed in the maturity analysis represent the contractual undiscounted cash flows at balance

date:

Oto1year 1to5years Over5years Total Carrying
contractual amount
cashflows

3 $ $ $ $
2020
Trade and other payables 741,337 - - 741,337 741,337
Loans - QTC 148,611 594,446 1,458,896 2,201,953 1,726,250
889,948 594 446 1,458,896 2,943,290 2,467,587
2019
Trade and other payables - 566,666 - - 566,666 566,666
Loans - QTC 106,050 424,201 1,352,141 1,882,392 1,382,496
672,716 424201 1,352,141 2,449,058 1,949,162

The outflows in the above table are not expected to occur significantly earlier and are not expected to be for significantly
different amounts than indicated in the table.

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as interest rates, will affect the Council's income or the value of its
holdings of financial instruments.

Interest rate risk

Council is exposed to interest rate risk through its finance lease borrowings, borrowings from the Queensland Treasury
Corporation and investments held with financial institutions.

Council has access to a mix of variable and fixed rate funding options through QTC so that interest rate risk exposure can be
minimised.

Council does not undertake any hedging of interest rate risk.

Sensitivity

Sensitivity to interest rate movements is shown for variable financial assets and liabilities based on carrying amount at
reporting date.

The Councif does not account for any fixed-rate financial assets or financial liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss,
therefore a change in interest rates at the reporting date would not affect profit or loss.

The following interest rate sensitivity analysis depicts what effect a reasonably possible change in interest rates (assumed to
be 1%) would have on profit and equity, based on carrying values at the end of the reporting period. The calculation assumes
that the change in interest rates would be held constant over the period.

Net Carrying Effect on Net Result Effect on Equity
2020 Amount 1% increase 1% decrease 1% increase 1% decrease
$ $ $ $ $
Cash on Deposit 17,167,909 171,679 (171,679) 171,679 (171,679)
Loans QTC 1,726,250 (17,263) 17,263 (17,263) 17,263
Net Total 18,894,159 154,416 (154,416) 154,416 (154,416)
2019
Cash on Deposit 10,108,715 101,087 (101,087) 101,087 (101,087)
Loans QTC 1,382,496 (13,825) 13,825 (13,825) 13,825
Net Total 11,491,211 87,262 (87,262) 87,262 (87,262)
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Fair value

The fair value of trade and other receivables and payables is assumed to approximate the value of the original transaction,
less any allowance for impairment.

The fair value of borrowings with QTC is based on the market value of debt outstanding. The market value of a debt
obligation is the discounted value of future cash flows based on prevailing market rates and represents the amount required to
be repaid if this was to occur at balance date. The market value of debt is provided by QTG and is shown in Note 15.

QTC applies a book rate approach in the management of debt and interest rate risk, to limit the impact of market value
movements to clients’ cost of funding. The book value represents the carrying value based on amortised cost using the
effective interest method.
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27 Transactions with Related Parties

(a) Transactions with key management personnel (KMP)

KMP include the Mayor, Councillors, Chief Executive Officer and Executive management.

The compensation paid to KMP comprises:

2020 2019
$ $
Short-term employee benefits 1,060,271 1,222,488
Post-employment benefits 81,664 103,159
Long-term benefits 16,906 21,669
Total 1,158,841 1,347,316

Detailed remuneration disclosures are provided in the annual report.

(b) Transactions with other related parties
Other related parties include the close family members of KMP and any entities controlied or jointly controlled by KMP or their close
family members. Close family members include a spouse, child and dependent of a KMP or their spouse.

The Council did not employ any close family members of key management personnel.

Details of transactions between council and other related parties are disclosed below:

Details of Transaction 2020 2019
$ $
Purchase o_f materials and services from entities controlled by key management personnel 12,686 57,627
Note 26(b)(i)
Personnel services provided by a related party to Council - Note 27(b)(ii) 117,911 3,696

(i) Council purchased materials and services from entities controlled by members of key management personnel. All purchases
were at arm's length and were in the normal course of Council operations. The following table outlines the breakdown of goods and
services acquired.

Goods and services acquired 2020 2019
$ $
Building and construction materials and services 3,952 47,626
Catering services _ 1,102 3,038
Uniforms and protective clothing 2,647 3,835
Livestock handling services 4,985 3,128

(if) Council incurred $117,911 in engineering service fees paid to George Bourne and Associates for technical services provided by
Amanda Turlan who is an employee of the firm. Amanda Turlan is on Council's related party list being the wife of John Turlan -
Director of Works and Services.

(c) Transactions with related parties that have not been disclosed

Most of the entities and people that are related parties of Council live and operate within the Blackall-Tambo region. Therefore, on a
regular basis ordinary citizen transactions occur between Council and its related parties. Examples include payment of rates and
animal registration. Council has not included these types of transaction in its disclosure, where they are made on the same terms
and conditions available to the general public.
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COVID-19 Impact Statement

Council has assessed the impact of COVID-19 pandemic on its financial statements for the current year and further impacts are
expected to continue into 2020-21.

Council undertook a number of key actions during the current year in response to the COVID-19 pandemic which included the

following:
- Waived rent from 1 March 2020 to 30 June 2020 on Council's commercial properties that was payable by businesses who were not

able to trade due to COVID-19 situation.
- Discontinued the levying of interest on overdue rates and charges for the period 15 April 2020 to 30 June 2020.
- Increased frequency in cleaning of Council and public facilities which will continue to occur in the 2020-21 financial year.

- Diverted additional resources towards implementing pandemic management strategies in association with health and enforcement
authorities. Key measures included implementation of social distancing measures in work spaces and public spaces under Council's

control and promotion of good hygiene practices.

The impact of these measures are not material to the 2019-20 financial statements of Council and is not expected to be material for
the 2020-21 financial year.
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Management Certificate

For the year ended 30 June 2020

These general purpose financial statements have been prepared pursuant to Sections 176 and 177 of the Local
Government Regulation 2012 (the Regulation) and other prescribed requirements.

In accordance with Section 212(5) of the Regulation we certify that:

(i) the prescribed requirements of the Local Government Act 2009 and Local Government Regulation 2012
for the establishment and keeping of accounts have been complied with in all material respects; and

(i) the general purpose financial statements, as set out on pages 1 to 36, present a true and fair view, in
accordance with Australian Accounting Standards, of the Council's transactions for the financial year and
financial position at the end of the year.

}///LWJ / / teac (. ﬁ(a/wwp

Mayor Chief Executive Officer
Andrew Martin Des Howard

3 "//' N .
Date: zs /@é/ /‘2@’2’\) Date: /2 | /O | 2o
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Councillors of Blackall-Tambo Regional Council

Report on the audit of the financial report
Opinion

| have audited the accompanying financial report of Blackall-Tambo Regional Council (the
council).

In my opinion, the financial report:

a) gives a true and fair view of the council's financial position as at 30 June 2020, and of
its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended

b) complies with the Local Government Act 2009, the Local Government Regulation 2012
and Australian Accounting Standards.

The financial report comprises the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2020, the
statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, notes to the financial statements including significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information, and the certificate given by the Mayor
and the Chief Executive Officer.

Basis for opinion

| conducted my audit in accordance with the Auditor-General Auditing Standards, which
incorporate the Australian Auditing Standards. My responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial report section of
my report.

| am independent of the council in accordance with the ethical requirements of the
Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board's APES 110 Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to my audit of the financial report in
Australia. | have also fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code
and the Auditor-General Auditing Standards.

| believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion.

Other information

Other information comprises financial and non-financial information (other than the audited
financial report) in an entity's annual report.

At the date of this auditor’s report, the available other information in Blackall-Tambo Regional
Council’'s annual report for the year ended 30 June 2020 was the current year financial
sustainability statement and long-term financial sustainability statement.

The councillors are responsible for the other information.
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My opinion on the financial report does not cover the other information and accordingly | do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. However, as required by the Local
Government Regulation 2012, | have expressed a separate opinion on the current year
financial sustainability statement.

In connection with my audit of the financial report, my responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial report and my knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work | have performed, | conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this information, | am required to report that fact. | have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the councillors for the financial report

The councillors are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true
and fair view in accordance with the Local Government Act 2009, the Local Government
Regulation 2012 and Australian Accounting Standards, and for such internal control as the
councillors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that is
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

The councillors are also responsible for assessing the council's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relating to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless it is intended to abolish the council or to otherwise cease
operations of the council.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial report

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a
whole is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the Australian Auditing
Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
this financial report.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, | exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. | also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the council's internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the council.
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. Conclude on the appropriateness of the council's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the council's
ability to continue as a going concern. If | conclude that a material uncertainty exists, |
am required to draw attention in my auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial report or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. | base my
conclusions on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my auditor's report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Council to cease to continue as a
going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial report represents the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

| communicate with the council regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that | identify during my audit.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
In accordance with s.40 of the Auditor-General Act 2009, for the year ended 30 June 2020:
a) |received all the information and explanations | required.

b) In my opinion, the prescribed requirements in relation to the establishment and keeping
of accounts were complied with in all material respects.

L~ 13 October 2020

Dale Hassell Queensland Audit Office
as delegate of the Auditor-General Brisbane
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15 October 2020

Mr Andrew Martin

Mayor

Blackall-Tambo Regional Council
6 Coronation Drive
BLACKALL-TAMBO QLD 4472

Dear Andrew
Final Management Report for Blackall-Tambo Regional Council

We have completed our 2020 financial audit for Blackall-Tambo Regional Council. The Auditor-
General issued an unmodified audit opinion on your financial statements.

As per section 213 of the Local Government Regulation, you must present this report at the next
ordinary meeting of the Council.

Reporting on issues identified after the closing report

Issues and other matters formally reported to management and an update on actions taken by
management to resolve these issues is included as Appendix A to this letter. Our rating definitions for
internal control deficiencies is shown in Appendix B.

Report to parliament
Each year we report the results of all financial audits and significant issues to Parliament.

This year we intend to include the results of our audit of Blackall-Tambo Regional Council in our
report to Parliament on the results of the Local Government sector. In this report we will comment on
the results of our audit of your financial report, any significant internal control issues we identified, and
the overall results of the sector, including, major transactions and events. We will discuss the
proposed content of our report with your Chief Financial Officer and will continue to consult as we
draft our report. Formally, you will have an opportunity to comment on our report and for these
comments to be included in the final report.

Audit fee

The final audit fee for this year will be no more than $79,500 exclusive of GST (2019: $84,500). This
fee is in line with the estimate in our external audit plan.

Financial reporting maturity level

QAO are in the process of finalising a new financial statement preparation reporting tool, called the
financial reporting maturity model. This model allows for scalable assessment of financial reporting
preparation processes which aims to better reflect the differences in size and maturity of public sector
entities. For future years, we are planning to move to assessing the process according to the new
maturity model. In the interim we will commence working with management to understand their
expected / desired positioning of maturity.

Queensland Audit Office Phone 07 3149 6000
Level 13, 53 Albert Street, Brishane QIld 4000 Email gao@qao.qld.gov.au
PO Box 15396, City East Qld 4002 Web www.qao.qld.gov.au

@ Queensland Audit Office (QAO)


mailto:qao@qao.qld.gov.au
http://www.qao.qld.gov.au/

We would like to thank you and your staff for their engagement in the audit this year, and look forward
to working with your team again next year.

If you have any questions about this letter or would like to discuss any matters regarding our audit
service, please contact me on 07 4046 8803 or Dale Hassell on 07 3149 6071.

Yours sincerely

Andrew Cornes -
Engagement Partner

Enc.

cc. Desmond Howard, Chief Executive Officer
Cr Lindsay Russell, Chair, Audit Committee

SENSITIVE - until tabled in Council e



Appendix Al—Internal control issues @

Significant deficiencies, deficiencies and other matters

The following table details control deficiencies and other matters identified since our last interim report
dated 29 May 2020. It includes a response from management.

Our risk ratings are as follows—refer to Our rating definitions for more detail.

9 Significant deficiency 9 Deficiency eOther matters

9 Significant deficiencies

20CR-1 Cyber security incident (final issue)
Control activities

Council’s IT systems were severely impacted by a ransomware intrusion on 15 June 2020 with Council’s
IT systems and data were locked and encrypted for a period of time.

With hindsight, the incident highlighted the following weaknesses in Council’s IT environment:

o Network with legacy issues

e User training

e Back-up procedures

¢ Network infrastructure monitoring and security

Council was ultimately able to obtain a decryption tool and unlock key data which was then migrated to a
new IT environment.

Council has taken steps when establishing the new IT environment to address the weakness identified
above.

QAO recommendation

Council management to monitor for any subsequent attempts for unauthorised access to the system and
continue to use outside specialists for assistance in this area. Council to re-inforce cyber security training
amongst users of the system.

A thorough review of IT has been earmarked for the 2020/21 audit.

Status: Resolved

SENSITIVE — until tabled in Council e



Appendix Al—Internal control issues (cont’d)

@ Deficiencies

20IR-1 Capitalisation of work in progress projects (interim issue)
Control activities

Documented confirmation of project completion was not obtained before all projects were capitalised
within Council’s accounts.

The absence of documented confirmation of completion creates the risk that projects may be incorrectly
capitalised and costs related to the project may not be accurately captured.

In addition, it was noted that included in the work-in-progress balance at year end are a number of
completed projects that have yet to be transferred to the appropriate asset class.

Although the property, plant and equipment balance in the statement of financial position is correct,
classifications in the property, plant and equipment note may be incorrect.

QAO recommendation
Before a project is capitalised by Council, documented confirmation the project is complete should be
obtained.

We also recommend that a procedure be developed to ensure the timely capitalisation of completed
projects out of work in progress into property, plant and equipment.

Management response

Management has implemented a project management portal in August 2020 with the aim of better
managing projects to completion. This portal includes project tracking information from project inception,
procurement, progress and completion. Project completion forms are a requirement for project managers
and asset managers. The project portal and regular monitoring will ensure timely completion and
capitalisation of works in progress. QAO recommendation is accepted.

Responsible officer: Director of Finance, Corporate and Community Services
Status: In progress
Action date:

SENSITIVE — until tabled in Council °



Appendix Al—Internal control issues (cont’d)

@ Deficiencies

20CR-2 Briefing paper on valuations (final issue)
Monitoring
A summarised briefing paper on the results of the valuations was not provided to the audit committee.

A summarised briefing paper should examine the valuation’s key assumptions, inputs and movements to
demonstrate the results of the valuation had been scrutinised and challenged by management prior to the
adoption of the results.

The absence of a summary makes the oversight by the audit committee more difficult to achieve as this is
a critical area in Council’s financial reporting process and may result in reporting errors and/or delays.

QAO recommendation

A summarised briefing paper on the results of the valuation that highlights key assumptions, inputs and
movements should be submitted to the audit committee for endorsement prior to certification of the
financial statements by Council.

Management response
Management notes the need for a briefing paper on the results of valuation to be submitted to the

audit committee to assist with the understanding of key valuation assumptions, inputs and movements.
QAO recommendation is accepted.

Responsible officer: Director of Finance, Corporate and Community Services
Status: Not started

Action date: 31 March 2021

20CR-3 Bank Payment Authorisation (final issue)
Control activities

Weekly payroll and creditor runs are prepared by either the Creditors Officer or Payroll Officer. The pay
run is reviewed by the Finance Manager and either the Creditors Officer or Payroll Officer will upload the
bank file to the online banking portal from Practical. Two of the following individuals (Finance Manager,
Creditors Officer or Payroll Officer) will authorise the payment within the banking portal.

This represents a segregation of duties issue.

QAO recommendation
Payment authorisation be restricted to employees who are not involved in the preparation of the payment.

Management response
Recommendation is accepted.

Responsible officer: Director of Finance, Corporate and Community Services
Status: Not started
Action date: 31 October 2020

SENSITIVE — until tabled in Council e



Appendix Al—Internal control issues (cont’d)

e Other matters

20CR-4 Goals (Corporate Plan) (re-raised)
Date issue initially raised: 6 July 2018 (2018 interim report)

While the Corporate Plan sets out Council's goals, it does not detail how performance against goals will be
assessed.

Without defined measurement criteria, it will be difficult for management to assess if they are on the right
track towards achieving their goals.

QAO recommendation
The Corporate Plan should detail how management will measure their progress towards achieving goals,
including both to the end result and milestones along the way.

Management response
The new corporate plan is in draft stage due for completion by 22 December 2020. QAO recommendation
noted.

Responsible officer: Director of Finance, Corporate and Community Services
Status: Work in progress
Action date: 22 December 2020

20CR-5 Outdated investment and advertising spending policy (final issue)
Date issue initially raised: 6 July 2018 (2018 interim report)

The investment and advertising spending policy were due for review 30 June 2017. We have been unable
to obtain evidence that these policies have been reviewed.

Section 105(6) of the Local Government Act 2009 states that a local government must ensure that its
financial policies are regularly reviewed and updated.

QAO recommendation
Council should periodically review and update all policies. Policies should be presented to Council for
approval. Policies should also include the adoption date to allow for timely review.

Management response
These policies will be reviewed and presented to Council at the November Council meeting.

Responsible officer: Director of Finance, Corporate and Community Services
Status: Not started
Action date: November 2020

SENSITIVE — until tabled in Council °



Appendix A2—Financial reporting issues A

The following tables detail financial reporting issues identified through our audit since our last interim
report dated 29 May 2020. It includes a response from management.

Our risk ratings are as follows—refer to Our rating definitions for more detail.

High Medium Low

Medium risk issue

20FR-1 Initial application of AASB 1058 Income of Not-for-Profit Entities impacting recognition
of capital grants from the prior year (final issue)

Observation

On applying the new accounting standard AASB 1058 Income of Not-for-Profit Entities for capital grants
we noted that the recognition criteria for such grants has changed under the new standard with capital
grants being recognised in line with the progression of the projects to which the grant relates.

Grant funding in relation to the Works for Queensland Program grants was recorded in the year in
which the funding was received (2019 financial year) however Council’s obligations with the respect to
the program were satisfied during the 2020 financial year.

This has resulted in management subsequently recording an adjustment totalling $545k to increase
grant income in the year ended 30 June 2020 and reduce the retained surplus at 1 July 2019 - the
treatment being “as if’ the accrued income was recognised at the start of the reporting period.

Where the initial application of AASB 1058 Income of Not-for-Profit Entities is not applied it can result in
a material misstatement to the financial statements.

QAO recommendation

The implementation of this new standard will not recur, however, the application of this accounting
standard will be ongoing and Council will need to track and identify those grants where year-end
adjustments are required to ensure Council recognises the appropriate amount of respective revenue
for the year.

Status: Resolved

20FR-2 Employee benefits didn’t include on-costs (final issue)

Observation
Employee benefits (annual leave and long service) did not factor in on-costs into the calculation of the
year end liabilities for items such as superannuation.

This resulted in an understatement of employee benefit liabilities at 30 June 2020.

QAO recommendation
Management posted an adjustment to correct the annual leave and long service leave liabilities to factor
in on-costs. This should be done on an annual basis.

Status: Resolved

SENSITIVE — until tabled in Council a



Appendix A3—Matters previously reported A

Status

The following table summarises all control deficiencies, financial reporting issues and other matters that
we have raised this year and those issues raised in in prior years but are not yet resolved.

Our risk ratings are as follows—refer to Our rating definitions for more detail.

Internal control issues Financial reporting issues
(& ® O
Significant deficiency Deficiency  Other matters High Medium Low

. Status / Comment
Reference  Rating Issue
Action Date

Internal control issues

19IR-1 9 Leave approval Resolved
Date issue initially raised: 2019 interim

report
COSO Component: Control activities

Observation and implication

During our testing over payroll it was noted
that one annual leave form for a member of
key management personnel was both
prepared and approved by that employee.

This represents a lack of controls in
regards to annual leave as employees may
take leave without the appropriate
entitlement or without obtaining the
appropriate authorisation.

QAO recommendation
Annual leave should be approved by an
appropriate officer before it is taken.

19CR-1 6 Capitalisation of completed projects Matter re-raised, refer to Appendix Al.
Date initially raised: 2019 closing report

COSO Component: Control activities

Observation and implication

During our testing over property, plant and
equipment we noted that included in the
work in progress balance at year end are a
number of completed projects that had yet
to be transferred to the appropriate asset
class.

SENSITIVE — until tabled in Council °



Reference

Rating

Issue

Status / Comment

Action Date

Although the property, plant and equipment
balance in the statement of financial
position is correct, classifications in the
property, plant and equipment note may be
incorrect.

QAO recommendation

We recommend that a procedure be
developed to ensure the timely
capitalisation of completed projects out of
work in progress into property, plant and
equipment.

20IR-1

Monthly financial reports and
framework (interim issue) (re-raised)

Date issue initially raised: 2019 interim
report

COSO Component: Information and
communication

Observation and implication

At each Council meeting financial reports
are presented to Council for review and
consideration. These reports include a
comparison of actual results against
budgeted results but do not always include
an analysis and/or explanatory comments.

We also note there is no financial reporting
framework, which clearly defines
management’s responsibilities for the
preparation and review of reports, as well
as regular review to drive improvement.

Monthly financial management reporting is
critical to the effective financial
management of the Council.

QAO recommendation

Financial reports presented to Council
should be underpinned by a robust
financial reporting framework and include
explanatory comments for significant
variances between actual results and
budgeted results.

Work in progress

2020 final update:

Council will look into how monthly
management reporting can be
improved having received links to
guidance and an example template

Initial agreed action date: 14
September 2020

Revised agreed action date: 31 March
2021

20IR-2

T
Contracts for casual employees (interim

issue)

Date issue initially raised: 2020 interim
report

COSO Component: Control activities
Observation and implication

Casual saleyard employees do not have a
signed employment contract with Council.

Work in progress

2020 final update:

Council contacted PEAK Legal
Services for assistance. Contracts are
currently being drafted for saleyard
employees.

Initial agreed action date: 14
September 2020

SENSITIVE — until tabled in Council



Reference

Rating

Status / Comment
Issue
Action Date

The absence of a formal signed Revised agreed action date: 31
employment contract, letter of offer or December 2020

workplace agreement creates the risk of

inaccurate payroll records and may give

rise to confusion and uncertainty in respect

to agreed employee responsibilities and

benefits.

QAO recommendation

Formal employment contracts, letters of
offer and workplace agreements are
required for all employees including casual
employees. At a minimum, casual
employees should have a signed
agreement that outlines the applicable
award classification and job position.

Financial reporting issues

19FR-1

Condition assessments for damaged Resolved
assets recorded at fair value

Date issue initially raised: 19 November 2020 final update:

2018 (2018 closing report)

. o revaluations of all asset classes
Observation and implication effective 30 June 2020.

Through discussions with management in
regards to the condition of assets held by
Council, it was noted that no impairment
had been recognised on roads damaged
as a result of weather events during the
year. On reflection, management’s best
estimate of impairment at 30 June 2019 is
based on the amount of the flood damage
repairs and restoration works of
$10,790,124 per the current Queensland
Reconstruction Authority claim. This claim
is still being assessed by QRA and may
not be accepted in full. The works
undertaken in 2019/2020 would then
subsequently be capitalised to restore the
assets to the condition that existed before
the weather event.

QAO recommendation

For assets known to have endured
damage, management should ensure an
assessment for impairment is undertaken
and accounted for at year-end.

Council conducted comprehensive

19FR-2

Incorrect classifications Resolved

Date issue initially raised: 8 October 2019 _
(2019 closing report) 2020 final update:

We did not identify the need for any
classification adjustments between

recurrent and capital revenue.

SENSITIVE — until tabled in Council



Reference

Rating

Status / Comment
Issue
Action Date

Observation and implication

It was noted during the year that several
plant assets were damaged by flooding
which occurred in March 2019. Council
received insurance proceeds and recorded
this as recurrent revenue instead of against
capital revenue/expense in connection with
the disposal of those assets. As such, a
reclassification entry was required.

Although the net result is correct,
classifications between recurrent and
capital were incorrect and this impacts the
measure of financial sustainability in the
operating surplus ratio.

QAO recommendation

Management should perform a thorough
review of the non-standard revenue items
on receipt in order to appropriately classify
capital transactions from recurrent
transactions in the general ledger

19FR-3

Calculation of landfill provision Resolved
Date issue initially raised: 8 October 2019
(2019 closing report) 2020 final update:
Council updated the landfill provision

Observation and implication calculation during the year, factoring in

Council have recorded a provision for a discount rate of 1.923% (20 year
landfill in the financial statements, however QTC fixed term borrowing rate) and an
the calculation of the present value of the inflation rate of 2% (lower end of the
estimated cost of restoring the sites RBA target inflation rate).

assumes the inflation and discount rate is

the same.

Guidance issued by the QAO suggests the
inflation factor should be calculated with
reference to either projected cost increases
(i.e. indexation) or the long-term
government bond rate with the most
appropriate discount rate being Council’s
incremental borrowing rate or the Group of
100 (G100) rate.

Any changes are unlikely to have a
material impact on the provision made at
30 June 2019.

QAO recommendation

Council should update its landfill provision,
in particular the inflation and discount
rates, based on the guidance available
from the QAO.

SENSITIVE — until tabled in Council



Reference

Rating

Issue

Status / Comment

Action Date

Disclosures in Council’s financial
statements going forward should include a
break-down of the movement in the
provision detailing the increase due to
unwinding of the discount and
increases/decreases due to change in the
discount rate.

Other matters

Goals (Corporate Plan)

Date issue initially raised: 6 July 2018
(2018 interim report)

Observation and implication

While the Corporate Plan sets out
Council's goals, it does not detail how
performance against goals will be
assessed.

Without defined measurement criteria, it
will be difficult for management to assess if
they are on the right track towards
achieving their goals.

QAO recommendation

The Corporate Plan should detail how
management will measure their progress
towards achieving goals, including both the
end result and milestones along the way.

Matter re-raised, refer to Appendix Al.

SENSITIVE — until tabled in Council



Appendix B—Our rating definitions

A

Internal rating definitions

Significant
deficiency

6

Definition

Prioritisation of
remedial action

A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or combination of

deficiencies, in internal control that requires immediate remedial

action.

Also, we increase the rating from a deficiency to a significant

deficiency based on:

o the risk of material misstatement in the financial statements

e the risk to reputation

e the significance of non-compliance with policies and applicable
laws and regulations

o the potential to cause financial loss including fraud, or

 where management has not taken appropriate timely action to
resolve the deficiency.

This requires immediate
management action to
resolve.

Deficiency

6

Other
matter

A deficiency arises when internal controls are ineffective or missing,
and are unable to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements in
the financial statements. A deficiency may also result in non-
compliance with policies and applicable laws and regulations and/or
inappropriate use of public resources.

We expect management
action will be taken in a
timely manner to resolve
deficiencies.

An other matter is expected to improve the efficiency and/or
effectiveness of internal controls, but does not constitute a
deficiency in internal controls. If an other matter is not resolved, we
do not consider that it will result in a misstatement in the financial
statements or non-compliance with legislative requirements.

Our recommendation
may be implemented at
management’s
discretion.

Financial reporting issues

High

Potential effect on the financial statements

Prioritisation of
remedial action

We assess that there is a high likelihood of this causing a material
misstatement in one or more components (transactions, balances
and disclosures) of the financial statements, or there is the potential
for financial loss including fraud.

This requires immediate
management action to
resolve.

Medium

We assess that there is a medium likelihood of this causing a
material misstatement in one or more components of the financial
statements.

We expect management
action will be taken in a
timely manner.

Low

We assess that there is a low likelihood of this causing a material
misstatement in one or more components of the financial
statements.

We recommend
management action to
resolve; however, a
decision on whether any
action is taken is at
management’s
discretion.

SENSITIVE — until tabled in Council



BLACKALL-TAMBO REGIONAL COUNCIL Return to Agenda

Next Item
OFFICER REPORTS
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: 18 November 2020
Item No: 6.1.8
SUBJECT HEADING: North Australia Climate Program Workshops
Author and Officer's Title: Alastair Rutherford, Director of Finance Corporate and

Community Services
CLASSIFICATION: (if confidential)

Summary: The University of Southern Queensland are wanting to hold a workshop in
Tambo and have requested that Council provide a venue, assistance with promotion and
catering for the event.

Officer's Recommendation: That Council consider the request to provide support.

Background

The attachments detail a request from the University of Southern Queensland to hold a
workshop in Tambo on 9™ or 10" December.

The workshop will run from 8.30am to 2.00pm with a range of presenters.
It is suggested that Council provides:
(@ A venue
(i) Assistance with promotion — emails, Facebook and posters etc.
(iii) Catering

Funds have not been included in the budget for this event.

Link to Corporate Plan

Sustainable and Prosperous Economy

Economic Development

Encourage Economic Development within the Region

Consultation (internal/external)
Arts and Cultural Officer
University of Southern Queensland

Policy Implications
Nil

Budget and Resource Implications
Approx $700.00 not budgeted.
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BREAKING

J\'/37AY ALERT

INTERPRETING A RAIN FORECAST ACCURATELY
A MAJOR ISSUE FOR PRODUCERS

Are you in the 70% of producers reading their weather forecasts
incorrectly? Does the rainfall forecast always seem to ‘get it wrong'?

Chinchilla Workshop
Thursday 29 October, 8:30am-2pm

In partnership with Chinchilla Landcare Group
Guest speaker from Ag Solutions

Photograph by Steve O'Canner

The Northern Australia Climate Program’s regionally located ‘Climate Mates' deliver climate and forecasting
workshops across Northern Australia. Dunng these workshops, the team discovered that 7/10 producers have been
misinterpreting the rainfall forecast for years!

NACP is now offering an online short course, Forecasting for Decssion-Making, that has been designed to upsiill
producers to get the most out of the weather forecasts and read them accurately,

This course covers: El Nmo-Southern Oscdllation (ENSO), Indian Ocean Dipole (OD), Madden Julien Oscillation (MJO);
and Interpreting the Forecast. One-on-one follow up ensures this information is tailored to your property.
Supported by the Bureau of Meteorology and the UK Met office, this course will give you the knowledge to correctly
interpret and use forecasting as a productive tool in decision-making

Places are limited, so register now and connect with the best cli
and forecast researchers in the business.

NACGT s & parttecship between the Queonsland Government
Meat and Livestock Australia snd the University of Souther
Queersland to help Northi=m Austs alian produtess mandgs
drought and climate risks
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BLACKALL-TAMBO REGIONAL COUNCIL Return to Agenda

Next ltem
OFFICER REPORTS
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: 18 November 2020
Item No: 6.1.9
SUBJECT HEADING: St Patrick’s Catholic Church
Author and Officer's Title: Alastair Rutherford, Director of Finance Corporate and

Community Services
CLASSIFICATION: (if confidential)

Summary: St Patrick’s Catholic Church are holding their annual Christmas fete on 21
November and have asked for Council assistance.

Officer's Recommendation: That Council consider the request to provide support.

Background

The representatives of St Patrick’s Catholic Church inadvertently missed the 27 May 2020
cut-off regarding requests for in-kind support for the 2020/2021 financial year.

Council has received a request for in-kind support by waiving of hire fees of the following:
e 250 chairs and 60 tables

10 wheelie bins

13 KVA generator

Sanitizing/cleaning of toilets

50 metres of barrier mesh

and a cash donation of $352.00 to meet the copyright costs of a children’s movie to be
shown at their fete on Saturday 21 November.

Link to Corporate Plan
Nil

Consultation (internal/external)
DFCCS

Policy Implications
Nil

Budget and Resource Implications
Approx $1744.00 not budgeted
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BLACKALL-TAMBO REGIONAL COUNCIL Return to Agenda

Next Item
OFFICER REPORTS
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: 18 November 2020
Item No: 4.1.10
SUBJECT HEADING: Regional Arts Development Program — Round 1
(2020-2021)
Author and Officer's Title: Alastair Rutherford, Director of Finance Corporate and

Community Services
CLASSIFICATION: (if confidential)

Summary: The first round of the 2020-2021 RADF program closed for applications on 30
October. Six applications were received.

Officer's Recommendation: That Council receive the minutes of the meeting of the
Regional Arts Development Fund Committee and endorse the Committee’s
recommendations to fund the applications totalling $13,500.00.

Background

Applications were received for the 1 round of funding for the 2020-2021 year with
applications closing on 30 October. Six applications were received and presented for
assessment. The Committee elected to support four applications as presented and request
more information from two applicants.

Applicant Project Amount
Red Ridge Support for a tour of western|$3,000
Queensland for Humphrey B. More information
Bear’s — Put on Your Dancing requested
Shoes!
BCA Furniture Restoration $2,185
Approved
BCA Furniture Making $2,185
Approved
BTRC - Neighbourhood Crack-up sisters $4,950
Centre Approved
Better in Blackall Community Workshop &|$5,400
Tourism Symposium More information
requested
Tambo - ICPA Children’s art/acro workshops | $4,180
Approved

Link to Corporate Plan

Social

Arts & Culture

Continue to grow our region as the premier arts and cultural hub of Western Queensland

Youth
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Consultation (internal/external)
RADF Committee

Policy Implications
Nil

Budget and Resource Implications
$13,500.00 funded
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General Meeting RADF Meeting 10.11.2020 — BTRC Tambo Boardroom.

Date: 10.11.20
Time: 3.45 pm
Present: Louise Martin, Ros Wood, Lindy Hardie(Chair), Alison Shaw (RLO),

Kiralee Sanderson, Boyd Johnstone, Pip Fearon
Apologies: Pam Pullos

Motion: That the Apologies be accepted.
Moved: Boyd Seconded: Louise

Appointment of Chairman:

Lindy Hardie nominated by Boyd
Johnstone
Accepted

There being no further nominations Lindy was duly accepted.

Minutes:
The minutes of the previous general meeting held on 12" May 2020 were tabled.
Motion: That the minutes be confirmed as a true and correct record of the meeting.
Moved: Louise
Seconded: Ros
Business arising from the Minutes:

e Tambo Dam Lights update.

e Round 1 was unable to open in July due to late notification of the AQ
RADF funding.

Correspondence:

Inward - Email & written correspondence:
e AQ - notification of $49,500.00 for 2020-2021 program.
e Requests to delay projects due the COVID-19
e BCA — cancellation of bead making working workshop

Outward - Email & written correspondence:
e RD1 advertising/promotion

Motion: That the inward correspondence be received and the outward endorsed.

Moved: Wendy
Seconded: Pip
Business arising from the Correspondence:

nil
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Financial Report:
Current Balance: $77,365.94
Motion: That the financial report be received.

Moved: Alison
Seconded: Wendy

Business arising from the Financial Report:

e $2,243.00 returned from BCA — glass bead workshops cancelled
BCA — $622.94 to be returned from furniture restoration workshop

Assessment of Applications:

Red Ridge Support for a tour of western Queensland for
Humphrey B. Bear’s — Put on Your Dancing Shoes!

BCA Furniture Restoration

BCA Furniture Making

BTRC - Crack-up sisters

Neighbourhood

Centre

Better in Blackall Community Workshop & Tourism Symposium

Festival

Tambo - ICPA Children’s art/acro workshops

Motion: That the RADF Committee seek further information from Red Ridge
regarding the tour of western Queensland by Humphrey B Bear.
Moved: Wendy Seconded: Boyd

All in favour
The Committee requests
Entire budget showing what BTRC RADF funds are supporting
Evidence of community support
Evidence of commitment from other Shires
Detail of other community engagement activities to be undertaken in the
towns.

Motion: That the RADF committee approves the application received from the
Blackall Cultural Assoc Inc for a furniture restoration workshop for the amount of
$2,185.00
Moved: Ros Seconded: Kiralee

All'in favour
The Committee noted that historically furniture restoration workshops have been
delivered as a cooperative regional project.
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Motion: That the RADF committee approves the application received from the
Blackall Cultural Assoc Inc for a furniture making workshop for the amount of
$2185.00
Moved: Kiralee Seconded:

All'in favour

Committee considered an option if there are not enough participants for the box-
making a second week of furniture restoration is delivered.

Motion: That the RADF committee approves the application received from the BTRC
- Neighbourhood Centre workshops with the Crack-up sisters for the amount of
$4,950.00
Moved: Kiralee Seconded: Louise

All'in favour

Motion: That the RADF Committee seek further information from the Better in
Blackall Festival Committee about the community workshop and tourism symposium.
Moved: Louise Seconded: Wendy

All'in favour

e Enquire why Jo Jordan is not being utilised — why is BiB not building on the
work done with Jo?

e Would like detail of the $2000 in-kind support from Red Ridge

e Committee doesn’t consider the catering should be free for participants

Motion: That the RADF committee approves the application received from the Tambo
ICPA for children’s art and acrobatic workshops for the amount of $4,180.00
Moved: Boyd Seconded: Wendy
All'in favour
Kiralee and Phillipa declared a conflict of interest and abstained from voting.

General Business:

Next Round & Meeting:

Open the week of November 16th, closing at the beginning of February.
Closure:

There being no further general business the meeting closed at 5.45pm.
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BLACKALL-TAMBO REGIONAL COUNCIL Return to Agenda

Next ltem
OFFICER REPORTS
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: 18 November 2020
Item No: 6.2.1
SUBJECT HEADING: Director of Works and Services’ Operations Report
— October 2020
Author and Officer's Title: John Turlan, Director of Works and Services

CLASSIFICATION: (if confidential)

Summary: The Director of Works and Services report for October 2020 is presented to
Council.

Officer's Recommendation: That Council receive the Director of Works and Services’
Operation Report for October 2020.

Background

Construction

e R2R - Hospital Road - 1% seal completed, second seal early December.

e TMR -Isisford Road Rehab — Primed lots 1-6 to seal on 4" November. (19 lots in total).
e TIDS - Langlo Road pave and seal

Flood Damage crews /Maintenance Graders Location
e TMR - Adavale Road flood damage
¢ Rosclare, Jynoomah and Toolmaree Roads

Maintenance Crews

RMPC - Guide posts Adavale Road and 13C
RMPC - Surface correction 13B and 13C

Edge patching 13B

Private Works — Ergon traffic control

Reflect pick up

Hospital line marking

RMPC - Remove grid on Adavale Road

Pothole patching Mitchell Street and Playfair Road
RMPC - Sign repairs Springsure and Alpha Roads

Total km - 2020/21
New Bitumen sealing works 3 klm
Bitumen resealing works 0 klm

Monthly Statistics

Formation grading — total km 86 km
Gravel re-sheeting — total meters 0.5 km
Bitumen resealing works — total km 2,400 m2
Plant downtime that impacted production - total hours for month Odays
Number of customer requests received 5
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Number of customer requests actioned 5

Average response time to customer request - hrs. Same day/next day
Premix used/prime used 20tn / 120ltrs
Emulsion/sand/stone 5m3

Upcoming Works
e TMR-Isisford Road rehabilitation
e TIDS- Langlo Road pave and seal

Projects

W4Q PROJECTS

Rugby League dressing rooms — will be completed mid November
Saleyards Water Yards — Complete

Saleyards Loading Ramp — starting first week of November

Waste oil collection stations - Complete

Perry Bros Tourism Project — slab for rotunda mid November

EE Parr Park Lighting — Complete

Banks Park stage - footings installed stage to be complete late November

DCP PROJECTS

e Sewerage Mains — 75 % cleaning complete, relining early December
e BIB Sign - ordered delivery late November

LRCI PROJECT
¢ Heavy vehicle bypass — design stage with works to start early 2021

Water and Sewerage

Water Services

Number of interruptions to services 2
Number of customers impacted by the interruptions to services- 2
notices were issued to residents as part of mains replacement
works
Water consumption total ML 21020
Number of customer requests received 4
Number of customer requests actioned 4
Average response time to customer request - hrs. Same day/next day
Number of incidents 0
Lost Time Injury (LTI) resulting from incidents 0
Sewerage Services
Number of interruptions to services 4
Number of customers impacted by the interruptions to services 4
Sewerage Treated total hours 496
Number of customer requests received 2
Number of customer requests actioned 2
Average response time to customer request - hrs. 2 hrs
Number of incidents 0
Lost Time Injury (LTI) resulting from incidents 0
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Parks and Gardens
e Maintenance of council facilities, town streets, parks and gardens

Workshop / Fleet
¢ Preventative/Routine maintenance
e Minor breakdowns

Monthly Statistics

Number of plant items serviced 12
Number of plant breakdowns 6
Number of call outs 0
Hours downtime due to servicing 29.5
Hours downtime due to breakdown 72
Hours downtime due to parts availability 34
Number of incidents 0
Lost Time Injury (LTI) resulting from incidents 0

Maintenance and Repairs

Plant Plant DOM Hrs Breakdown description
Number Description Down
5202 Iveco Garbage 2015 34 Compactor would not engage.
truck Diagnosed worn PTO. Rebuilt PTO
and tested ok.
5511 Mack granite 2017 3 Leaking wheel seal
2008 Ahmann  Multi 2012 2 Engine de-rated. Found broken wire
roller on fuel pump.
6522 Ford Ranger 2017 18 Brake lines U/S. New ones supplied
under warranty.
4102 Kubota tractor 2006 3 Short in PTO solenoid.
5803 TWE side tipper 2006 12 Failed wheel bearing. Cut off and fit
new bearings and seal.
Total 72

Rangers Monthly Statistics:

Animal Control
e Destroy 1 possum & 1 crippled common bull.
e Remove dead cow from bottom fence line of cemetery

Animal Complaints

e il

Weed Control
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Spray — Prickly acacias - Linsalee turn off and Manning Reserve area
Spray — Parkinsonia —Jynoomah gravel pit and Stubbie Bend.

Spray - Parthenium - Tambo industrial area
Spray — Weeds — Tambo Racecourse
Spray — Florestina - Ward Road, Blackall -Tambo Road and Augathella Road
Spray — Mexican Poppies - Tambo air strip




Wild Dog Control
Dingo scalps destroyed

e 25 Tambo
e (O Blackall
1080 Baiting

e 48 properties baited

Water Facilities
Check waters at Rodds, Manning, Gum Holes, Drensmaine and Chatham.

General
Bloomfield Pastoral Co. has 50 cows and some calves on agistment in Jackson lane.
Barry Rogers has 16 heifers and 1 bull on agistment at Burr Gully — Alpha/Springsure Road.

Link to Corporate Plan
Sustainable and Prosperous Economy
Roads

Environmental Management
Pest Management
Weed, seeds and pests including wild dogs are effectively controlled

Rural Lands
Council controlled lands are well managed

Consultation (internal/external)
CEO

DWS

Works Supervisors

Parks & Garden Supervisors
Water Supervisors

Sewerage Supervisor

Fleet Manager

Ranger

Policy Implications
Nil

Budget and Resource Implications
Nil
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BLACKALL-TAMBO REGIONAL COUNCIL Return to Agenda

Next ltem
OFFICER REPORTS
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: 18 November 2020
Item No: 6.2.2
SUBJECT HEADING: Work Health and Safety Report
Author and Officer's Title: John Turlan, Director of Works and Services

CLASSIFICATION: (if confidential)

Summary: The Work Health and Safety Report has been provided to Council.

Officer's Recommendation: That Council receive the Work Health and Safety Report for
October 2020.

Background

Incidents
- There has only been one incident this month which was a minor injury.
- No Department reportable incidents to WHS QId.

Investigations
- 1 ongoing investigation

Toolbox Talks
- There has been 1 toolbox talk for the month

Improvements
- The Work Health & Safety Management System is working on closure of actions from
the Corrective Actions Register.

The BTRC-Safe Management System is in the process of being updated with all
documents being reviewed and the whole site being made as user friendly as
possible.

Notices

- Prohibition — none

- Improvement — none
There were 9 improvement notices after a visit from WHS QId, 7 of which have been
completed

Operational Information

Safety Management Plans for TMR works:
- There have not been any WHS Management Plans for TMR works

Safety Hazards
- There have been 0 hazards reported

Inductions: up to and including 31.10.2020
Employees: 2
Contractors: 5
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Work Camp: 2

Link to Corporate Plan

Governance

Best Practice Governance

A competent, productive and contributing workforce

Consultation (internal/external)
Work Health and Safety Advisor

Policy Implications
Nil

El_lljdget and Resource Implications
[
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BLACKALL-TAMBO REGIONAL COUNCIL Return to Agenda

Next ltem
OFFICER REPORTS
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: 18 November 2020
Item No: 6.2.3
SUBJECT HEADING: Private Works Policy
Author and Officer's Title: John Turlan, Director of Works and Services

CLASSIFICATION: (if confidential)

Summary: The Private Works Policy outlines conditions for private works undertaken by
Council.

Officer's Recommendation: That Council adopt the Private Works Policy.

Background

The Private Works Policy has been written to assist the Council workforce and community
understand conditions on which Council will conduct private works.

Council’s core business takes precedence over any agreed or perceived obligation to carry
out private works and it is not a core business of Council. Council is not to compete against
any individuals or businesses in the provision of services and this policy outlines this
obligation.

Link to Corporate Plan

Sustainable and Prosperous Economy

Economic Development

Encourage Economic Development with the Region

Consultation (internal/external)
CEO
DWS

Policy Implications
Nil

BlIJdget and Resource Implications
Ni
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Blackall-Tambo
Regional Council

Private Works Policy

Policy Number: Admin 46 Effective Date: 18 November 2020
Version Number: One Review Date: 17 November 2024

Policy Compiled by: Chief Executive Officer
Policy Approved by: Chief Executive Officer

SCOPE
This policy applies to all Community members who wish to hire Council plant and equipment.

DEFINITIONS
Private works includes any work, undertaken by agreement for which a fixed price quotation or schedule
of rates has been provided by Council.

POLICY STATEMENT

It is recognized that private works is not a “core business™ of Council. It should be recognised that a
key factor in Council not promofing itself for conduction of private works is to avoid competing against
individuals andf/or businesses operating and/or engaged in the provision of such services within the
community.

Generally, Council will only undertake private works which fall within its usual areas of operations.

Works will only be undertaken if:
a) The owner and/or caretaker are present for the duration of the works; and
b) WMo local contractor is available to camy out the work; or
c) Mo local contractor is capable of camying out the work.

It is recognised that, at all times, Council core business takes precedence over any agreed or perceived
obligation to camy out private works.

Council's schedule of fees and charges lists some of the private works offered at a set rate by Council.
All other private works are discharged as per this policy.

PROVISIONS
Only approved Council employees shall operate plant engaged on private works.

Small plant iz generally not available for hire. Small plant is inclusive of electrical equipment, pumps,
mowers and generators. Council however may consider hiring small plant in special circumstances.

Appropriately ticketed employees may operate plant and equipment outside work hours for private use
(including operating plant for clubs or organisations in the Shire) with no labour hire component being

applied.

Policy Number: Admin | Version numiser:

a8 one Adopted by Blackall-Tambo Resglonal Counchl Fap=1of 3
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, " B].agkall-‘l‘amhq
Regional Council Private Works Policy

Council will not “dry hire” any plant or equipment to outside parties for commercial use.

Any damages or injury caused to persons or property by the operation of Council plant, whilst on hire,
shall be the responsibility of the hirer. eg. Accidental injuries, vehiclefequipment damage, damage to
water lines, electricity, telecommunications or other buildings or property.

It iz applicant's responsibility to discuss with the operator the standard of work to be achieved or to
terminate the plant operation at any time i the work does not meet the applicant's satisfaction. The
applicant will be charged for work completed up to the point of termination.

In the case of a community organisation or club wishing to apply for private works to be undertaken at
a reduced or nil cost, the organisation or club must make an application through the Request for Council
Assistance policies.

PROCEDURE
For all works a private works application form must be completed.

Applicants shall request private works in one of several ways:

A private works application form, completed in full which details:
= The person for whom the work will be carried out
The address or location of the work
The nature of the work
The type and quantity of material or plan expected
The timeframe requested in which the work is to be completed

Or

A written request for private works {including details similar to those mentioned above) addressed to
the CEQ. The CEO will forward the letter to the relevant Director who shall complete the application
form on the applicants’ behalf.

Or

A verbal request for private works (in the event that the person is unable to make the request in any
other way) made to the relevant Director who shall then complete the application form on the applicants’
behalf.

The relevant Director will then

Check with debtors to ensure the applicant has paid any outstanding fees or charges
Estimate the cost to complete the works

Estimate the timeframe for delivery

Specify the Council Officer who will ‘deliver’ the works.

The relevant Director will notify the applicant of the estimated cost and timeframe for delivery.

Written confirmation is required prior to commencement of the work.

‘Version number:

Paollcy Humber: one

Adopted by Blackall-Tambo Resglonal Counchl Fap=2of 3
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Blackall-Tambo

. Regional Council Private Works Policy

The Director will facilitate the private works and engage a Council Officer to deliver the work, providing
them with a copy of the private works application form.

On completion of works the Council Officer will fill in the 'delivered’ section of the private works
application form and get a signature from the applicant.

The Council Officer gives the completed application to the relevant Director who will then direct the
Debtors Clerk to generate an appropriate invoice.

INDEMNITY

In requesting and authorising the Blackall-Tambo Regional Council to carry out private works (projects
or plant hire), the applicant shall indemnify the Blackall-Tambo Regional Council against any claim,
action or process for damage or injury which may arise during the process of such works and shall keep
indemnified the Blackall-Tambo Regional Council against any claim, action or process for damage
and/or injury which might arise from the existence of such works unless such damage and/or injury is
due or contributed to by an act or omission of the Blackall-Tambo Regional Council, its employees or
agents.

REVIEW TRIGGERS
This policy is to be reviewed every 4 years or at the direction of the Chief Executive Officer.

VERSION CONTROL

| Version One | |

RECORDS
When completed and approved the original, signed hard copy of the policy is filed in the Master File.

Electronic copies are saved in the appropriately labelled folder in Magiq.

Policy Number: b One z Adopted by Blackall-Tambo Regional CouncHl Page30of 3
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SALES

BLACKALL-TAMBO REGIONAL COUNCIL

OFFICER REPORTS
COUNCIL MEETING DATE:

Item No:

SUBJECT HEADING:

Author and Officer's Title:

CLASSIFICATION: (if confidential)

Return to Agenda
Next Item

18 November 2020

7.1

Blackall Saleyards Monthly Report
Des Howard, Chief Executive Officer

Summary: The Blackall Saleyards monthly report for October 2020 is presented to Council.

Officer's Recommendation: That Council receive the Blackall Saleyards monthly report
for October 2020.

Background

anr

o5nv

1d3S

120

AON

J3a
NVr
934
atAa

HVYIN

ddv
AVIN
annr

s|jelol
1Z/0202

Spelling
Cattle

5749

5452

1759

5492

18452

70240

Spelling
Sheep

Prime &
Store
Sales

13683

8308

4856

7821

34668

59581

Weaner
& Store
Sales

4336

4446

2076

5361

16219

39554

Private
Weigh
(Same
Day)

3932

1621

1413

858

7824

22722

Private
Weigh
(Over-
night)

3348

640

685

1698

6371

28693

Private
Scan

432

Bull
Sales

59

160

219

291

TOTALS
2020/20

31048

20467

10848

21390

83753

TOTALS
2019/20

13118

24421

18297

13241

12576

5822 2213 8918 25288 | 28619 | 34823 | 34177 221513

135




Capital Works Projects

The selling pens and spelling yards are now complete as per the tenders.

The tender for the ramp and associated yards has been awarded and works are underway
and will exceed the allocated budget however, provision will be made to be cover the cost.
Some additional works were required to complete the project to bring it to a safe usable
stage.

Lighting and additional feeders are still required.

The budget will be increased to account for the additional cost and the revenue has
increased significantly due to the extra sales and spelling.

Link to Corporate Plan
Sustainable and Prosperous Economy
Economic Development

Consultation (internal/external)
CEO

Saleyards Manager

Director of Works and Services
Construction Foreman

Policy Implications
Nil

BLIJdget and Resource Implications
Ni
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BLACKALL-TAMBO REGIONAL COUNCIL Return to Agenda

Next ltem
OFFICER REPORTS
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: 18 November 2020
Item No: 7.2
SUBJECT HEADING: Planning and Development Report
Author and Officer's Title: Des Howard, Chief Executive Officer

CLASSIFICATION: (if confidential)

Summary: The Planning and Development Report is presented to Council

Officer's Recommendation: That Council receive the Planning and Development Report
for October 2020 and note that there were 2 building approvals for the month and 3
planning enquiries.

Background
DATE NUMBER DEVELOPMENT TYPE DEVELOPMENT DETAILS TOWN
06-2020-
6/10/2020 2021 Building Additions to house Tambo
14-2020-
23/10/2020 2021 Building Garden Shed Blackall

This information report provides a monthly update on the planning services that Council
provides to support planning and development activity across the local government area.

1. DEVELOPMENT ASSESSMENT

No new development applications were lodged with Council during October and no
applications are currently under assessment.

2. GENERAL PLANNING SERVICES, ENQUIRIES AND ADVICE

2.1 CUSTOMER REQUESTS
The following customer requests have been received and responded to over the past month:

PLANNING ENQUIRIES

Date Customer Details of Enquiry Status
received Details
7/10/20 Blackall resident | A Blackall resident has submitted a Food | Closed

Business Licence application to prepare
grazing boards at their premises for catering
purposes. Planning advice confirms that a
development application for material change
of use (i.e. planning approval) is not required
as the proposal meets the definition and
requirements for a home-based business in an
existing building in the Township Zone. The
Food Business Licence application can
therefore be processed.
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16/10/20

Property owner,
Blackall

The owner of a rural residential property
outside Blackall lodged a building application
for a large shed. The property currently
accommodates an existing shed and a ‘mobile
cabin’ (no dwelling house is approved on the
premises). Council’s building certifier was
concerned that the proposed shed will be used
for an industrial activity, given its scale and the
absence of a dwelling on the premises.
Building approval cannot be given if planning
approval is required — the latter must be
obtained first.

Our phone discussions with the owner
indicated that the shed will be used for
equipment and machinery storage and
potentially a future contractor’s depot. This is
an industrial-type activity in the Rural Zone,
requiring a development application for
material change of use, which would be
subject to impact assessment and public
notification. Email advice was given to this
effect.

A letter was also provided to the applicant,
confirming that the building application could
be processed on the basis of the shed’s use
for storage only and that items stored must be
ancillary/associated with the rural residential
nature of the land. This would not require
planning approval. At this stage, the owner
has not proceeded with his building
application.

Closed

20/10/20

Christmas Tree
Festival

As part of a COVID-safe checklist, event
organisers require confirmation that local
planning permissions have been obtained
from the Council. Planning advice confirmed
that the annual occurrence of the event
constitutes a temporary use, which is not
assessable development under the Planning
Scheme. Therefore planning approval is not
required, which addresses the ‘local planning
permissions’ section of the checklist.

Closed

PLANNING AND DEVELOPMEN

T CERTIFICATES

Date
received

Customer
details

Type

Status

Nil

SURVEY PLAN APPROVALS

Nil

Link to Corporate Plan
Sustainable and Prosperous Economy
Land Development
Land available to meet the needs of the community
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Consultation (internal/external)
CEO

Rates Officer

Town Planners

Policy Implications
Nil

El_lljdget and Resource Implications
[
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BLACKALL-TAMBO REGIONAL COUNCIL Return to Agenda

Next Item
OFFICER REPORTS
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: 18 November 2020
Item No: 7.3
SUBJECT HEADING: Building our Regions Round 5 — Blackall-Tambo
Internet Project — Stage 3
Author and Officer's Title: Des Howard, Chief Executive Officer

CLASSIFICATION: (if confidential)

Summary: Council has received a letter from the Department of State Development,
Tourism and Innovation confirming $200,000 (GST exclusive) towards the Blackall-Tambo
Internet Project — Stage 3.

Recommendation: That Council:
1. receive the letter from the Department of State Development, Tourism and
Innovation confirming the conditional funding of $200,000.00; and
2. commits $200,000 (excluding GST) to the Blackall-Tambo Internet Project —
Stage 3.

Background

An application had been submitted through the Building our Regionals Round 5 for funding
of stage 3 of the Blackall-Tambo Internet Project. The application has been successful, and
the Department of State Development, Tourism and Innovation have confirmed a conditional
offer of $200,000 (GST exclusive) with a co-contribution from Council of $200,000 (GST
exclusive).

The Department and Council have signed the funding agreement.

Link to Corporate Plan

Sustainable and Prosperous Economy

Infrastructure

Quiality infrastructure that meets the needs of the community

Consultation (internal/external)

CEO

Director of Finance Corporate and Community Services
Arts and Cultural Officer

Manager of Finance

Policy Implications
Nil

Budget and Resource Implications
$200,000.00 budgeted
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Qu«ns

Government

Department of
State Development,
Tourism and Innovation

Ourref. WR132070

Mr Des Howard

Chief Executive Officer
Blackall-Tambo Regional Council
PO Box 21

BLACKALL QLD 4472

Email: CEO@btrc.qid.gov.au

Dear Mr Howard

Conditional Letter of Offer — Building our Regions Round 5 — Blackall-Tambo Intemet Project —
Stage 3.

The State, acting through the Department of State Development, Tourism and Innovation
(DSDTI) is pleased to confirm its conditional offer of $200,000 (GST exclusive) towards the
Blackall-Tambo Intemet Project — Stage 3 (the Project).

This conditional offer of funding through Building our Regions Round 5 is offered to Blackall-
Tambo Regional Council (the Council), subject to the Council accepting the terms and conditions
of the attached Project Funding Schedule and the Director-General of DSDTI (or his delegate)
approving and executing the Project Funding Schedule.

Please review the Project Funding Schedule to confirm that the details included are accurate and
achievable. The Project Funding Schedule must be read together with the Head Funding
Agreement between the State of Queensland and the Council entered into on 10 February 2020.
Together these documents set out the terms and conditions of the Project Funding Agreement
between the State and the Council.

Level 37, 1 William Street Telephone +61 7 3333 5122
BRISBANE QLD 4000 Website www.ditid.qld gov.au
PO Box 15168 ABN 83 481966 722

CITY EAST QLD 4002
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The State may withdraw this conditional offer if the Council does not accept it within 20 business
days from the date of this letter. If the Project Funding Schedule is acceptable to the Council,
please sign, scan and email it to BuildingourRegions@dsdti.qld_gov.au. By retuming the signed
Project Funding Schedule, Council confirms that it is committed to delivering the Project, has
budgeted its financial contribution to the Project and acknowledges responsibility for any funding
shortfall if costs or other contributors change.

Please be aware that any funding to be provided by the State to the Council for the Project will
be provided im accordance with the terms and conditions of the Project Funding Agreement, and
the State is not obliged to provide any funding to the Council unless and until the Project Funding
Schedule is fully signed by both parties.

All media and public announcements relating to the Council’s successful application and the
Project must be coordinated and handled in consultation with DSDTI's media team, and the
Council must obtain DSDTI approval prior to contacting or responding to any media or public
requests.

Should you have any questions, please contact Lynn Sawtell, Project Manager on telephone 07
3828 2929.

Yours sincersly

Anita Hicks
Director
Grants and Program Management

16 September 2020
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BLACKALL-TAMBO REGIONAL COUNCIL Return to Agenda

Next ltem
OFFICER REPORTS
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: 18 November 2020
Item No: 7.4
SUBJECT HEADING: Meeting Procedures
Author and Officer's Title: Des Howard, Chief Executive Officer

CLASSIFICATION: (if confidential)

Summary: The Meeting Procedures set out certain procedures to ensure the local
government principles are reflected in the conduct of all meetings of council as defined in the
Local Government Regulation 2012.

Recommendation: That Council adopt the revised Meeting Procedures.

Background

Section 150G of the Local Government Act 2009 requires that a local government must
either:

a. adopt the model procedures; or
b. prepare and adopt other procedures for the conduct of its meetings and meetings of
its committee

The Meeting Procedures attached to this report has been written using the model
procedures from the Department of Local Government, Racing and Multicultural Affairs.

The changes to the Local Government Regulation 2012 came into effect on 12 October 2020
and the Meeting Procedures have been amended in accordance with these changes.

Link to Corporate Plan

Governance

Best Practice Governance

Accountable, responsible and transparent governance

Consultation Internal/External
CEO
Department of Local Government, Racing and Multicultural Affairs

Policy Implications
Standing Orders Policy
Councillor Code of Conduct Policy

Budget and Resource Implications
Nil
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™ Blackall-Tambo
- Regional Council

Meeting Procedures

Policy Number: Stat 46 Effective Date:
Version Number: Two Review Date:

Policy Compiled by: Chief Executive Officer
Policy Approved by: Chief Executive Officer

SCOPE

This policy applies to Blackall-Tambo Regional Council, its Councillors and employees.

PURPOSE

The purpose of the meeting procedures is to set out certain procedures to ensure the local government
principles are reflected in the conduct of council meetings, standing and advisory committee meetings
as defined in the Local Government Regulation 2012 (LGR). However, meeting procedures do not
apply to meetings of the council’s audit committee.

It is not intended that the meeting procedures would deal with all aspects of meeting conduct but only
those required to strengthen public confidence in council to deal with the conduct of councillors in
meetings.

REFERENCE

Local Government Act 2009

Local Government Regulation 2012

Model Meeting Procedures — Department of Local Government, Racing and Multicultural Affairs
BTRC Standing Orders Policy

BTRC Councilior Code of Conduct Policy

BACKGROUND
As required under section 150F of the Local Government Act 2009 (LGA) this document sets out:

« the process for how a chairperson of a council meeting may deal with instances of unsuitable
meeting conduct by councillors, and

« the process for how suspected inappropriate conduct of a councillor referred to the local
government by the Independent Assessor is to be dealt with at a council meeting.

Version number:

Pollcy Number: Stat 40 Two

Adopted by Blackall-Tambo Regilonal Counchl Page 10of 11
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4. Blackall-Tambo
. Regional Council Meeting Procedures

APPLICATION

A council must either adopt the model meeting procedures or prepare and adopt other procedures for
the conduct of its council meeting, standing and advisory committee meetings that are consistent with
the model meeting procedures.

A council must conduct is meetings in a manner that is consistent with the model meeting procedures.

PROCESSES
1. Process for dealing with unsuitable meeting conduct by a councillor in a meeting

The conduct of a councillor is unsuitable meeting conduct if the conduct happens during a council
meeting and contravenes a behavioural standard of the code of conduct for councillors. When dealing
with an instance of unsuitable conduct by a councillor in a meeting, the following procedures must be
followed:

1.1 The chairperson must reasonably believe that unsuitable meeting conduct has been
displayed by a councillor at a meeting.

1.2 If the chairperson decides the unsuitable meeting conduct has occurred, the chairperson
may consider the severity of the conduct and whether the councillor has had any previous
warnings for unsuitable meeting conduct issued. If the chairperson decides the conduct is
of serious nature or another waming is unwarranted, proceed to step 1.7.

1.3  If the chairperson decides unsuitable meeting conduct has occurred but is of a less serious
nature, the chairperson may request the councillor take remedial action such as:

1.3.1 Cease the unsuitable meeting conduct and refraining from exhibiting the conduct
1.3.2 Apologising for their conduct
1.3.3 Withdrawing their comments.

14 If the councillor complies with the chairperson's request for remedial action, no further action
is required.

1.5 If the councillor fails to comply with the chairperson’s request for remedial action, the
chairperson may wam the councillor that failing to comply with the requests could result in
an order being issued.

16 If the councillor complies with the chairperson’s warning and request for remedial action, no
further action is required.

17 If the councillor continues to fail to comply with the chairperson’s request for remedial action
or the chairperson decided a warning was not appropriate under 1.3, the chairperson may
make one or more of the orders below:

1.7.1 An order reprimanding the councillor for the conduct
1.7.2 An order requiring the councillor to leave the meeting, including any area set aside
for the public and stay out for the duration of the meeting.

Policy Number: Stat 40 b Two ' Adopted by Blackall-Tambo Regional CouncHl Page 20f 11
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4. Blackall-Tambo
. Regional Council Meeting Procedures

1.8 If the councillor fails to comply with an order to leave and stay away from the meeting, the
chairperson can issue an order that the councillor be removed from the meeting.

1.9 Following the completion of the meeting, the chairperson must ensure:

1.9.1 Details of any order issued is recorded in the minutes of the meeting

1.9.2 |If itis the third or more order made within a 12-month period against a councillor, or
the councillor has refused to comply with an order issued to leave the meeting, these
matters are dealt with at the next meeting of the council and treated as inappropriate
conduct.

1.9.3 The council’s chief executive officer is advised to ensure details of any order made
is updated in the council's councillor conduct register.

1.10 Any councillor aggrieved with an order issued by the chairperson can move a motion of
dissent for parts 1.1, 1.7 and 1.8 above.

Note: Chairpersons of a meeting are carrying out a statutory responsibility under the LGA to manage
and lead the meeting. As such, where a chairperson behaves inappropriately in a meeting, this involves
a breach of the trust placed in them as the chairperson of the meeting and may be dealt with as
misconduct. The breach can be referred to the Office of the Independent Assessor to be dealt with.
However, breaches of trust don't arise because councillors disagree with the chairperson’s decision or
ruling during the meeting.

2. Meeting process for dealing with suspected inappropriate conduct which has been referred
to the local government by the Independent Assessor

Pursuant to Chapter S5A, Division 5 of the LGA (Referral of conduct to local government) a referral from
the Independent Assessor of inappropriate conduct or an instance of suspected inappropriate conduct
may arise from circumstances under paragraph 1.9.2 of this document.

In either case, the council must complete an investigation into the alleged conduct:

+ Consistent with any recommendation from the Independent Assessor; and
« Consistent with the council's investigation policy; or
« In another way decided by resolution of the council.

After the completion of the investigation, the council must decide in a council meeting, whether the
councillor has engaged in inappropriate conduct, unless it has delegated responsibility for this decision
under section 257 of the LGA.

When dealing with an instance of suspected inappropriate conduct which has been referred to a council
by the Independent Assessor:

21 The council must be consistent with the local govemment principle of transparency and
accountable decision making in the public interest by dealing with suspected inappropriate
conduct in an open meeting of the council. However, where the matter may directly affect
the health and safety of the complainant due to the nature of the complaint, the council may
resolve to go into closed session under section 254J of the LGR to discuss the allegation.

Version number:

Policy Number: Stat 40 Two

Adopted by Blackall-Tambo Regilonal Counchl Page 30of 11
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"N Blackall-Tambo
. Regional Council Meeting Procedures

The subject councillor has a declarable conflict of interest in the matter and is permitted by
the council to remain in the meeting during the debate about whether the councillor engaged
in the inappropriate conduct and answer questions put to the subject councillor through the
chairperson to assist the other councillors in making a decision. The permission to remain
in the meeting for the debate is on the condition that the subject councillor must leave the
place where the meeting is being held, including any area set aside for the public, during the
vote on whether they have committed inappropriate conduct and what, if any, penalty to
impose if the councillor is found to have committed inappropriate conduct.

Should the complainant be a councillor, that councillor may have a declarable conflict of
interest in the matter and if so, must follow the declarable conflict of interest procedures in
section 4. If the complainant councillor who has a conflict of interest, wishes to remain in
the meeting during the debate and vote on the matter, the other councillors must decide on
how to deal with the conflict of interest under section 4. The complainant councillor can be
ordered to leave the meeting place or conditions may be applied to allow that councillor to
participate in either the debate, the vote or the decision on any disciplinary action to be
applied.

The council must debate the issue and decide whether the subject councillor engaged in
inappropriate conduct. If the council has lost quorum due to the number of conflicted
councillors or another reason, the matter must be delegated consistent with section 257 of
the LGA or deferred to another date when a quorum will be present.

If a decision is reached that the subject councillor has engaged in inappropriate conduct,
then the councillors must decide what penalty or penalties from the orders detailed in 2.6, if
any, to impose on the councillor. In deciding what penalty to impose, the council may
consider any previous inappropriate conduct of the councillor and any allegation made in
the investigation that was admitted, or not challenged, and that the council is reasonably
satisfied is true.

The council may order that no action be taken against the councillor or make one or more
of the foilowing:

2.6.1 An order that the councillor make a public admission that the councillor has engaged
in inappropriate conduct

2.6.2 An order reprimanding the councillor for the conduct

2.6.3 An order that the councillor attend training or counselling to address the councillor's
conduct, including at the councillor's expense

2.6.4 An order that the councillor be excluded from a stated council meeting

2.6.5 An order that the councillor is removed, or must resign, from a position representing
the local government, other than the office of councillor, for example that the
councillor is ordered to resign from an appointment representing the local
government on a state board or committee.

2.6.6 An order that if the councillor engages in the same type of conduct again, it will be
treated as misconduct

2.6.7 An order that the councillor reimburse the council for all or some of the costs arising
from the councillor's inappropriate conduct.

A local government may not make an order under 2.6.3, 2.6.4, 2.6.5, 2.6.6 in relation to a
person who is no longer a councillor.

Version number:

Policy Number: Stat 40 Two Adopted by Blackall-Tambo Regional CouncHl Page 4 of 11
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"N Blackall-Tambo
. Regional Council Meeting Procedures

28  The subject councillor, and where relevant, the complainant councillor, must be invited back
into the place where the meeting is being held once a decision has been made, and the
chairperson must advise them of the details of the decision.

29 The chairperson must ensure the meeting minutes reflect the resolution made.
3. Prescribed conflict of interest

Councillors are ultimately responsible for informing of any prescribed confiict of interest on matters to
be discussed at a council meeting, standing or advisory committee meeting (other than ordinary
business matters). When dealing with a prescribed conflict of interest, councillors must abide by the
following procedures:

31 A councillor who has notified the chief executive officer of a prescribed conflict of interest in
a matter to be discussed in a council meeting must also give notice during the meeting.

3.2 A councillor who first becomes aware of a prescribed conflict of interest in a matter during a
council meeting must immediately inform the meeting of the conflict of interest.

3.3  When notifying the meeting of a prescribed conflict of interest, the following details must, at
a minimum, be provided:

3.3.1 [fit arises because of a gift, loan or contract, the value of the gift, loan or contract

3.3.2 If it arises because of an application or submission, the subject of the application or
submission

3.3.3 The name of any entity, other than the councillor, that has an interest in the matter

3.34 The nature of the councillor's relationship with the entity that has an interest in a
matter

3.3.5 Details of the councillor's and any other entity’s interest in the matter.

3.4  The councillor must then leave the place of the meeting, including any area set aside for the
public, and stay away while the matter is being discussed and voted on, unless the subject
councillor has written notice from the Minister to participate in the matter.

3.5 Once the councillor has left the area where the meeting is being conducted, the council can
continue discussing and deciding on the matter at hand.

4. Declarable conflict of interest

Councillors are ultimately responsible for informing any declarable conflict of interest on matters to be
discussed at council meetings, standing or advisory committee meetings that might lead to a decision
that in contrary to the public interest (other than ordinary business matters).

A councillor may raise their personal interests in a matter at the meeting to canvas the view of the other
councillors prior to deciding to declare a conflict of interest. If the other councillors suspect the personal
interest might be a conflict of interest, the councillor may disclose their suspicion and the processes
under section 150EW of the LGA.

When dealing with a declarable conflict of interest, councillors must abide by the following procedures:

Version number:

Policy Number: Stat 40 Two

Adopted by Blackall-Tambo Regional CouncHl Page Sof 11
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¥ Regional Council Meeting Procedures

a councillor who has notified the chief executive officer of a declarabie conflict of interest in
a matter to be discussed at a council meeting must also give notice during the meeting.

A councillor who first becomes aware of a declarable conflict of interest in a matter during a
council meeting must inform the meeting of the conflict of interest.

When notifying the meeting of a declarable conflict of interest, councillor should provide
sufficient detail to allow the other councillors to make an informed decision about how best
to manage the declarable conflict of interest in the public interest. The following minimum
details must be provided:

4.3.1 The nature of the declarable conflict of interest
4.3.2 Ifit arises because of a councillor’s relationship with a related party:

4.3.2.1 The name of the related party to the councillor
4.3.2.2 The nature of the relationship of the related party to the councillor
4.3.2.3 The nature of the related party’s interest in the matter

4.3.3 ifit arises because of a gift or loan from another person to the councillor or a related
party:

4.3.3.1 the name of the other person
4.3.3.2 the nature of the relationship of the other person to the councillor or related

party
4.3.3.3 the nature of the other person's interest in the matter
4.3.3.4 the value of the gift or loan and the date the gift or loan was made.

After a councillor has declared a conflict of interest, the councillor should consider leaving
the meeting while the matter is discussed unless they have reasons why their participation
would improve making the decision in the public interest.

If the councillor chooses not to leave the meeting, the councillor may advise the other
councillors of their reasons for seeking permission to participate in making the decision.

The other councillors at the meeting must then decide, by resolution, whether the councillor
can participate in the decision making in relation to the matter, including voting on the matter,
or whether they should not participate in the decision and leave the place of the meeting
while the matter is decided by the non-conflicted councillors. The non-conflicted councillors
may impose conditions on the councillor under a decision to either participate or leave the
meeting e.g. may stay for the debate but must leave for the vote. The councillor must comply
with any decision or condition imposed by the non-conflicted councillors.

In deciding on whether a councillor may participate in a decision about a matter in which the
councillor has a declarable conflict of interest, only councillors who do not themselves have
prescribed or declarable conflict of interest in the matter are eligible to participate in the
decision making. The decision may be made even if the number of those councillors is less
than a majority or less than a quorum for the meeting consistent with section 150ET of the
LGA.

Policy Number: Stat 40

Version number:

Two Adopted by Blackall-Tambo Regional CouncHl Page Gof 11
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¥ Regional Council Meeting Procedures

The councillor who is the subject of the decision may remain in the meeting while the debate
is occurring and can participate by answering questions from the chairperson to assist the
other councillors in making their decision. The subject councillor must not vote or otherwise
participate in making the decision but may remain in the meeting while the vote on the matter
takes place and the decision is declared by the chairperson, on whether the councillor may
remain and participate in deciding the matter in which the councillor has a declarable confiict
of interest.

When deciding whether a councillor may participate in the decision making on a matter in
which they have a declarable conflict of interest, the other counciliors should consider the
circumstances of the matter including, but not limited to:

4.34 How does the inclusion of the councillor in the deliberation affect the public trust

435 How close or remote is the councillor’s relationship to the related party

4.3.6 If the declarable conflict of interest relates to a gift or other benefit, how long ago
was the gift or benefit received

4.3.7 Will the benefit or detriment the subject councilior or their related party stands to
receive from the decision have major or minor impact on them

4.3.8 How does the benefit or detriment the subject councillor stands to receive compare
to others in the community

439 How does this compare with similar matters that council has decided and have other
councillors with the same or similar interests decided to leave the meeting

4.3.10 Whether the subject councillor has unique skills, knowledge or expertise that might
help make the best decision in the public interest.

If the non-conflicted councillors cannot decide about the declarable conflict of interest of a
councillor, they are taken to have decided that the councillor must leave and stay away from
the meeting while the non-conflicted councillors discuss and vote on the matter.

A decision about a councilior who has a declarable conflict of interest in a matter applies in
relation to the councillor for participating in the decision, and subsequent decisions, about
the same matter unless there is change to the councillor's personal interests and/or the
nature of the matter being discussed. If the non-conflicted councillors decide that the
councillor can act in the public interest on the matter, then the councillor may participate in
the meeting and be involved in processes occurring outside of a council meeting about the
same matter e.g. briefing sessions or workshops.

In making the decision under 4.6 and 4.9, it is irrelevant how the subject councillor intended
to vote on the issue or any other issue (if known or suspected).

A councillor does not contravene the above procedures if the councillor participates in a
decision under written approval from the Minister.

Reporting a suspected conflict of interest

If a councillor at a meeting reasonable believes or suspects that another councillor has a
personal interest in a matter that may be a prescribed or declarable conflict of interest, and
that councillor is participating in a decision on that matter, the councillor must immediately
inform the chairperson of the meeting of their belief or suspicion, and the facts and
circumstances that led to their belief or suspicion.

Policy Number: Stat 40

Version number:

Two Adopted by Blackall-Tambo Regional CouncHl Page 7 of 11
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4. Blackall-Tambo
. Regional Council Meeting Procedures

The chairperson should ask the relevant councillor with the suspected personal interest of
whether they have any prescribed or declarable conflict of interest in the matter. If the
councillor agrees they have a conflict of interest, the councillor must follow the relevant
procedures above.

If the councillor believes they do not have a confiict of interest, they must inform the meeting
of that belief and their reasons for that belief.

The non-conflicted councillors must then decide whether the councillor has a prescribed
conflict of interest, a declarable conflict of interest or that the councillor does not have a
prescribed or declarable confiict of interest in the matter. If the meeting decides the
councillor has a conflict of interest, the councillor must follow the relevant procedures.

If the councillors cannot reach a majority decision, then they are taken to have determined
that the councillor has a declarable conflict of interest

6. Loss of quorum

6.1

In the event where one or more councillors leave a meeting due to a prescribed or declarable
conflict of interest in a matter that results in a loss of quorum for deciding the matter, the
council must resolve to:

1.1 Delegate the consideration and decision on the matter, pursuant to section 257 of
the LGA

.1.2 Defer the matter to a later meeting

.1.3 Not to decide the matter and take no further action in relation to the matter.

oo o

All councillors including the conflicted councillors, may participate in deciding to delegate or defer a

matter.

6.2

6.3

The council must not delegate a decision to an entity if the entity, or a majority being at least
half of its members, has a prescribed or declarable conflict of interest in the matter.

If the matter cannot be delegated under an Act, the council should seek ministerial approval
for the councillors to be able to consider and vote on the matter, subject to any conditions
the Minister for Local Government may impose.

7. Recording prescribed and declarable conflicts of interest

When a councillor informs a meeting that they or another councillor have a prescribed or declarable
conflict of interest in a matter, the minutes of the meeting must record all of the relevant details of how
the conflict of interest was dealt with, being;

The name of any councillor and any other councillor who may have a prescribed or declarable
conflict of interest

The particulars of the prescribed or declarable conflict of interest provided by the councillor
The actions taken by a councilior after informing the meeting that they have, or they reasonably
suspect another councillor has a prescribed or declarable conflict of interest

Any decision then made by the eligible councillors

Whether the councillor with a prescribed or declarable conflict of interest participated in or was
present for the decision under ministerial approval

Policy Number: Stat 40
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* The council's decision on what actions the councillor with a declarable conflict of interest must
take and the reasons for the decision

+ The name of each councillor who voted on the matter and how each voted

« |f the councillor has a declarable conflict of interest the following additional information must be
recorded in the minutes of the meeting when the meeting is informed of a councillor's personal
interest by someone other than the councillor, the name of each councillor who voted in relation
to whether the councillor has a declarable conflict of interest, and how each of the councillors
voted.

« Where a decision has been made under section 4.6 above — the minutes must include the
decision and reasons for the decision, and the name of each eligible councillor who voted and
how each eligible councillor voted.

8. Closed meetings

Council meetings, standing and advisory committee meetings may resolve that a meeting be closed to
the pubilic if its councillors consider it necessary to discuss any of the following matters:

Appointment, dismissal or discipline of the CEO

Industrial matters affecting employees

The council's budget

Rating concessions

Legal advice obtained by the council, including legal proceedings that may be taken by or

against the council

+ Matters that may directly affect the health and safety of an individual or a group of individuals

« Negotiations relating to a commercial matter involving the council for which a public discussion
could prejudice the interests of the council

» Negotiations relating to the taking of land by the council under the Acquisition of Land Act 1967

« A matter that the council is required to keep confidential under a law of, or a formal agreement

with, the Commonweaith or state.

A council meeting, standing and advisory committee meeting cannot resolve that a meeting be closed
where the meeting is informed of a councillor’s personal interest in the matter by another person and
the eligible councillors at the meeting must decide whether the councillor has a declarable confiict of
interest in the matter.

Further, the meeting must not be closed if a quorum is lost due to the number of conflicted councillors
who leave the meeting and the council must:

¢ Delegate the matter
+ Decide by resolution to defer to a later meeting
« Decide by resolution to take no further action on the matter.

None of the above will be considered, discussed, voted on or made during a closed session.

If a closed session includes attendance by teleconference, the councillor/s attending by teleconference
must maintain confidentiality by ensuring no other person can hear their conversation while in a closed
meeting.

To take a matter into a closed session the council must abide by the following:

Version number:
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8.1 pass a resolution to close the meeting.

8.2 The resolution must state the matter to be discussed, an overview of what is to be discusses
and why the meeting should be closed while the matter is considered.

83 If the matter is known in advance, the agenda should clearly identify that the matter will be
considered in closed session, and an explanation of why it is deemed necessary to take the
issue into closed session must be stated.

84 Not make a resolution while in a closed meeting (other than a procedural resolution).

9. Teleconferencing meetings

9.1 If a councillor wishes to be absent from a council meeting place during a meeting, the
councillor must apply to the chairperson to participate by teleconference, at least three
business days prior to the meeting or as soon as practicable once the councillor becomes
aware of their intended absence. The chairperson may allow a councillor to participate in a
council meeting, standing or advisory committee meeting by teleconference.

9.2 A councillor taking part by teleconference is taken to be present at the meeting if the
councillor was simultaneously in audio contact with each other person at the meeting. The
attendance of the councillor must be recorded in the minutes as present at the meeting.

Note: Teleconferencing includes the use of a telephone, video conferencing equipment or
other means of instant communication that allows a person to take part in a discussion as it

happens.

9.3 In order for councils to manage the safety rules during the COVID-19 pandemic, changes
have been added to the LGR that will expire in June 2021.
These provisions allow the council:

« The option to conduct the entire council meeting via phone, teleconference or video
conference

« Where possible, that they must provide streaming or other facilities so that the public
can observe or hear the meeting as it is happening, at one of the council's public
offices or on the council's website

« Chairperson the option to close the meeting on health and safety grounds to protect
participants or observers from risk of exposure to COVID-19.

POLICY REVIEW
This policy is to be reviewed when any of the following occur:
1. As required by legislation
2. Other circumstances as determined by the Chief Executive Officer.
Notwithstanding the above, this policy is to be review at intervals of no more than four (4) years.

VERSION CONTROL

Version One 15 May 2019
Version Two
Version Three
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RECORDS
When completed and approved the original, signed hard copy of the policy is filed in the Master File.

Electronic copies are saved in the appropriately labelled folder in Magiq.
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BLACKALL-TAMBO REGIONAL COUNCIL Return to Agenda

Next ltem
OFFICER REPORTS
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: 18 November 2020
Item No: 7.5
SUBJECT HEADING: Sale of Jumping Castles
Author and Officer's Title: Des Howard, Chief Executive Officer

CLASSIFICATION: (if confidential)

Summary: Council recently advertised the jumping castles located in Tambo for sale by
tender.

Recommendation: That Council:
1. Accept the offer from Emerald Sheds & Garages of $1000.00 for each jumping
castle; and
2. Offer the small jumping castle located in Blackall to R McLeod for $300.00; and
3. Put the remaining large jumping castle located in Blackall to auction.

Background

After expressions of interest for the jumping castles was advertised in the community it was
resolved at the 21 August 2019 general meeting to offer the jumping castles to two
community groups. The community organisations are finding it difficult to store and insure
the items and have returned the gifts to Council.

Advertising for the sale by tender for the Tambo jumping castles closed on 26 November
2020 and Council received 3 offers. Since the advertising commenced the community group
in Blackall have returned the large and small jumping castles to Council also.

It is recommended that the two jumping castles in Tambo be sold to Emerald Sheds &
Garages for $1000.00 for each item and small jumping castle in Blackall be offered to R
McLeod for $300.00 and the remaining jumping castle be put to auction and sold in situ.

Link to Corporate Plan
Nil

Consultation Internal/External
CEO

Director of Works and Services
Asset Manager

Policy Implications
Nil

Budget and Resource Implications
$2300.00
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BLACKALL-TAMBO REGIONAL COUNCIL Return to Agenda

Next ltem
OFFICER REPORTS
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: 18 November 2020
Item No: 7.6
SUBJECT HEADING: Sale of Land by Tender
Author and Officer's Title: Des Howard, Chief Executive Officer

CLASSIFICATION: (if confidential)

Summary: Council recently advertised the 9 remaining lots at the Blackall Industrial Estate
for sale by tender.

Recommendation: That Council:
1. decline all offers as they are below Council’s reserves; and
2. relist the lots with the local real estate agents.

Background

At the 16 September 2020 general meeting Council resolved to invite written tenders for the
sale of Lot 8, Lot 9, Lot 12, Lot 13, Lot 15, Lot 16, Lot 18, Lot 19 and Lot 28 on SP210763 at
the Blackall Industrial Estate.

The lots had been listed with local real estate agents from 20 June 2018 and blocks had
been selling slowly. It was recommended that Council put the lots up for sale by tender in
the interest of good tendering principles. Subsequently, the lots were advertised,
commencing on 18 September 2020 with the local newspapers and on Council’s website
with tenders closing Tuesday 27 October 2020.

Council received the following three offers:

Lot 19 on SP210376 — 4 Banksia Street Blackall $22,000.00 plus GST
Lot 18 on SP210376 — 2 Banksia Street Blackall $10,157.00 plus GST
Lot 28 on SP210376 — 23 Violet Street Blackall $24,000.00 including GST

The amounts offered on these lots are below Council’s reserves.

Link to Corporate Plan

Sustainable and Prosperous Economy

Land development

Land available to meet the needs of the community

Consultation Internal/External
CEO
Rates Officer

Policy Implications
Nil
Budget and Resource Implications

Nil
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BLACKALL-TAMBO REGIONAL COUNCIL Return to Agenda

Next ltem
OFFICER REPORTS
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: 18 November 2020
Item No: 7.7
SUBJECT HEADING: Council Meeting Dates 2021
Author and Officer's Title: Des Howard, Chief Executive Officer

CLASSIFICATION: (if confidential)

Summary: Section 257 of the Local Government Regulation 2012 requires local
governments to meet at least once in each month and section 254B of the Local
Government Regulation 2012 requires the meeting dates and places to be published.

Recommendation: That Council adopt the meeting dates for 2021 as follows and they
be advertised as such:

20 January 2021 Tambo
17 February 2021 Blackall
17 March 2021 Tambo
21 April 2021 Blackall
19 May 2021 Tambo
16 June 2021 Blackall
21 July 2021 Tambo
18 August 2021 Blackall
15 September 2021 Tambo
20 October 2021 Blackall
17 November 2021 Tambo
15 December 2021 Blackall
Background

Section 257 of the Local Government Regulation 2012 outlines the requirements for the
frequency and place of meetings for local governments.

(1) A local government must meet at least once in each month.
(3) All meetings of a local government are to be held-
(a) At 1 of the local government’s public offices.

Blackall-Tambo Regional Council holds alternate meetings in Blackall and Tambo and this
has been set out in the table below.

20 January 2021 Tambo
17 February 2021 Blackall
17 March 2021 Tambo
21 April 2021 Blackall
19 May 2021 Tambo
16 June 2021 Blackall
21 July 2021 Tambo
18 August 2021 Blackall
15 September 2021 Tambo
20 October 2021 Blackall
17 November 2021 Tambo
15 December 2021 Blackall
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Link to Corporate Plan
Governance
Best practice governance

Consultation Internal/External
CEO
Mayor

Policy Implications
Standing Orders Policy
Model Meeting Procedures

Budget and Resource Implications
Nil
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BLACKALL-TAMBO REGIONAL COUNCIL Return to Agenda

Next ltem
OFFICER REPORTS
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: 18 November 2020
Item No: 7.8
SUBJECT HEADING: Defibrillator for Tambo Pool
Author and Officer's Title: Des Howard, Chief Executive Officer

CLASSIFICATION: (if confidential)

Summary: At the 19 August meeting Council held over the matter for the request to have a
defibrillator installed at the Tambo pool.

Recommendation: That Council consider the request to have an Automated External
Defibrillator installed at the Tambo pool.

Background

In August 2020 Council received a request to have a defibrillator installed at the Tambo pool.
The matter was held over to allow Council officers time to investigate duty of care, cost of
purchasing, installing and maintaining a unit.

Queensland Ambulance Service was contacted, and it was recommended that AEDs
purchased are approved by the Therapeutic Goods Administration(TGA). St John
Ambulance Australia sell AEDs that are approved under the TGA.

The cost of purchasing an automated external defibrillator and the consumables are listed
below:

Initial Cost $3365.00
Replacement battery (every 4 years) $280.00
Replacement pads (every 2 years or after each use) $111.95

The quoted AED unit, HeartStart RFX, incorporates daily self-testing and will produce an
audio signal to notify that inspection is required. No regular or contractual technical
maintenance programs are required. The cost of the item also includes online training for up
to 10 people. Long term costs have not been taken into consideration.

Consideration would have to be given to who would be best suited to receive training in the
use of the AED. The lessee would have to be trained and any staff engaged by them should
also be trained.

There is an AED installed at the Tambo MPC which is considered a higher risk area. Since
installation in 2017 the defibrillator has not been used and the unit is maintained, and cost is
borne by Queensland Ambulance Service. There are no other units installed in any Council
buildings or facilities. Should Council install a unit at the Tambo pool consideration should
also be given to other Council owned facilities.

Link to Corporate Plan

Social

Community Services

Services and facilities that meet the needs of the community
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Consultation Internal/External
CEO

DFCCS

Queensland Ambulance Service
St Johns Ambulance

Policy Implications
Nil

Budget and Resource Implications
$3365.00 — not budgeted
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BLACKALL-TAMBO REGIONAL COUNCIL Return to Agenda

Next ltem
OFFICER REPORTS
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: 18 November 2020
Item No: 7.9
SUBJECT HEADING: Standing Orders Policy
Author and Officer's Title: Des Howard, Chief Executive Officer

CLASSIFICATION: (if confidential)

Summary: Recent changes to the Local Government Regulation 2012 necessitated changes
to the Blackall-Tambo Regional Council’s Standing Orders Policy.

Recommendation: That Council adopt the revised Standing Orders Policy.

Background

The Standing Orders Policy supplements statutory requirements by providing standard
processes to be observed to assist in the governance of conducting business and
proceedings at Council and Council committee meetings.

Recent changes to the Local Government Regulation 2012 necessitated changes to be
made to the Policy.

A revised copy of the policy is attached to this report.

Link to Corporate Plan

Governance

Best practice governance

Accountable, responsible and transparent governance

Consultation Internal/External
CEO
Department of Local Government, Racing and Multicultural Affairs

Policy Implications
Model Meeting Procedures

Budget and Resource Implications
Nil
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Blackall-Tambo
Regional Council

Standing Orders Policy

Policy Number: Stat 47 Effective Date:
Version Number: Two Review Date:

Policy Compiled by: Chief Executive Officer
Policy Approved by: Chief Executive Officer

PRELIMINARY
Background

Chapter 8 Part 2 of Local Government Regulation 2012 provides core requirements for the conduct of
meetings of Council and the committees of Council.

Objective

These standing orders supplement the statutory requirements by providing standard processes to be
observed and to set out the arrangements that govern the conduct of business and proceedings at
Council and Council committee meetings.

Application of Standing Orders
1. These Standing Orders apply to all meetings of Council and any standing Committees.

2. Any provision of these Standing Orders may be suspended by resolution of any meeting of
Council. A separate resolution is required for any such suspension and must specify the
application and duration of each suspension.

3. Where at a Council meeting a matter arises which is not provided for in these Standing Orders,
such matters shall be determined by resolution of Council upon a motion which may be put
without notice but otherwise in conformity with these Standing Orders.

REFERENCES

Local Government Act 2009

Local Government Regulation 2012
BTRC Model Meeting Procedures
BTRC Councillor Code of Conduct
BTRC Investigation Policy

Version number:

Pollcy Number: Two
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LOCAL GOVERNMENT MEETINGS

Ordinary Meetings
1. The local government may, by resolution, fix dates and times for its Ordinary Meetings.

2. If there is no resolution fixing the date and time for an Ordinary Meeting, the Chief Executive
Officer must fix the date and time for the meeting.

3. Before the Chief Executive Officer fixes the date and time for an Ordinary Meeting, the Chief
Executive Officer must, if practicable, consult with the Mayor about the proposed date and time
for the meeting.

Time of Special Meetings

1. The Chief Executive Officer must call a special meeting of the local govemment if —
a) the special meeting is required by a resolution of the local government; or
b) a written request for the special meeting is lodged with the Chief Executive Officer under
subsection (2)

2. A written request for a special meeting of the local government must —
a) Be signed by the Mayor or three or more Councillors; and
b) specify the purpose of the special meetings; and
c) propose a day and time for the holding of the special meeting.

3. The Chief Executive Officer calls a special meeting by giving written notice of the date and the
time of the meeting, and the business to be conducted at the meeting, to each Councillor.

4. The Chief Executive Officer may call for a special meeting to discuss any matter the Chief
Executive Officer considers should be brought before Council.

AGENDA
Agenda for Ordinary Meetings

1. The Chief Executive Officer must ensure that each statutory notice of meeting includes an
agenda listing the items to be discussed at the meeting.

2. The agenda may include —
a) Notice of meeting
b) Minutes of the previous meetings
c) Business arising out of previous meetings
d) Business which the Mayor wishes to have considered at that meeting without notice
€) Matters of which notice has been given
f) Committees’ reports referred to the meeting by the chief executive officer (CEQ)
g) Officers’ reports referred to the meeting by the CEO
h) Deputations and delegations from the community that are approved to attend
i) Any other business the Council determines by resolution to be included in the agenda.

Policy Number: Stat 47 b Two z Adopted by Blackall-Tambo Regional CouncHl Page 20of 19
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3. A Councillor who wants an item of business included on the agenda for a particular meeting
must give written notice of the nature of the business to the Chief Executive Officer at least
seven days before the date of the meeting.

4. The Chief Executive Officer may include in the agenda a matter the Chief Executive Officer
considers should be brought before the meeting.

5. The agenda for the local government must be made publicly available by S5pm on the business
day after the notice of meeting is given to the Councillors. The related reports for the local
government meeting must also be included and available to the public excluding confidential
reports.

6. Matters on the agenda that will require the meeting to be in closed session will be clearly
identified including the reasons why the session with be closed.

7. Business not on the Agenda or not fairly arising from the Agenda shall not be considered at any
meeting unless permission for that purpose is given by Council at such meeting. Business must
be in accordance with the adopted Terms of Reference for each Committee.

PROCEDURES FOR MEETINGS OF COUNCIL
Presiding Officer

The Mayor will preside at a meeting of Council.

If the Mayor is absent or unavailable to preside, the Deputy Mayor will preside.

If both the Mayor and the Deputy Mayor, or the Mayors' delegate, are absent or unavailabie to
preside, a Councillor chosen by the Councillors present at the meeting will preside at the
meeting.

4. Council will choose the Chairperson for a Committee meeting. This Chairperson will normally
preside over meetings of the Committee.

If the Chairperson of a Committee is absent or unavailable to preside, a Councillor chosen by
the Councillors present will preside over the Committee meeting.

wWN-

@

Order of Business

1. Before proceeding with the business of the meeting, the person presiding at the meeting shall
undertake the acknowledgement and/or greetings deemed appropriate by the Council.

2. The order of business shall be determined by resolution of Council from time to time. The order
of business may be altered for a particular meeting where the Councillors at that meeting pass
a motion to that effect. A motion to alter the order of business may be moved without notice.

3. Unless otherwise altered, the order of business shall be as follows:

+ Attendance
« Apologies
« Condolences
« Declaration of Confilicts of Interest
« Confirmation of Minutes or Previous Meeting
Policy Number: Stat 47 v"”;'":"""" Adopted by Blackall-Tambo Regional Counchl Page 3 of 18
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+ Reception of Petitions

* Reception of Deputations

« Reception and Consideration of Committee Reports
+ Reception and Consideration of Officer Reports

4. The order of business may be altered for a particular meeting where the Councillors at the
meeting pass a motion to that effect.

5. A motion to alter the order of business may be moved without notice.

6. The minutes of a preceding meeting whether an ordinary or a special meeting, not previously
confirmed shall be taken into consideration, at every ordinary meeting of Council, in order that
such minutes may be confirmed, and no discussion shall be permitted with respect to such
minutes except with respect to their accuracy as a record of the proceedings. Amendments to
the minutes may be made prior to confirming the minutes. The must be done by moving a
motion to amend the minutes that must be voted on and carried. Once the resolution is passed
the minutes can be amended. All Councillors present at the meeting can vote to confirm the
minutes including those who were absent at the previous meeting and those who had a conflict
of interest at the previous meeting.

Petitions

1. Any petition presented to a meeting of Council shall:
« Dbe in legible writing or typewritten and contain a minimum of ten (10) signatures
« include the name and contact details of the Principal Petitioner (i.e. the key contact for
the issue)
include the postcode of all petitioners, and
have the details of the specific request/matter appear on each page of the petition.

2. Where a Councillor presents a petition to a meeting of Council no debate on or in relation to it
shall be allowed and the only motion which may be moved is:
that the petition be received;
or received and referred to a committee or officer for consideration and a report to
Council;

« or not be received because it is deemed invalid.
3. Council will respond to the Principal Petitioner in relation to all petitions deemed valid.
Deputations

1. A deputation wishing to attend and address a meeting of Council shall apply in writing to the
CEO not less than seven (7) business days before the meeting.

2. The CEO, on receiving an application for a deputation shall notify the Chairperson who shall
determine whether the deputation may be heard. The CEO shall inform the deputation of the
determination in writing. Where it has been determined the deputation will be heard, a
convenient time shall be arranged for that purpose, and an appropriate time period allowed.
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3. For deputations comprising three or more persons, only three persons shall be at liberty to
address Council unless the Councillors at the meeting determine otherwise by resolution. A
deputation shall be given adequate opportunity to explain the purpose of the deputation.

4. If a member of the deputation other than the appointed speakers interjects or attempts to
address the Council, the Chairperson may terminate the deputation.

5. The Chairperson may terminate an address by a person in a deputation at any time where:
+« the Chairperson is satisfied that the purpose of the deputation has been sufficiently
explained to the Councillors at the meeting
+ the time period allowed for a deputation has expired, or

+ the person uses insulting or offensive language or is derogatory towards Councillors or
staff members.

6. The CEO is responsible for the deputation including that the appeinted speaker/s are notified in
writing of developments or future actions as appropriate.

MOTIONS
Motion to be Moved

1. A Councillor is required to ‘mowve’ a motion and then ancther Councillor is required to "second’
the motion.

2. When a motion has been moved and seconded, it shall become subject to the control of Council
and shall not be withdrawn without the consent of Council.

3. Other Councillors can propose amendments to the motion which must be voted on before voting
on the final motion.

+« A motion brought before a meeting of Council in accordance with the Local Government Act
2009 or these Standing Orders shall be received and put to the meeting by the Chairperson.

+ The Chairperson may require a motion or amendment to a motion to be stated in full or be
in writing before permitting it to be received.

+ The Chairperson may refuse to accept a motion if it is not within the meeting's jurisdiction
and rule a motion out of order if necessary. Any maotion that iz vague, proposes unlawful
action, is outside the scope of the meeting, is defamatory, vexatious or is unnecessary, may
be ruled out of order.

4. The Chairperson may call the notices of motion in the order in which they appear on the agenda,
and where no objection is taken to a motion being taken as a formal moticn, the Chairperson
may put the motion to the vote without discussion.

5. Not more than one motion or one proposed amendment to a motion may be put before a meeting
of Council at any cne time.

Absence of Mover of Motion

Where a Councillor who has given notice of a motion is absent from the meeting of Council at which
the motion is to be considered, the motion may be:

‘Version number:
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« moved by another Councillor at the meeting, or
* deferred to the next meeting.

Motion to be Seconded

A motion or an amendment to a motion shall not be debated at a meeting of Council unless or until the
motion or the amendment is seconded, with the exception of Procedural Motions.

Amendment of Motion

1. An amendment to a motion shall be in terms which maintain or further clarify the intent of the
original motion and do not contradict the motion.

2. Where an amendment to a motion is before a meeting of Council, no other amendment to the
motion shall be considered until after the first amendment has been put.

3. Where a motion is amended by another motion, the original motion shall not be put as a
subsequent motion to amend that other motion.

Speaking to Motions and Amendments

1. The mover of a motion or amendment shall read it and shall state that it is so moved but shall
not speak to it until it is seconded.

2. The Chairperson will manage the debate by allowing the Councillor who proposed the motion
the option of speaking first on the motion. The Chairperson will then call on any other Councillor
who wishes to speak against the motion and then altemnatively for and against the motion as
available, until all Councillors who wish to speak have had the opportunity.

3. A Councillor may make a request to the Chairperson for further information before or after the
motion or amendment is seconded.

4. A motion or amendment may be withdrawn by the mover thereof with the consent of Council,
which shall be signified without debate, and a Councillor shall not speak upon such motion or
amendment thereof after the mover has been granted permission by Council for its withdrawal.

5. The mover of a motion or amendment shall have the right to reply. Each Councillor shall speak
no more than once to the same motion or same amendment except as a right of reply. Once the
right of reply has been delivered the debate ends.

6. Each speaker shall be restricted to not more than five (5) minutes unless the Chairperson rules
otherwise.

7. Where two or more Councillors indicate they may wish to speak at the same time, the
Chairperson shall determine who is entitied to priority.

8. In accordance with Section 273 of the Local Government Regulation 2012, if a decision made
at a meeting is inconsistent with a recommendation or advice given to Council by an advisor of
the Council, the minutes of the meeting must include a statement of the reasons for not adopting
the recommendation or advice.
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Method of Taking Vote

1. The Chairperson will call for all Councillors in favour of the motion to indicate their support. The
Chairperson will then call for all Councillors against the motion to indicate their objection. A
Councillor may call for a ‘division” to ensure their objection to the motion is recorded in the
minutes. If a division is taken, the minute secretary shall record the names of Councillors voting
in the affirmative and of those voting in the negative. The Chairperson shall declare the result
of a vote or a division as soon as it has been determined.

2. Councillors have the right to request that their names and how they voted be recorded in the
minutes if they so request, for voting other than by Division.

3. Except upon a motion to repeal or amend it, the resolution shall not be discussed after the vote
has been declared.

4. If a report contains distinct recommendations, the decision of Council may be taken separately
on each recommendation. If a decision by the meeting is contra to a recommendation in a report
the minutes must give the reasons for the decision.

Withdrawing A Motion

A motion or amendment may be withdrawn by the mover with the consent of the Council, which will be
without debate, and a Councillor will not speak to the motion or amendment after the mover has been
granted permission by the Council for its withdrawal.

Repealing or Amending Resolutions

1. A resolution of Council may not be amended or repealed unless notice of motion is given in

accordance with the requirements of the Local Government Act 2009 or the Local Government
Reguiation 2012.

2. Councillors present at the meeting at which a motion to repeal or amend a resolution is put, may
defer consideration of that motion. Such deferral shall not be longer than three (3) months.

Procedural Motions

1. A Councillor at a meeting of Council may, during the debate of a matter at the meeting, move,
as a procedural motion, without the need for a seconder the following motions:

that the question/motion be now put

that the motion or amendment now before the meeting be adjourned

that the meeting proceed to the next item of business

that the question lie on the table

a point of order

a motion of dissent against the Chairpersons decision

that this report/document be tabled

to suspend the rule requiring that (insert requirement)

that the meeting stand adjourned.
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2. A procedural motion, that the question be put, may be moved and where such a procedural
motion is camied, the Chairperson shall immediately put the question to the motion or
amendment to that motion under consideration. Where such procedural motion is lost, debate
on the motion or amendment to that motion shall continue.

3. The procedural motion, that the motion or amendment now before the meeting be adjourned,
may specify a time or date, to which the debate shall be adjourned. Where no date or time is
specified:

« a further motion may be moved to specify such a time or date, or
« the matter about which the debate is to be adjourned, shall be included in the business
paper for the next meeting.

4. Where a procedural motion that the meeting proceed to the next item is carried, debate on the
matter that is the subject of the motion shall cease and may be considered again by Council on
the giving of notice in accordance with the Standing Orders.

5. A procedural motion, that the question lie on the table, shall only be moved where the
Chairperson or a Councillor requires additional information on the matter before the meeting (or
the result of some other action of Council or person is required) before the matter may be
concluded at the meeting. Where such a procedural motion is passed, the Council shall proceed
with the next matter on the business paper. The motion, that the matter be taken from the table,
may be moved at the meeting at which the procedural motion was carried or at any later meeting.

6. Any Councillor may ask the Chairperson to decide on a ‘point of order’ where it is believed that
another Councillor:
« has failed to comply with proper procedures
« s in contravention of the Local Government Act/Regulations, or
« is beyond the jurisdiction power of Council.

Points of order cannot be used as a means of confradicting a statement made by the Councillor
speaking. Where a ‘point of order' is moved, consideration of the matter to which the motion was
moved shall be suspended. The Chairperson shall determine whether the point of order is
upheld.

Upon the question of order suddenly arising during the process of a debate, a Councillor may
raise a point of order, and thereupon the Councillor against whom the point of order is raised,
shall immediately cease speaking. Notwithstanding anything contained in these standing orders
to the contrary, all questions or points of order at any time arising shall, until decided, suspend
the consideration and decision of every other question.

7. A Councillor may move ‘a motion of dissent’ in relation to a ruling of the Chairperson on a point
of order. Where such motion is moved, further consideration of any matter shall be suspended
until after a ruling is made. Where a motion of dissent is camied, the matter to which the ruling
of the Chairperson was made shall proceed as though that ruling had not been made. Where
as a result of that ruling the matter was discharged as out of order, it shall be restored to the
business paper and be dealt with in the normal course of business.

8. The motion, ‘that this report/document be tabled’', may be used by a Councillor to introduce a
report or other document to the meeting, only if the report or other document is not otherwise
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protected under confidentiality or information privacy laws. On tabling the document, it ceases
to be a confidential document and is available for public scrutiny.

9. A procedural motion, “to suspend the rule requiring that ....", may be made by any Councillor in
order to permit some action that otherwise would be prevented by a procedural rule. A motion
to suspend a rule shall specify the duration of such a suspension.

10. A procedural motion, that the meeting stands adjourned, may be moved by a Councillor at the
conclusion of debate on any matter on the business paper or at the conclusion of a Councillors
time for speaking to the matter, and shall be put without debate. Such a procedural motion will
specify a time for the resumption of the meeting and on resumption of the meeting the Council
shall continue with the business before the meeting at the point where it was discontinued on
the adjournment.

Questions

1. A Councillor may at a Council meeting ask a question for reply by another Councillor or an officer
regarding any matter under consideration at the meeting. A question shall be asked categorically
and without argument and no discussion shall be permitted at the meeting of Council in relation
to a reply or a refusal to reply to the question. A Councillor or officer to whom a question is asked
without notice may request that the question be taken on notice for the next Meeting.

2. A Councillor who asks a question at a meeting, whether or not upon notice, shall be deemed
not to have spoken to the debate of the motion to which the question relates.

3. The Chairperson may disallow a question which is considered inconsistent with an acceptable
request or good order, provided that a Councillor may move a motion that the Chairperson’s
ruling be disagreed with, and if such motion be carried the Chairperson shall allow such
question.

GENERAL CONDUCT DURING MEETINGS

1. Councillors will conduct themselves in accordance with the principles of the Local Government
Act 2009 and the standards of behaviour set out in the Code of Conduct. The Chairperson may
observe or be made aware of instances of possible unsuitable meeting conduct.

2. After a meeting of Council has been formally constituted and the business commenced, a
Councillor shall not enter or leave from such meeting without first notifying the Chairperson.

3. Councillors shall speak of each other during the Council meeting by their respective titles,
“Mayor” or “Councillor”, and in speaking of or addressing officers shall designate them by their
respective official or departmental title and shall confine their remarks to the matter then under
consideration.

4. No Councillor who is speaking shall be interrupted except upon a point of order being raised
either by the Chairperson or by a Councillor.

5. When the Chairperson speaks during the process of a debate, the Councillor then speaking or
offering to speak shall inmediately cease speaking, and each Councillor present shall preserve
strict silence so that the Chairperson may be heard without interruption.
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MEETING CONDUCT

Process for dealing with unsuitable meeting conduct

When dealing with an instance of unsuitable conduct by a Councillor in a meeting, the following
procedures must be followed:

1.

10.

11.

12.

13.

The Chairperson must reasonably believe that unsuitable meeting conduct has been displayed
by a Councillor at a meeting.

If the Chairperson decides the unsuitable meeting conduct has occurred, the Chairperson must
consider the severity of the conduct and whether the Councillor has had any previous wamings
for unsuitable meeting conduct issued. If the Chairperson decides the conduct is of a serious
nature or another warning is unwarranted, proceed to step 11.

If the Chairperson decides unsuitable meeting conduct has occurred but is of a less serious
nature, the Chairperson may request the Councillor take remedial actions such as:

3.1 Ceasing the unsuitable meeting conduct and refraining from exhibiting the conduct

3.2 Apologising for their conduct

3.3 Withdrawing their comments

If the Councillor complies with the Chairperson’s request for remedial action, no further action
is required.

If the Councillor fails to comply with the Chairperson's request for remedial action, the
Chairperson may wamn the Councillor that failing to comply with the request may result in an
order being issued.

If the Councillor complies with the Chairperson’s wamning and request for remedial action, no
further action is required.

If the Councillor still continues to fail to comply with the Chairperson's request for remedial
actions, the Chairperson may make one or more of the orders below:
11.1  an order reprimanding the Councillor for the conduct
11.2 an order requiring the Councillor to leave the meeting, including any area set aside for
the public and stay out for the duration of the meeting.

If the Councillor fails to comply with an order to leave and stay away from the meeting, the
Chairperson can issue an order that the Councillor be removed from the meeting.

Following the completion of the meeting, the Chairperson must ensure:

13.1 details of any order issued is recorded in the minutes of the meeting

13.2 ifit is the third or more order within a 12-month period made against a Councillor or the
Councillor has refused to leave following an order issued to leave the meeting, these
matters are to be dealt with at the next meeting of the Local Government and treated as
inappropriate conduct.

13.3 the Local Government's Chief Executive Officer is advised to ensure details of any order
made must be updated in the Local Governments Councillor Conduct Register.
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14. Any Councillor aggrieved with an order issued by the Chairperson can move a motion of dissent
for parts 1, 11 and 12 above.

Meeting Process for Dealing with Suspected Inappropriate Conduct Which has been Referred
to a Council by the Independent Assessor (IA)

Pursuant to Chapter 5A, Division 5 of the LGA (Referral of conduct to a local government) a referral
from IA of inappropriate conduct or an instance of suspected inappropriate conduct may arise from
circumstances under paragraph 13.2 — Process of dealing with unsuitable meeting conduct, of this
document.

When dealing with an instance of suspected inappropriate conduct which has been referred to a Local
Government by the Independent Assessor, the Local Government must:

1. Be consistent with the Local Government principle of transparent and accountable decision
making in the public interest, by dealing with suspected inappropriate conduct in an open
meeting of the Council. Where the complainant or other parties may be adversely affected due
to the nature of the complaint, the Council may resolve to go into closed session under section
275 of the Local Government Regulation 2012 (the LGR).

2. The subject Councillor has a declarable conflict of interest in the matter and is permitted by
Council to remain in the meeting during the debate about whether the Councillor engaged in the
inappropriate conduct and answer questions put the to the subject Councillor by the Chairperson
to assist the other Councillors in making a decision. This permission to remain in the meeting
for the debate is on the condition that the subject Councillor must leave the place where the
being is being held, including any area set aside for the public, during the vote on whether they
have committed inappropriate conduct and what, if any, penaity to impose if the Councillor is
found to have committed inappropriate conduct.

3. Should the complainant be a Councillor, that Councillor may have a deciarable conflict of interest
in the matter and if so, must follow the declarable confiict of interest procedures as per the
declarable conflict of interest section in this policy. If the complainant Councillor who has a
declarable conflict of interest, wishes to remain in the meeting during the debate and vote on
the matter, the other Councillors must decide how to deal with the conflict of interest under the
declarable conflict of interest section of this policy. The complainant Councillor can be ordered
to leave the meeting place or conditions may be applied to allow that Councillor to participate in
either the debate, the vote or the decision on any disciplinary action to be applied.

4. The Council must debate the issue and decide whether the accused Councillor engaged in
inappropriate conduct. If the Council has lost quorum due to the number of conflicted
Councillors or another reason, the matter must be delegated consistent with section 257 of the
LGA or deferred to another date when a quorum will be present.

5. If the Local Government decides that the subject Councillor has engaged in inappropriate
conduct, the Local Government is then required to decide what penalty or penalties from the
following orders, if any, to impose on the subject Councillor:

5.1 an order that the Councillor make a public admission that the Councillor has engaged in
inappropriate conduct

5.2 an order reprimanding the Councillor for the conduct

5.3 an order that the Councillor attend training or counselling to address the Councillor's
conduct, included at the Councillor's expense
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5.4 an order that the Councillor be excluded from a stated Local Government meeting

5.5 an order that the Councillor is removed, or must resign, from a position representing the
Local Government, other than the office of Councillor, for example, the Councillor is ordered
to resign from an appointment representing the Local Government on a State board or
committee

5.6 an order that if the Councillor engages in the same type of conduct again, it will be treated
as misconduct

5.7 an order that the Councillor reimburse the Local Government for all or some of the costs
arising from the Councillor's inappropriate conduct

6. When making an order, the Local Government can take into consideration any previous
inappropriate conduct of the Councillor, and any allegation made in the investigation that was
admitted, or not challenged and that the Local Government is reasonably satisfied is true.

7. A Council may not make an order that the Councillor attend training/counselling, be suspended
from a meeting, be removed or resign from a position or that the same conduct will be treated
as misconduct in future, in relation to a person who is no long a Councillor.

8. The subject Councillor and where relevant the complainant Councillor, must be invited back into
the place where the meeting is being held once a decision has been made, and the Chairperson
must advise them of the details of the decision.

9. The Local Government must ensure the meeting minutes reflect the resolution made.
CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

Councillors are ultimately responsible for informing of a prescribed conflict of interest or declarable
conflict of interest on matters to be discussed at a Council or committee meeting. When dealing with a
conflict of interest, Councillors must abide by the following procedures

Prescribed Conflict of Interest

1. A Councillor who has notified the chief executive officer of a prescribed conflict of interest in
a matter to be discussed in a Council meeting must also give notice during the meeting.

2. A Councillor who first becomes aware of a prescribed conflict of interest in a matter during a
Council meeting must immediately inform the meeting of the conflict of the interest.

3.  When notifying the meeting of a prescribed conflict of interest, the following details must be
provided:
« if it arises because of a gift, loan or contract, the value of the gift, loan or contract
« if it arises because of an application or submission, the subject of the application or

submission

+ the name of any entity other than the Councillor that has an interest in the matter
* the nature of the Councillor's relationship with the entity that has an interest in a matter
* details of the Councillor's and any other entity’s interest in the matter.

4. The Councillor must then leave the place of the meeting, including any area set aside for the
public, and stay away while the matter is being discussed and voted on, unless the subject
Councillor has written notice from the Minister to participate in the matter.
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5. Once the Councilior has left the area where the meeting is being conducted, the Council can
continue discussing and deciding on the matter at hand.

Declarable Conflict of Interest

Councillors are ultimately responsible for informing of any declarable conflict of interest on matters to
be discussed at Council or committee meetings that might lead to a decision that is contrary to the
public interest (other than ordinary business matters).

A Councillor may raise their personal interests in a matter at the meeting to canvas the view of the
other Councillors prior to deciding to declare a conflict of interest. If the other Councillors suspect the
personal interest might be a conflict of interest, the Councillor may disclose their suspicion and the
processes under section 150EW of the LGA.

When dealing with a declarable conflict of interest, Councillors must abide by the following
procedures:

1. A Councillor who has notified the chief executive officer of a declarable conflict of interest in
a matter to be discussed at a Council meeting must also give notice during the meeting.

2. A Councillor who first becomes aware of a declarable conflict of interest in a matter during a
Council meeting must inform the meeting of the confiict of interest

3.  When notifying the meeting of a declarable conflict of interest, Councillors should provide
sufficient detail to allow the other Councillors to make an informed decision about how best
to manage the declarable conflict of interest in the public interest. The following details must
be provided:

* the nature of the declarable conflict of interest
« if it arises because of the Councillor’s relationship with a related party:
i. the name of the related party to the Councillor
ii. the nature of the relationship of the related party to the Councillor
ii. the nature of the related party’s interest in the matter
+ if it arises because of a gift or loan from another person to the Councillor or a related
party:
i. the name of the other person
ii.  the nature of the relationship of the other person to the Councillor or related party
ii. the nature of the other person’s interest in the matter
iv.  the value of the gift or loan and the date the gift or loan was made.

4. After a Councillor has declared a conflict of interest, the Counciflor should consider leaving
the meeting while the matter is discussed unless they have reasons why their participation
would improve making the decision in the public interest.

5.  If the Councillor chooses not to leave the meeting, the Councillor may advise the other
Councillors of their reasons for seeking permission to participate in making the decision.

6. The other non-conflicted Councillors at the meeting must then decide, by resolution,
whether the Councillor can participate in the decision making in relation to the matter,
including voting on the matter, or whether they should not participate in the decision and
leave the place of the meeting while the matter is decided by the non-conflicted Councillors.
The non-conflicted Councillors may impose conditions on the Councillor under a decision to
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either participate or leave the meeting e.g. may stay for the debate but must leave for the
vote. The Councillor must comply with any decision or condition imposed by the non-
conflicted Councilors.

7.  Indeciding on a Councillor's declarable conflict of interest in a matter, only Councillors who
do not themselves have a prescribed or declarable conflict of interest in the matter are
eligible to participate in the decision making. The decision may be made even if the number
of those Councillors is less than a majority or less than a quorum for the meeting consistent
with section 150ET of the LGA.

8.  The Councillor who is the subject of the decision may remain in the meeting while the
debate is occurring and can participate by answering questions from the Chairperson to
assist the other Councillors in making their decision. The subject Councillor must not vote
or otherwise participate in making the decision but may remain in the meeting while the
vote on the matter takes place and the decision is declared by the Chairperson, on whether
the Councillor may remain in the meeting and participate in deciding the matter in which the
Councillor has a declarable conflict of interest.

9.  When deciding whether a Councillor may participate in the decision making on a matter in
which they have a declarable conflict of interest, the other Councillors should consider the
pamcular circumstances of the matter including, but not limited to:
how does the inclusion of the Councillor in the deliberation affect the public trust

* how close or remote is the Councillor's relationship to the related part

+ if the declarable conflict of interest relates to a gift or other benefit, how long ago was
the gift or benefit received

* will the benefit or detriment the subject Councillor or their related party stands to
receive from the decision have major or minor impact on them

* how does the benefit or detriment the subject Councillor stands to receive compare to
others in the community

* how does this compare with similar matters that Council has decided and have other
Councillors with the same or similar interests decided to leave the meeting

* whether the subject Councillor has unique skills, knowiedge or expertise that might
help make the best decision in the public interest.

10. If the non-conflicted Councillors cannot decide about the declarable conflict of interest of a
Councillor, they are taken to have decided that the Councillor must leave and stay away
from the meeting while the non-conflicted Councillors discuss and vote on the matter.

11. A decision about a Councillor who has a declarable conflict of interest in a matter applies in
relation to the Councillor for participating in the decision, and all subsequent decisions,
about the same matter unless the there is a change to the Councillor's personal interests
and/or the nature of the matter being discussed. If the non-conflicted Councillors decide
that the Councillor can act in the public interest on the matter, then the Councillor may
participate in the meeting and be involved in processes occurring outside of a Council
meeting about the same matter e.g. briefing sessions or workshops.

12. In making the decision, it is irelevant how the subject Councillor intended to vote on the
issue or any other issue (if known or suspected).

13. A Councillor does not contravene the above procedures if the Councillor participates in a
decision under written approval from the Minister.
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Reporting a Suspected Conflict of Interest

1. If a Councillor at a meeting reasonably believes or suspects that another Councillor has a
personal interest in a matter that may be a prescribed or declarable conflict of interest,
and that Councillor is participating in a decision on that matter, the Councillor must
immediately inform the Chairperson of the meeting of their belief or suspicion, and the
facts and circumstances that led to their belief or suspicion.

2. The Chairperson then should ask the relevant Councillor with the suspected personal
interest whether they have any prescribed or declarable conflict of interest in the matter. If
the Councillor agrees they have a conflict of interest, the Councillor must follow the
relevant procedures above.

3. If the Councillor believes they do not have a conflict of interest, they must inform the
meeting of that belief and their reasons for that belief.

4. The non-conflicted Councillors must then decide whether the Councillor has a prescribed
conflict of interest, a declarable conflict of interest or that the Councillor does not have
prescribed or declarable conflict of interest in the matter. If the meeting decides the
Councillor has a conflict of interest, the Councillor must follow the relevant procedures
above.

5. If the Councillors cannot reach a majority decision, then they are taken to have
determined that the Councillor has a declarable conflict of interest.

Loss of Quorum

1. In the event where one or more Councillors leave a meeting due to a prescribed or
declarable conflict of interest in a matter that results in a loss of a quorum for deciding the
matter, the Council must resolve to:

* delegate the consideration and decision on the matter, pursuant to section 257 of the
LGA

* defer the matter to a later meeting

* not decide the matter and take no further action in relation to the matter.

2. All Councillors including the conflicted Councillors, may participate in deciding to delegate
or defer a matter.

3. The Council must not delegate a decision to an entity if the entity, or a majority being at
least half of its members, has a prescribed or deciarable conflict of interest in the matter.

4. If the matter cannot be delegated under an Act, the Council should seek ministerial
approval for the Councillors to be able to consider and vote on the matter, subject to any
conditions the Minister may impose.
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DISORDER

The Chairperson may adjoumn the meeting of Council, where disorder arises at a meeting other than by
a Councillor. On resumption of the meeting, the Chairperson shall move a motion, which shall be put
without debate, to determine whether the meeting shall proceed. Where such a motion is lost, the
Chairperson shall declare the meeting closed, and any outstanding matters referred to a future meeting.

ATTENDANCE AND NON-ATTENDANCE
Attendance of Public and the Media at Meeting

1. An area shall be made available at the place where any meeting of Council is to take place
for members of the public and representatives of the media to attend the meeting and as
many members of the public as reasonably can be accommodated in that area shall be
permitted to attend the meeting.

2. When the Council is sitting in Closed Session, the public and representatives of the media
shall be excluded.

3. The use of mobile phones by members, Council employees or members of the public is
prohibited during local govermment meetings, unless by pemission of the Chairperson.

Public Participation at Meetings

1. A member of the public may take part in the proceeding of a meeting only when invited to
do so by the Chairperson.

2. In each Meeting, time may be required to permit members of the public to address the
Council on matters of public interest related to local government. The time allotted shall not
exceed fifteen minutes and no more than three speakers shall be permitted to speak at any
one meeting. The right of any individual to address the Council during this period shall be
at the absolute discretion of Council.

3. If any address or comment is irrelevant, offensive, or unduly long, the Chairperson may
require the person to cease making the submission or comment.

4. For any matter arising from such an address, Council may take the following actions:
o refer the matter to a committee
o deal with the matter immediately
» place the matter on notice for discussion at a future meeting
« note the matter and take no further action.

5. Any person addressing the Council shall stand and act and speak with decorum and frame
any remarks in respectful and courteous language.

6. Any person who is considered by the Council or the Mayor to be unsuitably dressed may
be directed by the Mayor or Chairperson to immediately withdraw from the meeting. Failure
to comply with such a request may be considered an act of disorder.
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CLOSED SESSION

1. Council and standing committee meetings may resoive that a meeting be closed to the
public if its Councillors consider it necessary to discuss any of the following matters:
* Appointment, dismissal or discipline of the CEO

Industrial matters affecting employees

The Council’'s budget

Rating concessions

Legal advice obtained by Council, including legal proceedings that may be taken by or

against Council

« Matters that may directly affect the health and safety of an individual or a group of
individuals

* Negotiations relating to a commercial matter involving Council for which the public
discussion could prejudice the interest of Council

* Negotiations relating to the taking of land by Council under the Acquisition of Land Act
1967

+ A matter that the Council is required to keep confidential under a law of, or a formal
agreement with, Commonwealth or state.

2. A Council or committee meeting cannot resolve that a meeting be closed where the meeting
is informed of a Councillor's personal interest in the matter by another person and the
efigible Councillors at the meeting must decide whether the Councillor has a declarable
conflict of interest in the matter.

3. Further, a meeting must not be closed if a quorum is lost due to the number of conflicted
Councillors who leave the meeting and the Council must:
» Delegate the matter
« Decide by resolution to defer to a later meeting
« Decide by resolution to take no further action on the matter.

Note: None of the above will be considered, discussed, voted on or made during a closed session.

If a closed session includes attendance by teleconference, the Councillor/s attending by
teleconference must maintain confidentiality by ensuring no other person can hear their conversation
while in the closed meeting.

4. To take a matter into a closed session the Council must abide by the following:

pass a resolution to close the meeting

« the resolution must state the matter to be discussed, an overview of what is to be
discussed and why the meeting should be closed while the matter is considered

« if the matter is known in advance, the agenda should clearly identify that the matter
will be considered in closed session, and an explanation of why it is deemed
necessary to take the issue into closed session must be stated

* not make a resolution while in a closed meeting (other than a procedural resolution).

TELECONFERENCING OF MEETINGS

1. If a Councillor wishes to be absent from a Council meeting place during a meeting, the
Councillor must apply to the Chairperson to participate by teleconference, at least three
business days prior to the meeting or as soon as practicable once the Councillor becomes
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aware of their intended absence. The Chairperson may allow a Councillor to participate in
a Council or committee meeting by teleconference.

2. A Councillor taking part by teleconference is taken to be present at the meeting if the
Councillor was simultaneously in audio contact with each other person at the meeting. The
attendance of the Councillor must be recorded in the minutes as present at the meeting.

COMMITTEE MEETINGS

Local Government committee meetings
Local government committees established by Council are subject to the provisions of these Standing
Orders.

RECORD OF MEETINGS
Audio and video recording of meetings

1. No person shall operate any electronic or similar image, voice or camera recording device,
during any meeting of the local government or a local government committee without the prior
approval of the Chairperson.

2. Where recording is approved, the Chairperson shall, before the commencement of such
meeting, or the commencement of such recording, announce to the members present that such
approval has been granted.

PROCEDURES NOT PROVIDED FOR
If an appropriate or adequate method of dealing with any matter is not provided for in these Standing
Orders, the method of dealing with the matter may be determined by a ruling of the Chairperson or by

a resolution of the local government upon a motion which may be put with notice in conformity with
these Standing Orders.

POLICY REVIEW

This policy is to be reviewed when any of the following occur:

As required by legislation

Other circumstances as determined by the Chief Executive Officer.

Notwithstanding the above, this policy is to be review at intervals of no more than four (4) years.

VERSION CONTROL

Version One 15 May 2019
Version Two
Version Three

RECORDS
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When completed and approved the original, signed hard copy of the policy is filed in the Master File.

Electronic copies are saved in the appropriately labeiled folder in Magiq.
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BLACKALL-TAMBO REGIONAL COUNCIL Return to Agenda

Next ltem
OFFICER REPORTS
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: 18 November 2020
Item No: 7.10
SUBJECT HEADING: Butch Lenton Memorial Award
Author and Officer's Title: Des Howard, Chief Executive Officer

CLASSIFICATION: (if confidential)

Summary: The Butch Lenton Memorial Bush Council Innovation Award was created to
recognise innovation in Queensland’s bush councils and celebrate the contribution the late
Mayor of Winton Shire, Graham ‘Butch’ Lenton, made to his community and local
government in Queensland. The winner, Burke Shire Council was announced at the 2020
LGAQ Annual Conference in October.

Recommendation: That Council receives the report and congratulates Burke Shire
Council on its award.

Background

The Butch Lenton Memorial Bush Council Innovation Award and a $10,000 bursary was
presented to Burke Shire Council at the Annual LGAQ Conference held at the Gold Coast in
October.

1. When the remote shire was isolated in the Pandemic Exclusion Zone — with nobody in and
nobody out for four months — council leaped at an offer to take part in a pilot virtual reality
workplace health and safety training program, covering everything from manual handling to
working at heights. Peak Services Managing Director Brent Reeman said Burke Shire’s
efforts prove that, for Queensland’s bush councils, necessity is the mother of innovation.

“The COVID-19 pandemic has seen a lot of vital activities curtailed but it's great to salute an
instance where travel and other restrictions have actually opened up new possibilities,” Mr
Reeman said.

“Burnie in Tasmania is closer to Brisbane than Burketown is, so our remote councils
regularly have to devise clever workarounds like this to keep their workforces and
communities informed and safe.”

“Anything that reduces the tyranny of distance for our bush councils, even virtually, is worth
investigating — and, in Burke Shire’s case, worth celebrating.”

Burke Shire CEO, Clare Keenan, said council’s early adoption of high-speed blue fibre
technology into Burketown meant the remote community was ready to connect.

Ms Keenan said when the virtual reality training commenced, “suddenly, the coolest cats at
council were the Workplace Health and Safety team.”

“We can train separately by ourselves but, with connectivity, we can expand it to train with
somebody in Brisbane — or New York,” Mayor Ernie Camp said.

“And, as we know with the gaming world, learning as a team is certainly more exciting than
learning as an individual.”
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Council will use its $10,000 bursary to fund a licensing agreement that will make the virtual
reality training more widely available in the community.

Peak Services board member David Foster says Burke Shire’s approach could be a game-
changer for many more councils.

“This is the sort of initiative that could support all councils and change the face of how we
deliver training in remote areas,” Mr Foster said.

“We will consider how we continue to invest in this area to further build capability.” *

LInformation sourced from LGAQ

Link to Corporate Plan
Nil

Consultation Internal/External
CEO

Mayor

LGAQ

Policy Implications
Nil

Budget and Resource Implications
Nil
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BLACKALL-TAMBO REGIONAL COUNCIL Return to Agenda

Next ltem
OFFICER REPORTS
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: 18 November 2020
Item No: 7.11
SUBJECT HEADING: Bush Councils Compact
Author and Officer's Title: Des Howard, Chief Executive Officer

CLASSIFICATION: (if confidential)

Summary: LGAQ have developed the Bush Councils Compact and have requested that
Councils provide feedback by 6 December 2020.

Recommendation: That Council receives the report and the CEO, on behalf of Council,
provides feedback to LGAQ.

Background

Following a resolution of the 2019 Annual Conference, LGAQ developed and pursued the
Bush Councils Compact on behalf of members.

The draft Bush Councils Compact was considered and endorsed by the LGAQ Policy
Executive on 14 August 2020 in line with LGAQ’s policy development framework. At the 14
August meeting the Policy Executive considered and agreed on which councils would be a
part of the Bush Councils Compact.

LGAQ is now seeking feedback which is to be provided by 6 December 2020.

Link to Corporate Plan

Governance

Best practice governance

Strong federal, state and regional advocacy

Consultation Internal/External
CEO

Mayor

LGAQ

Policy Implications
Nil

Budget and Resource Implications
Nil

183



BUSH A partnership between the Queensiand Government and
the Local Government Association of Queensiand that

c o U N c I Ls enables bush councils to meet the unique challenges,
responsibilities, opportunities and needs of their rural
COMPACT N

Meeting the needs of the Bush

“We would like to see a far
greater understanding
throughout government
departments of the realities
facing bush councils so they
can make better decisions,

have greater revenue certainty
minimum standards and, of course, improve the
i quality of life of rural and remote
residents.”

- regularly ig

circumstonces exsting in rural and remote economees

£ is a high-level
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Structure Common objectives

This Compact will ensure the Queensiand Government,
the LGAQ and bush councils share the same objectives
in meeting the needs of rural and remote communities:

» Essential services security so water

manc and © publc

rural and remote communities

» Improved well-being to su
and veability and ottroct o

» Jobs growth and economic diversification to be

manage the haghly cycbcal nature of rurol ond r

» Improved access throu

INg transport syste ural ond remotes communities

and industry

Key outcomes
» Sustainable natural resource management that

enhances the value of our natural resources and
Greater awareness across government of the improves environmental and economic outcomas
impact of funding, policy and legisiative decisions
on bush councils.

» Resilient rural and remote communities that can adopt

to climate chollenges and, with preventative planning

Greater funding certainty over the forward estimates
to enable bush councils to confidently plan and
deliver infrastructure and services.

Greater policy and regulatory flexibility that takes
into account local circumstances and does not
hinder the growth and prosperity of rural and
remote communities.

“It just makes sense to put bush
Better program and project management to enable councils and their communities

bush councils and the Queensiand Government . e
R SRS at the centre of decisions that

services as well as track outcomes. impact their lives.”

A new standard of collaboration between the - Mayor Tony Rayner,
Queensiand Government, the LGAQ and bush Longreach Regional Council
councils that maximises the value of investments
made by all leveis of government.

A robust, respectiul and enduring partnership
between the Queensiand Government, the LOAQ
and bugh councils that is underpinned by common

objectives and always strives to achieve the
full potential of Queensiand’s rural and remote
communities.
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ROLES OF
THE PARTIES

Queensland Government

Establish an intergovemmental taskforce led by Department
of Premier and Cabinet to develop an agreement (the “Bush
Councils Compact”) between the Stote Government and
the LGAQ that provides an ongoing commitment ensunng
bush councils can always meet the needs of their rural
and remote communities

Commence implementation of the Bush Councils Compact
within the first 100 days of the new government.

Create whole-of-government arrangaments that streamline
the implementation of solutions to challenges and
opportunities identified by local government in rural and
remote communities

Facilitate greater awareness across government of the
impact of funding, policy and legiskitive decisions on bush
councils by publishing an annual report on the State of Our
Bush Communities, inchuding an indepandent assessment
of government program and service delivery to these
communities. Additional initiatives to include a Regulatory
Impact Statement on all proposed legiskation likely to affect
rural and remote communities and o co-ordinating comment
on all Cabinet submissions.

Introduce a “Bush Champions” scheme for departmental
directors-general and incorporate performance clouses
into their contracts related to achieving key miestones
under this Compact as well as government program and
service delivery to rural and remote communities.

Respect the outhority of the LGAQ in speaking on behalf
of local government in relation to policy, program and
regulatory strategies and priorities

Photo credit
Tourism and Events Queensiond

“My council has 86 individual
ratepayers yet manages an
area larger than Tasmania™”

- Mayor Robbie Dare,
Diamantina Shire Council

LGAQ

Provide policy leadership, coordination and advice on behalf
of local government, including odvice on the financial and
non-financial priorities of bush councils and the potential
impact of Queensland Government decisions on their
communities.

Promote and facilitote bush council use of streamlined
arrangements for finding and implementing solutions to
problems and opportunities identified by bush councills.

Support and facilitate a systematic approach by bush
councis to acknowledging and publicising Queensiand
Government funding contributions to projects.

Support enhanced governance and asset manaogement
to improve the financial sustoinability for bush councils

Respect the responsibility of the Queensland Government
to set and deliver on strotegic priorities and objectives
for rural and remote communities throughout the State.

“Regional communities are

often hamstrung by policies and
regulations formulated in Brisbane
to appease the social conscience of

“One-size-fits-all government
policies can often prove frustrating
for bush councils by overlooking the
unique circumstances that exist in
rural and remote communities.”

those who live 1000s of kilometres
from where the extra compliance
actually impacts - undermining our
future.”

~ Cr Robyn Fuhrmeister, - Mayor Stuart Mackenzie,
Balonne Shire Council Quilpie Shire Council




on behalf of our 45 bush councils:

Balenne Shire Couneil Croydon Shire Council
Banana Shire Council Diamanting Shire Council
Barcaldine Regional Council Douglas Shire Council
Barcoo Shire Council Etheridge Shire Council
Blackall-Tambe Regional Council Flimders Shire Council

Boulia Shire Council @ladstene Regienal Council
Bulleo Shire Council aoeondiwindi Regional Couneil
Burdekin Shire Council oympie Regienal Council
Burke Shire Council Hinchinbrook Shire Council
Carpentaria Shire Council Isaac Regional Council
Cassowary Coast Regional Council Livingstene Shire Council
central Highlands Regional Council Leckyer Valley Regional Council
charters Towers Regional Council Longreach Regional Cowncil
Clencurry Shire Council Maranea Regional Council
Cook Shire Council Maresba Shire Council

LEGAL SOWERMVERNT ARG IATIoN
OF QUEPMBLAND

Local Gavernment Association
of Queensland (LGAQ)

Greg Hallam AM
Chief Executive Officer
greeg_hallam@lgog.asnaou

sarah vogler
Media Executive
sarah_voegler@igogoasn.au

Members Hotline Twitter
Ph: 1300 542 700
Erm: aski@lgog.asnau Instagram

Whe lgog.asn.
goq.oen.au Facebook

Local Government House - -
- - Linkedin
25 Evelyn 5t, Newstead QLD 4006

MeKinlay Shire Council

Maount 1sa City Council

Murweh Shire Council

Morth Burnett Regional Council
Parcs Shire Council

Quilpie Shire Council

Richmond Shire Council

Scenic Rim Regional Couneil
Somerset Regional Council
South Burnett Regional Council
Southern Downs Regienal Council
Tablelands Regional Council
Western Downs Regional Council
whitsunday Regional Council
Winton Shire Council

ntAssodationofQuesnsland

n.coimfocal-government




BLACKALL-TAMBO REGIONAL COUNCIL Return to Agenda

Next ltem
OFFICER REPORTS
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: 18 November 2020
Item No: 7.12
SUBJECT HEADING: Get Ready Queensland
Author and Officer's Title: Des Howard, Chief Executive Officer

CLASSIFICATION: (if confidential)

Summary: Council receives funding from the Queensland Reconstruction Authority to use
for the annual Get Ready Queensland program. Blackall-Tambo Regional Council has
worked with 4 other Councils to produce a flip book that is relevant to the Central West.

Recommendation: That Council receive the Be Ready Central West flip book.

Background

Council receives funding for the Get Ready Queensland program through the Queensland
Reconstruction Authority (QRA). For the 2020-2021 program Council was allocated
$6,164.00 (ex GST) to use towards projects relating to natural disasters.

Council is required to submit a plan of activities and these were as follows:

¢ BE READY - Central West - Preparing for a Natural Disaster Flip Book. The
Longreach Disaster District is located in Central Western Queensland and is
comprised of five Councils. These are the Barcaldine Regional Council, Barcoo Shire
Council, Blackall Tambo Regional Council, Longreach Regional Council and Winton
Shire Council. Each one of these Councils takes steps to prepare their local
communities, organisations and businesses to prepare for possible disaster events.
Prepared communities take better care of themselves preparing for, during and after
disaster events, which eases the burden and workload on response and recovery
agencies. The five Councils will partner to prepare a booklet to advise their
communities of the natural disaster events which can impact upon them. The
information provided will inform residents of the Central West and tourists visiting the
area on how best they can prepare for these natural disaster events.

e COVID-19 Get Ready Care Package - This is an initiative targeted at the elderly in our
region. Council would like to create COVID-19 care packs for the elderly which will
include items such as hand sanitizer, washable mask, soap, cleaning products,
isolation sign for their front door, hard copy of the COVID-19 information pack. Council
wishes to engage with school students to assist with this project. This will encourage
relationships between the young and elderly in the community and minimise the sense
of isolation that is being felt by the older member of the community during the COVID
restrictions.

A lot of the elderly don't access social media or the internet. The care packages will
ensure that the correct information is being disseminated to those people.

Council has worked in partnership with the other 4 Councils in our District Disaster
Management Group to produce the flip book and it is being launch at a RAPAD function in
Brisbane on 26 November 2020. Council has authorised $1,596.00 to be allocated to
Longreach Regional Council for the delivery of this part of the program through QRA.
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Link to Corporate Plan
Governance
Disaster Management

Consultation Internal/External
CEO

DDMG Councils

Get Ready Queensland

Policy Implications
Nil

Budget and Resource Implications
Nil

189
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W FOUR STEPS TO BE READY: PLAN.PACK.LISTEN.ACT AN

PLAN
Preparadness incudes the taking of
preparatory measures 10 ensure that, f an
event ocours, chvrduals, communities,
busmness and industry, government and
non-govermment erganisations are able 1o
opz with the effects of e avent.
» (heck your inswange policies are
venrent (cav, home and contents),
» identfy the strongest room in your
house to take theker durng 3 stom;
» Keow where and how 1o tum of your
mians supply of power, water and s and
+ Hawe water storage (ontaness and g
tooking equpment.

PACK AM EMERGENCY K

» Torch; « Can operer;

» Todeties, « Fost aid ot

» Shardy goves; » Fresh waser,

» Portable mada; » Waterproof bags,
« Sparebateriess  « Casfy

» Essennat medicasion

» Baty formalz and nappes

» Three days" wearth of son-pernhabie
food; and

» Impertant documents saed 2 2 USB o
in a sedled bag,

1

LISTEN
» Listen o reguiar updistes on ABC racko (AM 540),
ALG (AM 1098) and West FM (M 10451
» Check fhe B0M webst= bom.govass lor updaces
relzbion to current and futere weather mformation;
« Check Cognol wehsites for up o date information
o road dosures and evacsaton ceares;

barcadinercqid.govau | barcoo.gid.govau
bvegdgoway | bngreach gd gwau
wirfon.qid.govau

« Listen for the Sandard Emesgency Waming Signa
(SEWS). The SEWS is & waling siran sound et
has been adopted by 3 States and Territaries to
den the commiendy to the broadkast of & urgent
safety message relaung 1o @ emegencydisaser
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ACT

« Adt quickly on the adwie
provided by Emergency
Persconel and e Local
Disaster Management Geoug,

» Ensure #l members of your
teusehold are informe of the
Current skuation;

» Check om refghibooss and friends
WhO Dy need sSSStandE,

« Adiate your emesgency
iy incuding evacuation
amangements f needed; and

» Locae your emergency ke



W FLOODING

Jmant meoe and Barcoo Rver systems ¢ a1 o flooding

AL 18 e
dng inth
P 141 J maost
WHAT WILL HAPPEN? WHAT SHOULD | DD? AFTER THE FLOOD HAS PASSED?
» Check the Buceau of Meteorology and local emergency serwce » Do not retum to 2 fiood 2one untd there s offinal
0 wetmtes and fisien for flood nformation; communicason that & s sae o do wr
zn foodng s » Contat your local Councit » Chech whether elearty, gas o witer upphes have
ur in a particul » Secure Inose dems aruund the propey indading rubibish bins, teen afected
whea flzsh garden tooks, spartts equipment and cutdoor fumiure; » Treat every ecyrical tem wifs axtreme Guticn, Avoid
cted » Unipheg electrical equipment to avoid damage caused by power lines or piher see ines and caies
€ broadral on radio, 1Y, 500 medi DOWer SRS, » Weas rubber hoots of rubber-soled shoes and ruibbet
s St » Move hossehold tems  a higher place; of lesthar goves
‘ : Keep refrigerator and fressey doors cdosed » Watch for dimaged floceing, walks ind cedings = well
: s uneapected wsinrs such as snakes
Seetch off power at the switthboasd, gas and the mam watey vave;
NS =5 i * « Fellow Counail o Qlealth imsructions for resting
» Sandhag eas & nsk fom ﬂu.dx.g_ including drans insde the wotee fhiat ks ¢ natect and
howsz 1 help prevent semage overiows:
» Coeta(t emerpency serices # you need help.

» B0 tap waler in case of contamination; and

» Never drive, walk, swm or play o foodwaters. There could be
Mdden rawseds below the water that you caneot see, regadiess of
how wel you know e area

a2 10 262 1n Of 0t of youwr

W SEVERE STORMS

1 gl
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WHAT SHOULD | DO? AFTER THE STORM HAS PASSED?
» Check the Hureaw of Meweorciogy and locat emergescy » Liten to your radhs and remsan indooss urtl adwsed £

senvicz websites and listen for storm and flood safe i go outde,
informatios; > tee recommeded safe routes n R 10 your home,
« Contart your loal Cosect, » Do not go sghtweng,

» Secure loose items around the property mcludng rubbish » Check on yout neighbours if recessary,
bins, gaeden took, s equipment aod datdoo > D ot s elochical o5 Wathaws beer welsat

fumitiee; they are cveciet forsafety
» Usglug electrical equipment o avoed damage caesed by » Bol o puriy your wate i sugpies ave fale:
power swpes and g
» Move hosehold ilems to 3 highes place. ¥ h'n ”h:;’mmm felen bt and

» Condat pour focal CouncE ¢ yoa need help, or If yout
hame = snirfbitabie due 10 storm damage.

300 GAE 02CIS0NS a3 &
OWING ACTIONS WILL OCCUR:
\ Naming s __"J‘ fyour aea, it
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WHAT SHOULD | DO?

STRUCTURE ACCESS
Clear beawes, twgs, bark and other debwis Display 3 prominent house of fot number is
from the roof and guttees, e it i required in an emergenty; and
Parchase and test the effecveness of Ensure Pere s adequate access 1o yow
gutter phgs property for fire rucks - four metes wide
nclose open areas snde decks and fioars; B Four meres Bigh, wath a ure-around
et fine steel wire mesh screens on all .
windows, doors, wents and weep holes;
Point LPG cybnder releef vakes away
from the house;
(onduct maintenznge thedes on pumgs,
fEoeraons and waler sysiems; and
Seal 3l gaps o external eoof and
wall daddng

VEGETATION
Redute vegetation loads dlong the
access patfc
Mow your grass regularly,
Remove exess gound fueks and
wmbussble matenad (long dry grass,
dead leaes and branches); and
Tnm lowe-tng beanches two metres from
the ground surmounding your home

PERSONAL
Chedk that you hae sufficent persondl
procecive cothing and equipmernt
fekocate flammable gems away from
your heme, ncloding woodples, paper,
boses, Uates, hanging baskets and
garden furnitues;
Check the fiest ad 2 s fully stiocked;
Mabe sure you have appeopriate surance
for your home and wehickes; and
Reven and update your howehold
emengency and evacsaton plan.

y

P |

W HEATWAVE A _

The Bureau of Meseorology defines 3 heatwave 2 “three or more

days of high maumum and menimeum tempesais

unusua for that location”. Heatwaves are calculated wung the

forecast macemum and minimum temperatures §

three days, compared to bath actual temperasures over

the prevous 30 days and (o the “norma” semper
expected for that location based on past records
Dt fwaees, there 5 an Inorease in
emergency Gl from people suffering reat-
related dinesses Whike te very young and

the elderly are most & rik. anyone an
be affected. Heat-related finess ocurs
when the body sbsorbs too mud

heat. Ths may happen slowdy ower

a day or two of very hot weather.
A Quikkly o a0 5Enous - of
een fatal effects of fully
deweloped heat syoke

e that are

or the next

atures
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EARLY SIGNS OF HEAT STRESS INCLUDE:
+ Risng body semperature;

» Dey mouh and eyes;

» Headache,

» Shortness of breatiy

» Vomitng and

« Absence of tears when oying.

The risk of adverse clinkcal effects from the heat an be

minimisad by encouraging the popuiaton o:

» Drink plenty of water and monitor hemesives for sges of
Geydration (e g darkunne),

» Manimise physical sctraty,

» Check on those 2 higher nsk;

« Check 7 their home ar conditicner wors before & beatwane,

+ Go to 2 public zrea which 5as ar condiening f ey don't
have aess &t home, and

« Plan around the heat and avord being outside beoween
11am and 3pm.



WHAT IS HEAT EXHAUSTION? WHAT IS HEAT STROKE?

00

HEAT EXHAUSTION TREATMENT FOR HEAT STROKE SIGNS TREATMENT FOR
SIGNS AND SYMPTOMS HEAT EXHAUSTION AND SYMPTOMS HEAT STROKE
« Headache; » Help ®e persom 10 lie down at totaf rest i a cool » Typxaly no longee swestng » Call 000 for an ambulance immeduately
8oy emperatare more than 40°C;  OF shady area © menitor; » Red, hot and dey shirg » (ool the persom wrsing wet toweks or 3 wet theet
» Mzl ramgs; » Remove exessie dothng and loosen any 1ight + Body tempecature more than a)°(; Wit & lan drected across the surface;
» Exhausnon aod geeerd weakness, ?U’"'u." - » Arapid strong gulse; » W ice packs are aailabie, wrap fen ,;:1 toweks and
. ] 5 S5 < 4 3 .
« Nausea and/oe vomeing 00t by fanning and mossien sen if possive; « Rapid, nosy beeating place them around the neck, grom and ampes;
» If Rally dert and resporsive, gre them frequent « I shivenng ocours, redute active cooling
» Dury spely; small dirinks of wat » Irationdl or apgeessive betaviour,
Pk, ook clameny ki e ' TS OF Wity o « Maritar the person eorenually,
3 5 -~
tetoming lshed andt red later, SR SRS SUr, sty S B Stact « Detevioration of the nstows state. * T TTeSponshe of not dlert, place in the
o musches 10 pase pain recovery posnon ard
Aragid, weak pulse. » Funresponsive, place in the recovery positon; « Prepare to gve (PR if secessary.

» If ! person ts unable 1o drnk, vomding,
unresponsive, or doss not improve, call 002 for
an anhulance; and

+ Prepare 1o ghve UPR if necessary.

Oailadu‘a—qmmd

bodiy 2 50 uncestalaly: The impacts of a pandemic may be
to-person cortact and m )y, threugh kong-lzstng and (ause wdespread derplion,
form of pandemx & Asstrala s influenza rontact with contaminated obeds such as toncem and uncestainty for populationt

otherwse knows as the fu. Many people de  hands, door handles 2ad toys History of Pandemics
ansually from compéications of the fiu DIEFERENCES BETWEEN
PERSON TO PERSON PANDEMIC AND OTHER DISASTERS
TRANSMISSION et
Haman wfemaon occers through the transfer i)
of 3 pathogen frem an infected persen to 2
suscemble person
Droplet ronsmissign o: s woen oAz
drople red by the infleged host are
propelied mio the envircnment through

COUghNE O Seenng

» 1963 Hong %ong Fu

h€ Dandemst » 019C0VD-19

w00l 3
. When 3 ugniic
the popiaton s decled, this tan
€ @n  digupton of ol infrassructure of secvices
spended in the as e diseminated i
uments These part ) infect Md*ﬁ ":;,“;!’_t:;;f
through nhalaton, Tre S
¥ of a pathogen bangmitad by
artome droplet nudes & e measies wna

Alborme ransmésion (/1 10

of droplet auck) <Sym in

on of
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HOUSEHOLD MEMBERS: WHERE WE WILL GO IF LEAVING: (Famly fnends, neghbows)

Name Phene Hame: Phene
Name Phone Address

Name Phone Email:

Name Phane

HOW WE WILL GET THERE:

HAZARD ZOMES: (Sioms, floods, bushires)

EMERGENCY MEETIMG PLACE:

OUR EMERGENCY KIT IS LOCATED:

ESSENTIAL MEDICATIONS: CHILDCARE:
WORKPLACE:
PETS:
FRIENDS:
INSURAMCE DETAILS: NEIGHBOURS:
OTHER:
DOCTOR:
SCHOOL:
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HELPFUL HINTS

Resupply before disaster events;

» Carry plenty of water,

» Carry insect repefient;

» Black ol becomes boggy when wet,

» Dot park under trees during storms;

» Dot enter fioodwaters in 2 vehide
or o ook

» Get off the road for heavy vehidles (If
possible);

» Dort enter storm water drairs;

» Beware of washouts along roads;

» Know the UHF channets in the e
you are travelling Sheough; and

» Be aware of a lack of mobile phone
reception.

W ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS AN

PAGE 4: STORMS PAGE 8: HEATWAVE

qhd gow 3u/emergenty/ dealing dsasters/dsaster-ypes/rydone-seere-storm heaki.gid gov.an/_ deea/assees/pdl_He D032/628068 heatwaveresporse-plinpd
PAGE 4: BUSHFIRES redeioss org au/get-Pelemergences/inoking-alter-yoersell/heatstioke-and-heat-exhaesbon
naralfies gl gov.au/BuiFire_Salety/Pazes/tune-e-0-wamegsasps PAGE 10: PANDEMIC

nuralive.qid govau/Busfre_Salety/Pages/Prepare-for-bushive-ssason agu petready.qfd. gov au/vederstand your-nsh/types-natural Ssasters/pandemic

CENTRAL WESTERN QUEENSLAND DISASTER INFORMATION

B ¥

——————————————————————————— - . F F ~ - ‘Y-r, .

.{\\:- ‘

W EMERGENCY CONTACTS:

POLICE [ PIRE.[ AJRULANCE: SR o FIND US ON FACEBOOK
SES [STATE EMEROENCY SERVICE): 132 500 = rala SRaraeregensawnd
- o @6arcooshirecoundd
EROON ENEROY: 13 16 70 KEEP A DIGITAL @8bdalkTamboregionsknund
- COPY OF THIS GUIDE Slongreachregionakound|

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORT & MAIN ROADS: 13 17 40 ON YOUR PHONE @#Wintorshirecoundl
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BLACKALL-TAMBO REGIONAL COUNCIL Return to Agenda

Next ltem
OFFICER REPORTS
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: 18 November 2020
Item No: 7.13
SUBJECT HEADING: Sawdust Project
Author and Officer's Title: Des Howard, Chief Executive Officer

CLASSIFICATION: (if confidential)

Summary: Funding received through the Regional Recycling Transport Assistance Package
Program is enabling Council to remove waste material from the Tambo Sawmill.

Recommendation: That Council receive the letter from the Minister for Environment
and the Great Barrier Reef, Minister for Science and Minister for the Arts providing
funding of $187,500 (ex GST) for the Sawdust Project at the Tambo Sawmill.

Background

Funding of $187,500 (ex GST) was secured under the Regional Recycling Transport
Assistance Program delivered by the State Department of Environment and Science.

Funding is to support the transportation of the waste material (sawdust) to a receival point,
Westrex at Jackson, where it is being used as compost component. Due to the location of
the mill and transport costs it is uneconomical to transport the waste from Tambo to the
markets without funding support.

The original estimate of waste was 3000m? however, to date 4000m?* of material has been
transported. Remaining funding will allow a further 1100m? to be shifted.

Link to Corporate Plan
Environmental Management
Waste Management

Best Practice Waste Management

Consultation Internal/External
CEO

DWS

Arts and Cultural Officer

Policy Implications
Nil

Budget and Resource Implications
Nil
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Minister for Environment and the Great Barrier Reef,
Minister for Science and Minister for the Arts

Government

Our Ref CTS 02265/20 1 Wikam Street Brisbane Qid 4000
Your Ret. RRTAPQ26APP e
Telaphona +61 7 3719 7140
0 g m zm Emal eméronmentflmingienal obd gow au
Mr Des Howard
Chief Executive Officer
Blackall-Tambo Regional Council
PO Box 21

BLACKALL QLD 4478

Dear Mr Howard
Regional Recycling Transport Assistance Package application - RRTAP026APP

| am delighted to inform you that your application for funding under the Regional Recycling Transport
Assistance Package grant program has been successful to the amount of $187 500 (GST excl). The
program was highly competitive, with over $12 million in funding sought. A rigorous assessment
process was undertaken to determine the successful projects.

Department of Environment and Science (the department) officers will be in contact with you shortly
to establish the grant deed. Please note that your project should not commence until the Grant Deed
is executed by both parties.

Please treat this notification as confidential at this time and withhold any media or public
announcements. You will be notified once the successful applicants have been announced by the
Queensland Government and | then encourage you to actively promote your project and your
success in securing this funding. A departmental officer may contact you regarding opportunities to
attend future media or promotional events.

Congratulations once again on the success of your application, and | look forward to learning more
about the progress of your project as you contribute to Queensland’s resource recovery targets.

Should you have any guestions about the program, please contact the department by email at

WastePrograms@des.qgld.gov.au or by telephone on (07) 3330 5816 quoting the application number
above.
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BLACKALL-TAMBO REGIONAL COUNCIL Return to Agenda

Next ltem
OFFICER REPORTS
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: 18 November 2020
Item No: 7.14
SUBJECT HEADING: Desert Channels Queensland — Natural Resource
Management Plan
Author and Officer's Title: Des Howard, Chief Executive Officer

CLASSIFICATION: (if confidential)

Summary: Desert Channels Queensland is in the process of renewing their Natural
Resource Management Plan. This is the fourth plan developed by DCQ and they are
requesting feedback.

Recommendation: That the CEO, on behalf of Council, provide feedback to Desert
Channels Queensland regarding the Natural Resource Management Plan.

Background

Desert Channels Queensland (DCQ) is a natural resource management group, one of 14
within Queensland. DCQ is renewing the Natural Resource Management Plan. The plan is
to provide strategic and integrated framework to foster good management within the DCQ
region and covers many issues such as water and soils, supporting community and industry
that rely on healthy landscapes.

DCQ state that it is important for the 2021-2025 iteration of the plan to be based on
community consultation therefore they are asking for feedback. This will be the fourth NRM
plan developed by DCQ.

The following link directs people to the community consultation page on the DCQ website.

https://dcg-nrm-plan-2021---test-dcg.hub.arcgis.com/

Link to Corporate Plan

Governance

Best Practice Governance

Strong federal, state and regional advocacy

Consultation Internal/External
CEO
Mayor

Policy Implications
Nil

Budget and Resource Implications
Nil
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https://dcq-nrm-plan-2021---test-dcq.hub.arcgis.com/

Are you interested in providing feedback on DCQ's
Natural Resource Management Plan —2021-20257

& DCQ NRM Plan 2021 - 2025 - For Consultation [£]

i/
o~

Y

Y

To managa Aatural resources within Queensiand’s Laks Eyve Basin,

Background

Desert Channels Queensland is current seeking feedback on the fourth Natural Resource Management Plan (NRM
plan) for the region. The NRM plan sets targets and ideas to implement natural resource management within
Queensland’s Lake Eyre Basin. Feedback is valuable to ensure that the plan reflects community aspirations in natural
resource management.

The fourth version will be released in 2021 and has been designed in a new online software allowing for interactive
maps. It allows landholders and the community to see where projects are occurring, or where future projects are
proposed. These are included as unique ‘Management Actions’ to clearly show what the plan aims to implement to
achieve the targets and goals.

How Does the Plan WS o
Work? Program

The plan is broken into three SUSE AL MA o

Aot wad i A e
U STy e e

unique programs, each with 1o g 0 iy £21E
separate themes. Theseinclude: 200 L ..

A T R e Ay Pasture end Sodlz Water Hezources Natueal

ot e Envionmant
Natural Resources Program 14y 2 8 s e

* Pastures and Soils
e Water Resources
e Natural Environment

Industry Program
o

e Agriculture

e Tourism

* Mining and Coal Seam Gas

Agricubuts Toutism Miring and Cosl
Community Program Seam Gas
s Community Engagement I N

* Informing Policy
Development
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Management Actions

Under each program and theme is a series of management actions that will help support the targets and goals that
the program is aiming to achieve. There are currently 22 unique management actions proposed in the plan, but
these can be updated based on community feedback. Each management action provides a justification and specific
location along with what is needed for implementation. The current list of management action includes:

e Artesian Spring Management

Improving Management of the GAB

e (Collaborative Research and Development * Improving Tourist Awareness and Information
Community Awareness of CSG and Mining e Landcare Program

¢ Complementing Bore Drain Piping with Weed ®  Mitchell Grass Downs Condition Monitoring
Control e Native Woody Thickening in Grasslands

e Decision Making tools for Grazing e Parkinsonia Biocontrol
Management e Prickly Acacia Control in Northern LEB

e Developing specialised tourist programs e Promotion of Environmental offsets

e Expanding the Traditional Ecological * Promotion of Weed Seed Spread Prevention
Knowledge Database * Updating Knowledge of the GAB
Feral Pig Monitoring and Control e Weed Outlier Control

.

* Floodplain Corridor Management Wetland Education Program

Management Action Prickly Acacia Eradication in Northern Lake Eyre

[OPRSE— -
e N Bain

—praiten Ths inerve, m«nmm’fb with Mmcholders snd intissss corno’ of prickly acscie
s ot xm«mo nsabrdw-» Ivfesation of prehl acacs theauph the

Priotity Areas

Tha $HRCH™ PaE I8 es e T

e aprme e e waeee . -

_= Bty bt g boron s St 4 fpnumy 4 104 ADvee
\

\

;g.

Example pictures of the
Prickly Acacia
Management Action
with interactive maps

To Provide Feedback on the NRM Plan

1. Toview the NRM plan and provide feedback, you can do this via the DCQ webpage -
https://dcg.org.au/plan

2. You can contact Andrew Burrows on 0427 427 966 or via email Andrew.burrows@dcg.org.au to discuss any
ideas you have.

3. List any issues you would like raised in the NRM plan in the box below and return to DCQ staff member.
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BLACKALL-TAMBO REGIONAL COUNCIL Return to Agenda

Next ltem
OFFICER REPORTS
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: 18 November 2020
Item No: 7.15
SUBJECT HEADING: RAPAD - Board Communiques
Author and Officer's Title: Des Howard, Chief Executive Officer

CLASSIFICATION: (if confidential)

Summary: RAPAD provide Board Communiques on their Board meetings. The
Communique for the 6 November RAPAD Board meeting has been provided to Council.

Recommendation: That Council receive the RAPAD Board Communique for 6
November 2020.

Background

RAPAD provides Board Communiques from their board meetings. These are public
documents available on the RAPAD website.

The Board Communique for 6 November is attached to this report.

Link to Corporate Plan

Governance

Best Practice Governance

Strong federal, state and regional advocacy

Consultation Internal/External
CEO
Mayor

Policy Implications
Nil

Budget and Resource Implications
Nil
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RAPAD

REMOTT ARTA PLANNING &
DEVEIOPMENT DOARD

RAPAD Board Meeting 6 November 2020
Communiqué

As a part of normal business, the Board of RAPAD held its eleventh scheduled Board
meeting for 2020, on 6 November, via zoom video conference. Six directors were in
attendance while a proxy represented a director who offered apologies due to other
commitments. All CEOs were in attendance also.

Matters covered at the meeting were:

+ DCQ - NRM planning: Andrew Burrows, from Desert Channels Qid, provided a
presentation on the DCQ Natural Resource Planning process for Queensland's Lake
Eyre Basin region. Specifically, Desert Channels Queensland is currently seeking
community feedback on this Natural Resource Management Plan. It was outlined
that this is the fourth version of the NRM plan, and it identifies targets and actions to
support natural resources in our region. The plan is captured in an online format and
highlights key actions to support the targets in the plan. Community feedback on the
plan is valued and helps ensure it reflects regional aspirations. The plan can be
viewed at: hitps://dcg-nmm-plan-2021---test-dcqg.hub.arcqis.com/ , or contact can be
made direct to Andrew Burrows via his email - andrew.burrows@dcg.org.au .

The Board did raise questions relating to irrigation, water licensing and an apparent
shift in government policy regarding water use in general, and this was taken on
board by Andrew. The Board also asked about the DCQ Boards policy approach to
CSG and asked if they could receive advice on this.

The Chair and Board members were appreciative of the presentation and update.
For additional reading, an attachment is provided at the end of this communique. The
Chair advised the Board that the DCQ Board, would join the RAPAD Board at the
next face to face meeting for discussions.

+ Board continuous improvement: Dr Gerry Roberts joined the meeting and asked
for feedback on his proposed process for the upcoming workshop with the Board.
The Board, with four new members, has now been in place for approximately six
months which represents an ideal timeframe for this review and discussion. Self-
improvement, on-going assessment, optimal group functioning are recognised by the
Board as important factors for their ongoing Board effectiveness. The workshop will
occur at their next face to face meeting on November 26.

¢ Housing: The CEO updated the Board regarding progression of the draft terms of
reference for a potential housing discussion paper.

Karl Morris from Ord Minnet joined the meeting and offered insights into housing
models which are operating in other regions, but more so, an overview of investors
requirements for potential housing solutions.

The Board instructed the CEO to seek the Department of Local Governments
attendance at the November 26 meeting so further advice regarding regulatory
matters impacting potential models, can be obtained.

 Former LPC: The CEO advised no advice has been forthcoming from the Minister
regarding the business case, which was provided to government in late July. With the
election now settled, the Chair had written to the Premier congratulating her on the
result and also asking for a response on the former LPC, as soon as possible.
Several worthwhile discussions had occurred, and were planned, with interested
stakeholders regarding future uses of the premises however the Chair and CEO

advised that little could occur, medium to long term, unless the Government offered
(07) 4652 5600

info@rapad.com.au

100 Golah Street | PO Box 592
0 Longreach Q 4730 o o @”RAPADCWQ
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clear direction. The CEO advised the Board, the recent hosting of a large school
group, over three nights, at the former college went well despite some minor hiccups.
Regional Planning Interests Act: The CEO tabled pre-election correspondence
(att) from the Deputy Premier, Stephen Miles, regarding their commitments, or
otherwise, relating to the RPIA as it pertains to the Lake Eyre Basin,
Finance, legal: The CEO tabled:

= monthly YTD financials,
19-20 FY unaudited statements,
19-20 FY audit progress,
Sale of vehicle advice,
Advice regarding the appointment of the contractor to undertake Stage 2 of the
tourism data model, and

= Risk outiook
RAPAD Skilling: The Board received an operational update on the YTD activities of
the registered training organisation, RAPAD Skilling.
AGM procedure: The CEO provided advice to the Board on the planned agenda for
the upcoming general and annual general meeting on. November 25,26, and advised
that a notice of meeting regarding the AGM had been forwarded,
Drone workshop — The CEO provided a brief regarding the outcome of the drone
planning workshop. There are a range of recommendations which the Board will take
more time to consider.
Aviation Transport Security Regulations: Boulia SC raised recent correspondence,
from an air service provider, regarding regulatory amendments to the Aviation
Transport Security Regulations 2005 (the Regulations) by the Aviation and Maritime
Security Department of Home Affairs, effective 19 December 2020, and advised of
concerns they had on how this may impact them and other small airport / towns. There
was agreement that the Board invite the air provider to the next Board meeting.
Election feedback: The CEO tabled pre-election feedback, specifically from
Government (att), now that they have been re-elected. The Board noted that it was
reasonably detailed, also noting the Government had left the door open for discussion
on several matters including the former LPC.
LGAQ Bush Councils proposal: The Board discussed the LGAQs Bush Councils
proposal. LGAQ were requesting feedback from councils by December. There was a
range of views expressed both for and against the proposal.
OQTA: The Board (re)nominated Cr Martin to the Outback Qid Tourism Authority
management committee.
Wild Dog Coordinator role: The CEO tabled an update from AgForce regarding the
CWQ WDC role. There was agreement from the Board that they do not see value in
trying to fill the role in the CWQ, given the timeframe remaining. Associated with this,
there was discussion about the coordination of wild dog baiting, and directors agreed
to progress this discussion at the next Central West Regional Pest Management
Committee.
Mental health funding: There was discussion regarding recent announcements
relating to mental health funding, and Directors indicated that at this stage they would
assess the uses of the funding on an individual LG basis once more detail was
known.
National Flood and Drought Agency Flood Implementation Strategy: The CEO
advised he was invited to participate in the North West Monsoon Trough Flood
Implementation Strategy Working Group. The Chair approved the CEOs participation
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out of session given the response timeframe. The Board were in agreement with the
CEDs participation.

+ Waest Qld Alliance of Councils: The Board noted the WQACs work plan, recently
endorsed by the WOQAC leadership group.

205



BLACKALL-TAMBO REGIONAL COUNCIL Return to Agenda

OFFICER REPORTS

COUNCIL MEETING DATE: 18 November 2020

Item No: 7.16

SUBJECT HEADING: Flood Warning Gauge Installation
Author and Officer's Title: Des Howard, Chief Executive Officer

CLASSIFICATION: (if confidential)

Summary: Through funding from the Queensland Disaster Resilience Fund rain gauges and
river rain gauges have been installed at various locations around the Blackall-Tambo
Region.

Recommendation: That Council receive the report and note that rain gauges have
been installed at Langlo Road Minnie Downs, Langlo Road Lumeah, Truno Road,
Ward Road Woolga and river rain gauges have been installed at Mt Enniskillen and
Tambo.

Background

The Natural Disaster Resilience Program (NDRP) has allocated funding for the installation of
flood warning gauges across central western Queensland. The works includes stations
constructed in various locations across the following local government areas; Barcoo Shire
Council, Winton Shire Council, Longreach Regional Council, Barcaldine Regional Council,
Blackall-Tambo Regional Council and Flinders Shire Council.

The purpose of the works is to manufacture, deliver, install and commission new river level
gauges and rain gauges at various locations. The proposed flood gauges will integrate into
the Bureau of Meteorology flood warning system to provide accurate real time information
that can be used to make decisions about best deployment strategies for staff and
equipment during flood events.

Prospect Environmental is pleased to announce the completion of Rain Gauge installations
at

Langlo Road Minnie Downs

Langlo Road Lumeah

Truno Road

Ward Road Woolga

Prospect Environmental is also pleased to announce the completion of a Rain River Gauge
installation at

e Mt Enniskillen

e Tambo
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Current station locations from dataOnline

a Tambo R&WL o (RO RS
[ Bow

A2

A2
a Langlo Rd - Minnie Downs

M

Ward Rd (Woolga)
c Langlo Rd - Lumeah

Link to Corporate Plan

Governance

Best Practice Governance

Strong federal, state and regional advocacy

Consultation Internal/External
CEO

Mayor

Deputy Mayor

DWS

Policy Implications
Nil

Budget and Resource Implications
Funded by Queensland Disaster Resilience Fund
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